Readfield Select Board
February 15, 2022, Meeting Agenda
Select Board Meeting starts: 6:00 PM
Select Board Meeting ends (unless extended) at 8:00 PM

Executive Session (6:00pm)
To have the Select Board hold an Executive Session for the purpose of discussing personnel matters,
specifically an annual review of the Town Manager, pursuant to 1 MRSA, Section 405, subsection 6(A).
Pledge of Allegiance (6:30pm)
Regular Meeting Items - 5 min.
22-098 - Minutes: Select Board meeting minutes of January 31, 2022,
22-099 - Warrants: #33-35
Communications - 30 min.
Select Board communications. - 5 min.
Town Staff Reports - 10 min.
e Treasurer’s Report - January 2022
* Town manager’s Report
Boards, Committees, Commissions & Departments - 10 min.
¢ Fairgrounds Recreation Improvements Update
¢ Budget Committee minutes of January 27, 2022
¢ Planning Board minutes of September 28 and November 3, 2021
s Library Board minutes of January 5, 2022
¢ Broadband Internet Committee of November 10, 2021
Public Communication - Members of the public may address the Select Board - 5 min,
Appointments, Reappointments, & Resignations - 5 min
22-100 - Consider the appointment of Megan Lachapelle to the Trails Committee
Old Business - 30 min.
21-068 - Consider next steps for investigating broadband internet - 10 min.
22-089 - Discuss Fiscal Year 2023 Budget - 20 min.
New Business - 15 min.
22-101 - Consider pending real estate foreclosures - 5 min.
22-102 - Consider the financial warrant policy - 5 min.
22-103 - Consider a revised Town Manager Contract - 5 min.
Other Business, Upcoming Meetings, and Future Agenda Items - 5 min.
Adjournment

This meeting will be held in-person at the Town Office
Participate via Zoom at: hitps://us02web.zoom.us/j/88149608367 or
Call-in at +1 (929) 436-2866 and enter meeting ID: 881 4960 8367 and passcode: 781405




EXECUTIVE SESSION




RESERVED




REGULAR MEETING

¢ MIINUTES
o \WARRANTS




Readfield Select Board
February 15, 2022
Readfield Select Board ltem # 22-098

Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, January 31, 2022 — Unapproved

Select Board Members Present: Carol Doorenbos, Ralph Eno, Sean Keegan, Dennis Price and Kathryn
Woodsum

Others Attending: William Starrett (Channel 7), Eric Dyer (Town Manager), Anjelica Pittman (Board
Secretary), Grace Keene

Regular Meeting:

Dennis called the Select Board meeting to order at 6:36 pm followed by the Pledge of Allegiance

e 22-093 - Minutes: Select Board Meeting minutes of January 10, 2022
> Motion made by Kathryn to approve the Select Board meeting minutes of January 10, 2022 as
presented, second by Ralph. Vote 5-0 in favor.

e 22-094 — Warrants: #29-32 (FY22)
» Carol reviewed Warrants #29-32
» Motion made by Dennis to approve warrants #29-30 in the amount of $72,414.07, second by
Ralph. Vote 5-0 in favor.
» Motion made by Carol to approve warrants #31-32 in the amount of $339,952.92, second by
Sean. Discussion: The $2,000 is for broadband and Red Zone to complete the final stage of
topical map projection. Vote 5-0 in favor.

Communications

e Select Board Communications
» Kathryn: Asked about the sidewalk cleaning that was incomplete, Eric responded that there was
a linkage issue and was finished once fixed.

e Board, Committees, Commissions & Departments
* Comprehensive Plan Committee Update
* Board of Appeals minutes of October 28, 2021
= Library Board minutes of November 3, 2021
=  Cemetery Committee minutes of November 15, 2021
» Discussion amongst the Select Board regarding the Appeals Board minutes and the applicant on
the shoreland property. Carol wondering why it went straight to Appeals and not Planning
Board; Eric explained that was the request of the applicant and it is now back in the Planning
Boards hands.
» Ralph still concerned on the timely manner of draft minutes being done and submitted.
> Select Board discussion on Town Boards and their functions. Carol would like to bring up in an
upcoming meeting for discussion on the length of the Planning Board appointment; would like it
at three years like all other Town Boards/Committees.
> Welcome to Anjelica Pittman, new Collections Clerk and Board Secretary.

¢ Public Communications - Members of the public may address the Select Board on any topic
» None

Page 1 of 2 — unapproved



Readfield Select Board
Regular Meeting Minutes — Monday, January 31, 2022 — Unapproved

Appointments, Reappointments & Resiognations:

e 22-095 — Consider the appointment of Warren Norris to the Cemetery Committee
e

» Motion made by Kathryn to reappoint Warren Norris to the Cemetery Committee with a term
beginning tonight and ending June 30, 2024, second by Sean. Vote 5-0 in favor.

New Business:

e 22-096 — Conduct a brief tour of the Fire Station addition and new apparatus bay
# Brief tour with Eric and the Select Board completed.

e 22-097 — Hold a “Tabletop Exercise” and discussion to become more familiar with the Emergency
Operations Plan

Table Top Exercise held and review of the Emergency Operations Plan.

Belgrade tanker issue — need to look into special insurance.

Look into text-based notification and reverse 911 notification systems. Megaphone and small

mobile generator discussed for items of need.

» Skilled set based volunteer list/appendix.

Y YV VY

¢ Other Business, Upcoming Meetings and Future Agenda Items
» Upcoming RSU#38 and Select Board joint meeting is being held on Wednesday, March 16,
2022. Carol and Sean to attend with Ralph as alternate. Dennis and Kathryn to attend via ZOOM.
Motion made by Kathryn to adjourn the meeting at 8:08 pm, second by Sean. Vote 5-0 in favor.

Minutes submitted by Kristin Parks, Board Secretary

Page 2 of 2 — unapproved



Readfield Select Board
February 15, 2022
item # 22-099

Tieaseret’s Wanamt
Warrant # 33 $32,000.50 Dates; 2/03/2022

To the Treasurer of Readfield:

This is to certify that there is due and chargeable to the accounts listed below the sums
indicated, and you are directed to pay the amounts listed to the payees named herein.

Payee Account Amount Check #'s
EMPLOYEES Payroll 5
VARIOUS VENDORS Accounts
Payable $32,000.50 70871
Total $32,000.50
Date Signhed:
Dennis Price

Carol Doorenbos

Ralph £no

Sean Keegan

Kathryn Woodsum




Readfield A / P Check Register 02/02/2022

2:35 PM Bank: Androscoggin Bank Page 1
Type Check Amount Date Wint  Payee
R 70871 32,000.50 02/03/22 33 0453 Cushing Construction, LLC
Total 32,000.50
Count
Checks

Voids 0




Readfield
2:35 PM

00453 Cushing Construction, LLC

Prepaid Total--
Current Total--

Warrant Total--

Warrant Recap 02/02/2022
Page 1

Warrant 33
Amount Account----------

~ 32,00050 Rds & Drain / Winter Maint - PUBLIC WAYS / CONTRACT SVC

0.00
32,000.50

32,000.50




COMMUNICATIONS

o SELECT BOARD
e STAFF REPORTS
¢BOARDS & COMMITTEES
e PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS




Eric Dyer

from: Hannah <hhinckley@roadrunner.com>

Sent: Wednesday, January 5, 2022 11:18 PM

To: Eric Dyer; bruce.e.hunter@gmail.com; Robert Peale
Cc: Dennis Price; Rick

Subject: Re: Joint Committee Meeting Follow-up

Lapologize for the delayed response to this follow up. I appreciate all of you being involved in this process.
My response for the request of feedback from Eric are as follows.

3 questions for Eric’s review-
A. Expectations and programming needs-

Recreation Association desire is to develop more of a recreation complex to be
used and 100% availability to all at the Fairground Fields Complex location. The
location is ideal for a community recreational complex . Primarily we are focused
on development of a softball field for use by our girls who currently have no
regulation field on town owned property. Secondary is an outdoor basketball
court for use by young and old alike as well as facilitating summer sport camp
opportunities as well. There is currently no outdoor court in town available
pubicly for all.
We currently field 4 baseball teams, 3 softball teams and often 3 T-balls teams
{co-ed youngest group) in the spring season. We don’t currently have field space
or capacity to accommodate these teams for practice and game time without
having to ask neighboring towns to use their fields as well.

B. Preferences
Our preferences as the Rec Dept are to develop the softball field first with level
outfield to the existing baseball field for maximum use by and to
accommodate the most teams throughout the spring through fall
seasons. Secondary is development of a full court basketball court near the
parking lot in an agreed upon location with the least environmental impact and
trail interruption.
Lastly we would love a location chosen for a future concession stand. This will
not only find use during sport seasons but be a big boost when Heritage Days
and other community events are planned.

C. “Must Haves”

Regulation softball field, Full court basketball court. Future build Concession
stand

| am also curious what state the requested information is in- have you gotten response back from main land?
Thank you for any help-

Hannah Flannery




On 12/8/2021 11:31 AM, Eric Dyer wrote:

Good morning,

Thank you Bruce, Hannah, and Rob, and thanks to your members who participated in the meeting last
night. Besides discussing an important topic it was the biggest hybrid meeting we’ve ever had that
didn’t involve a full broadcast setup. We had 12 people around the table and at least eight on the
Zoom. We are always trying to improve and increase engagement and getting better at these kinds of
meetings is key to that. | know there were some concerns about audio {(some may have been on our
side of the technology and some may have been on their side) that | will look into, but please provide
me with any feedback you have on the format and function of the meeting.

More impartant in many respects is taking action to continue to gather constructive input and refine the
proposal. We discussed a few key steps at the meeting that | want to put in print:

1. lrequested a cost estimate for expanded services from Main-Land Development at the meeting
and confirmed with them this morning (when we met to discuss parking at Readfield Corner)
that | wanted their estimate by this Friday. | am anticipating a “time and materials” approach
and expect them to provide an estimate for:

1. An expanded design focus and scope to cover the approximately six acres of the open
filed area and to further consider the following design factors:
1.Habitat and conservation priorities
2.Recreation facilities and programming
3.Historical assets and priorities
2. Afew additional plan layout options/iterations
3. Afew additional facilitated meetings with stakeholders

2. We will discuss the joint meeting at the upcoming Select Board meeting — this will include a
report-out from Recreation and a Town Manager summary of action steps.

3. lwill request funds from the Select Board to cover the cost of the additional design and planning
work mentioned above,

4. The Recreation Board, Trails Committee, and Conservation Committee were asked to digest the
discussion from the joint meeting and then prepare focused feedback on the proposed
development at the Fairgrounds with an emphasis on:

1. Their expectations and programming needs
2. Their preferences
3. Their “must have’s”
We did not set a deadline for this feedback but I'll suggest January 6" as a starting point.

5. Asnoted above, additional stakeholder meetings will need to be scheduled and held (likely with
a smaller group of representatives from trails, conservation, recreation, the Historical Society,
and the engineer) to consider the focused feedback.

6. We acknowledged that broader public input and feedback (specifically abutters and the general
public) was being planned and was essential to the process. My expectation is that those
stakeholder meetings will be most effective and happen only after a consensus plan is arrived
at, if possible. It is recognized that all of our meetings are public and anyone can attend at any
time.

I want to thank you as Chairs for demonstrating leadership in your participation and engagement in this
discussion. |also want to emphasize that no commitments were made at the joint meeting. This is an
ongoing process. Please do let me know if I've missed anything consequential with the action steps I've
outlined.

Thank you again,




Eric Dyer

From: Rob Peale <rnpreadfieldgov@gmail.com>

Sent: Friday, January 7, 2022 2:46 PM

To: Eric Dyer

Cc: Hannah Hinckley; bruce.e.hunter@gmail.com; Dennis Price; Rick
Subject: Re: Joint Committee Meeting Follow-up

Hello everyone,

I have not heard any additional comments from trails committee members since our December meeting with all
parties. I think it is fair to say that our committee is generally supportive of Hanna’s priorities as long as the
trails are still there for similar utility following construction as I presented at the November select board forum.
That should include preserving existing memorials including those memorializing Ken Clark at appropriate
locations.

However, I think the questions posed by individual trails and conservation members regarding some sort of
agreement with the school system still remain for those members that expressed them. Probably the best way to
put those to rest is to see what agreement if any the school would be willing to make. Personally I don’t think
anything short of right, title, and interest (example being for constructing a regulation field at RES) would be
worth considering and as a former school board member [ doubt they would give it.

Looking forward to the continued planning and discussions!

Thanks

On Jan 6, 2022, at 8:58 AM, Eric Dyer <manager(@readfieldmaine.org> wrote:

Thanks Hannah,
Very much appreciated. | look forward to similar responses from Trails and Conservation.

With respect to the planning process, Rick has been working on the revised cost estimate and will get that to me

ASAP. A complicating factor is that the additional cost proposed by the landscape consultant far exceeded the available
$6,000 budget for services approved by the Select Board and so we need to clarify scope, and possibly request
additional funds from the Select Board. | have asked Rick to work with the landscape architect to provide a proposed
scope that’s within budget and also a scope that he believes provides the best deliverables. Hopefully those are one in
the same but if not we'll need to reconsider the budget and/or the scope.

Be well,

Eric

From: Hannah [mailto:hhinckley@roadrunner.com]
Sent: Wednesday, January 5, 2022 11:18 PM

To: Eric Dyer; bruce.e.hunter@gmail.com; Robert Peale
Cc: Dennis Price; Rick

Subject: Re: Joint Committee Meeting Follow-up




READFIELD CONSERVATION COMMISSION
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS
FOR DEVELOPMENT OF
A PLAN FOR THE FAIRGROUNDS FIELDS

a. Expectations and programming needs

For over 25 years, the Readfield Conservation Commission, along with its community partners, have
carefully managed the Fairgrounds to meet a diverse array of community needs including:
» expanding the Town Cemetery;
¢ developing and maintaining an exceptional and hugely popular in-town trail system;
* preserving and managing high-quality pollinator habitat along with the scenic character of the
open fields;
¢ providing space for community events such as Heritage Days;
* preserving and interpreting the rich history of the Fairgrounds, such as the recent creation of a
pulling stones exhibit; and
* constructing a youth baseball field and associated parking.

In keeping with this positive tradition, RCC strongly believes that future development and management
of the Fairgrounds fields should occur in a manner that recognizes, celebrates and respects all of the
community values and uses. No one use should dominate the fields area to the detriment of other uses
and values. Our past management of the Fairgrounds demonstrates our willingness to work with other
community interests to accommodate a variety of uses in a balanced manner while preserving the
integrity of this special public property. We expect that this record of community stewardship will
continue in the future.

The Fairgrounds Management Plan developed by RCC and approved by the Select Board in 1995 has
resulted in the wise stewardship of this property over the years. Similarly, we expect that the plan
developed for the fields area of the Fairgrounds will be comprehensive, taking into account all of the
natural, scenic, historic and recreational values of the property. It should be long-term--envisioning
development, uses and management over the next 10 — 20 years, rather than taking a piecemeal
approach.

b. Preferences

RCC’s priorities, of course, tilt toward conservation of natural resources. Our objectives for the fields
area include:

» First and foremost, preserving as much of the field habitat as possible for continued
management for pollinators and other wildlife. A recent assessment of the Fairgrounds fields
by a statewide grasslands expert with the Soil & Water Conservation District found that:

“The plight of honeybees, monarch butterflies, birds, bats and other native pollinators
have recently placed a renewed sense of urgency on the conservation of local pollinator
habitats. The mix of species in this field provides blooming plants for much of the
season. Abundant goldenrod and other late blooming species present on the site




provide pollen for native bees, butterflies and other pollinator species and are home to
even more beneficial insects.”

Of particular note is the substantial number of Monarch butterflies that utilize the Fairgrounds
field due to a large population of milkweed plants, which play an essential role in the Monarch’s
life cycle. The Monarch is currently being considered for endangered species designation by the
U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service — Readfield must do its part to prevent this species decline.
Second, we want to preserve the scenic view and historic character of the fields at the Church
Road entrance to the Fairgrounds. This is where people begin their walks through a natural
landscape, this is where people view historical interpretive signs referencing activities that
occurred in these fields over the centuries and this is where public events, such as Heritage
Days, have occurred over the years.
Third, we do not want to degrade the tremendous trail system that the Town has created over
the past 20 years and which is used by hundreds of people, young and old, in all four seasons. It
is a cherished resource constructed and maintained through the dedication of countless
volunteers. The geal must be not to simply ensure that the trails continue to exist, but also to
ensure that the user experience is not diminished by nearby surface alterations and
development.
Our preference is that any future expansion of ballfields and other developed recreation
facilities:

¢ Beclustered around the existing ballfield;

o Maintain as much natural field habitat as possible;

o Bescreened from the Church Rd. entrance to the Fairgrounds; and

¢ Not compromise the quality of the existing walking trails.

¢. “Must haves”

RCC’s “must haves” include:

Maintaining a core area of functional field habitat that is managed for pollinators without
fragmentation or disturbance by other activities.

Preserving the open space, scenic character and vestige of the historic landscape at the entrance
to the Fairgrounds around the parking lot, trailheads and historic markers.

Maintaining a high-quality trail system along the periphery of the fields that is not significantly
compromised by encroaching development.

Preserving quality space for community events.

With creative and collaborative thinking, RCC believes that a plan for the Fairgrounds field area can be
developed that will reflect the diverse interests of Readfield residents and preserve the special qualities
of the Readfield Fairgrounds for the future.




Eric Dyer

From:
Sent:
To:

Subject:

Good morning, everyone!

Regina Leonard <rleonard@rslla.com>

Thursday, February 10, 2022 9:04 AM

Bob & Jjeanne Harris; Bruce Hunter; Dennis Price; Eric Dyer; Hannah Flannery; Jerry A.
Bley; Rick Dunton; Rob Peale

Update

I hope you are enjoying this warmer weather. I am following up on our site walk to give you an
update on our work plan and schedule. Main-Land has provided the base information, and over the
next week we will be advancing some ideas to address the input we have received from you all,

Thanks to everyone who has reached out to me with additional information. I appreciate it! I will be
working with Eric to define some next steps in the process. In the meantime, we anticipate that we
will have something to share the week after next.

Regards,

Regina S. Leonard, PLA

t andscape Architect / Principal

V«« RS LEONARD

Landsca pe Architecture

Phone // +1 207-450-9700
Web // www.rslla.com

Address // 29 Bridge St., Topsham, ME 04086




Y« RSLEONARD
;q Landscape Architecture

PROFESSIONAL FEES

RSLLA will provide the outlined services on a time and materials basis with a not-to-exceed budget
of $4,756 including direct project expenses billed at cost plus a standard overhead & supplies fee
of 2%. All services provided under this contract shall be billed at the standard rate of $135/hour.
RSLLA will submit monthly invoices based on the services provided. The anticipated breakdown of
task hours and fees is as follows:

Praject Task ] E _  Jask Hours' . lask Fees Task Total

TASK 1.1, SITE ASSESSMENT - REVIEW 2 $270

TASK 1.2. SITE ASSESSMENT — SITE VISIT 5 $675

TASK 1.3. SITE ASSESSMENT -OBJECTIVES 1 135

TASK 1 TOTAL $1.080

TASK 2.2. CONCEPT DESIGN - PRELIMINARY 8 $1,080

TASK 2.3. CONCEPT DESIGN — FINAL 6 $810

TASK 2 TOTAL $1,890

TASK 3.1. COORD & CCMMUN 3 $405

TASK 3.2.a. MEETINGS — PROJECT TEAM 3 $405

TASK 3.2.b. MEETINGS ~ WORKING GROUP 6 $810

TASK 3.2.c. MEETINGS — GENERAL PUBLIC {N.LC)

TASK 3 TOTAL $1,620

SUBTOTAL, FEES $4,590

DIRECT EXPENSES — MILEAGE 58,5 CENTS/MI. {1 OW TRIPS}) $24

DIRECT EXPENSES — COPIES, POSTAGE, ETC. (BUDGET) $50

DIRECT EXPENSES —OH & SUPPLIES FEE (2%) $92

DIRECT EXPENSE BUDGET TOTAL $166

TOTAL . s o %4756
SCHEDULE

it is understoad that the Town wishes to initiate planning and design for the project this winter in
anticipation of a June town vote. RSLLA will initiate work upon approval and work with the project
team and the Town to identify an acceptable timeline for the tasks and deliverables. For
consideration, RSLLA recommends the following critical path;

e SITE ASSESSMENT / SITE VISIT W/WORKING GROUP January 2022

¢ CONCEPT DESIGN - PRELIMINARY February 2022

o  WORKING GROUP MEETING Mid-February 2022
e CONCEPT DESIGN — FINAL March 2022

s  GENERAL PUBLIC MEETING {N.L.C)) May 2022

»  TOWN VOTE (ANTICIPATED) June 2022

29 Bridge St., Topsham., ME 04086 Tel.207.450.9700 www.rslta.com




Town of Readfield
BUDGET COMMITTEE

Meeting of January 27, 2022
MINUTES

The Readfield Budget Committee held a regularly scheduled meeting on January 27, 2022. Due
to the ongoing pandemic, some members of the Committee participated in the meeting in
person at Giles Hall; others participated remotely via Zoom. Members in attendance included
Andrews Tolman, Chairperson; Ed Sims; and Ellen Schneiter. Martin Hanish and Rebecca
Lambert were not able to attend. Also attending were Eric Dyer, Town Manager and Teresa
Shaw, Finance Director for the Town.

The meeting was convened at approximately 6:30 pm and the first order of business was
consideration of the draft minutes of the January 13" meeting. Dyer provided clarification on
one of the issues raised regarding the minutes, explaining that the contractual adjustment of
2% cited in the context of wage increases would be required to be implemented if base wages
were not otherwise increased to certain minimum levels. This increase does not constitute a
COLA and, because the Selectboard has otherwise elected to increase wages beyond a
contractual minimum, this further 2% adjustment is technically discretionary. With this
clarification, the Committee members were ready to consider adoption of the minutes.

Sims offered a motion to accept the minutes as drafted; Tolman provided a second.
The motion was passed without objection.

The review of the proposed FY23 budget then resumed. The first department to be reviewed
this evening was Department 40, Protection, as Chief Mank was present at Giles Hall for the
meeting. Dyer told Committee members that Mank has informed him that he has worked
diligently to keep the fire department budget (40-10) as flat as possible, understanding that
there are future expenses the Town will soon face in this department.

40-80 — Utilities/Telephone — this budget is proposed to increase 17%, but that equates to
$100. The adjustment is intended to better align the budget with historical experience in this
line item.

50-42 - Contract Services/Pump Testing — the proposed budget does not reflect any adjustment
for the coming fiscal year. Chief Mank, however, recommends that this line be adjusted upward
to 55500 (from $3000) to reflect the increase in service costs the department is experiencing.
Dyer indicated he would make that change.

60-30 — Fuel/0il, Equipment Operation — this line item shows no adjustment in FY23 for the line
item. Dyer and Mank agreed, however, that the line could be adjusted downward from $3000
to $2000.




60-74 — Personal Protective Gear — This line was not proposed for any adjustment for FY23.
However, Chief Mank requested that the line be increased from $4000 to $5000, to reflect
steeply rising costs for jackets and pants for the volunteer firefighters. While the department
does its best to maintain the protective gear, it does wear out and it is sometimes necessary to
purchase new gear for volunteers joining the force, when no suitable pre-used gear is available
for their use.

40-20 — Ambulance — The proposed budget is currently estimating a 10% increase in the cost of
ambulance services, which is provided by Winthrop EMS. Dyer told the Committee that this
adjustment represents his best guess and could be low, given the challenges Winthrop’s service
is facing.

40-40 - Dispatching — The proposed budget reflects an approximately 9% increase in
dispatching fees. Dyer explained that this figure is a placeholder; we will not know the final
figure until the Town of Winthrop provides it. However, Dyer is aware that Winthrop’s costs are
increasing, so he anticipates this level of increase in the cost of services provided to Readfield.

65-35 — Capital Communications/Protection/Emergency Operations — This line is budgeted to
increase from $500 to $1000 for the coming year. The increase is intended to cover the cost of
needed upgrades/purchases to refresh the Towns emergency communications equipment.

There was a brief discussion with Chief Mank and Dyer regarding the wage rate for volunteer
fire fighters, which has been increased to match the increase in the wages the Town pays
employees. Mank noted, though, that call volume has been down during the pandemic —
declining almost 20%. This results in lower spending since there are fewer call outs to house
fires, car accidents, etc. Mank did note, however, that EMS call volume is now starting to
increase a bit.

Overall, the change in the expense budget for the Protection Department is relatively small.
Although an attempt was made to keep the budget flat, adjustments requested during this
meeting will result in an increase in overall expense. The revenue budget for the protection
department was reviewed. The proposed budget shows no material changes from the current
budget. It was noted that there is no longer a fee charged for burn permits, so no revenues
should show in that line.

Although the budget for capital expenditures will not be taken up until later in the Committee’s
review schedule, Chief Mank agreed to brief members on the need for a new fire truck. He
reported that a new truck was spec’d out a couple of years ago, but the purchase was put on
hold in favor of the remodeling of the fire station. The price of the new truck as designed was
S450k - $500k; Chief Mank does not expect that price to have changed much. He told the
Committee that once ordered, the truck would be expected to be delivered in a year’s time; he
does not see supply side issues interfering with that timeline. When asked about the possibility
of Readfield getting a donated truck from Massachusetts, Chief Mank informed the Committee




that donation had not been moved forward and we should not count on that. The truck that
needs to be replaced is from 1988 and is approaching the end of its useful life.

The review moved on to Community Services, beginning with 25-10, Animal Control. Wages for
this division are showing a decrease. Dyer explained that when the Town has a full-time
employee serving in this capacity, the Town pays both wages and a stipend. This position,
though, has been moved to a part-time position and is non-union, resulting in no stipend pay.
This, in turn, reduces personnel costs.

40-10 - Cellphone — This budget line is increasing to $550 as the Town is now supplying the
Animal Control staff person with a cell phone. The budgeted amount represents the annual cost
of the phone.

50-61 — Rabies Clinic — This line item is proposed to drop by 50% to $500. The Town is shifting
from conducting two clinics per year to only one. This change in scheduling reflects a lack of
participation in the second annual clinic.

25-50/25-25 — Kennebec Land Trust and KVCOG — These line items have not yet been entered,
as the information has not yet been made available by these organizations to the Town. Dyer
commented, however, that he does not expect the budget for these items to change materially.

25-30 — Age Friendly — The proposed budget shows a decline of $100, reflecting a zeroing out of
the advertising expense, which is no longer necessary.

25-40 — Library — The proposed budget reflects increases in expenses associated with Library
Administration of 103% ($1000). Dyer was not immediately able to explain that increase and no
representative of the Library was in attendance. Dyer will raise the question with Library
personnel and bring the issue back to the Committee at a subsequent meeting.

25-40 - Wages/Library — The wage expense for the Library is showing an increase for combined
wages, FICA and retirement of almost 24% or $6500. This increase reflects the increase in the
Town’s wage rate as well as the necessity of paying the Librarian’s full retirement, as she is now
close enough to a full-time employee to trigger that obligation.

25-50 ~ Public Access TV — This budget item includes a small adjustment to wages and FICA (-
$540) to reflect a drop in volume of broadcasted meetings. Dyer noted that the technician who
operates this service for the Town is phasing cut and will transition the position to someone
new. This transition involves some investment in more sophisticated digital equipment to
ensure smooth operations. That investment will be reflected in the capital budget, to be
reviewed at a later date.

65-30 — Equipment/Public Access TV — There is a proposed increase of $1000 on this budget line
to reflect the anticipated cost of purchasing some cables and splitters for the broadcasting
system.




25-60 — Street Lights — The proposed budget includes a marked decrease — 81% - in the
appropriation for this line, which equates to $3250. Dyer explained that the costs associated
with the new LED lights is even less than expected when the conversion project was
implemented. He added that the Selectboard had approved adding five more lights in the
current fiscal year and might consider adding more in FY23. Chief Mank, who was still in
attendance, suggested a light be placed at the boat landing. Dyer pointed out that the landing
property is owned by the state, but he could approach them about installing a light at that site.

25-70 — Broadband — Dyer pointed out that this initiative remains very much unsettled. He did
review the budget figures here, as a question regarding them was raised by Hanish prior to the
meeting. Dyer reported that the $48k current year expense was a one-time cost, related to a
commissioned study. The costs for the line item drop back to zero in the proposed budget, as
no operating costs are expected in FY23. At the same time, if the project moves forward, there
may be capital costs related to the initiative, but those would appear in the capital budget.

25-90 — Maranacook Lake Dam — Utilities costs for this division are projected to increase by
approximately $130; this will bring the budget in alignment with actua! experience. There is also
a small increase ($200) for building maintenance, reflecting Readfield’s share of these costs. At
the same time, there is a budgeted decrease of $250 for contract services, due to a decline in
expected needs at the dam over the coming year. Dyer did tell the Committee members that
any needed repairs would be reflected in the capita! budget, although major repairs are likely
somewhere down the road in terms of time.

Overall, the Community Services budget is projected to decline by almost 8%.

The budget for Community Services revenues has been adjusted to better align with actual
experience and overall, and currently reflects an almost 5% increase. There is a decline in rabies
clinic revenues, which corresponds to the reduction in expense that will come with cutting back
to one clinic per year. The budget does, however, include grant revenue for the Age Friendly
initiative, which likely should be removed as it far exceeds the expense for that division.
Removing this item will impact the bottom line of this revenue budget.

The next department to be reviewed was 50-10, Cemeteries. Tolman, who is a member of the
Cemeteries Committee, presented an overview of that budget request.

50-35 — Stone Repair — This line item shows a 100% increase - $3k — for needed repairs to
headstones. The money to fund this work will be drawn from the perpetual care reserve fund,
as the work is for stones subject to perpetual care.

65-20 — Software — Tolman told the Committee that this line item should be zeroed out, which
is decrease of $8k. He explained that Committee members had found a way to map plots by
adapting currently owned software, so there is no longer any need to purchase the specialized
software contemplated in the budget for the current year.




70-40 — Grounds Maintenance — This line includes a 33% increase {$500) to cover the cost of
expected maintenance.,

Overall, the Cemeteries expense budget shows a decline of 14% or $3200.

There is no change in Cemeteries revenues. Dyer pointed out that the funding from the
Perpetual Care Reserve Fund shows up under Administration/Trust Fund revenues, rather than
in the Cemeteries revenue portion of the budget. The consolidation of all trust/reserve funds
under Administration occurred several years ago.

The final department to be reviewed during the meeting was 70 — Solid Waste. Dyer pointed
out that the wages and related costs (FICA, retirement) were increasing in this department as
they were in other Town departments, due to the increases in base wage rates.

The contract services budget shows an overall increase of just over S1k. However, individual
lines show more variability. 50-81, Hauling, is showing an increase of 10.5% or $4k, reflecting
expected actual experience. Some other tipping lines are also showing increases. Waste
Management is the dominant provider in this sector and that company is dictating prices. Dyer
noted that the hauling contract will be bid out, but because of the market imbalance, he
expects WM to continue to drive up prices for these services.

50-82 —Single Sort Tipping — The FY23 budget shows a zeroing out of this expense line, a
reduction of $12k. Dyer informed the Committee that single sort recycling seems to have
recovered and the Town is now covering the costs associated with this service.

70-60 — Maintenance/Solid Waste — This line includes an increase of $10k {400%) to cover the
costs of needed concrete repairs at the Transfer Station, as well as a number of other projects
like lighting improvements and electrical upgrades.

60-55 — Backhoe Maintenance — Dyer pointed out that this line is remaining flat for the coming
year. He attributes this to diligence on the part of Transfer Station management, who is doing
an exceptional job maintaining equipment.

Overall, the Solid Waste expense budget is slated for a $20.5k increase, which is 6.3%. The
corresponding revenue budget reflects an anticipated 3.1% increase in revenues, which equals
almost $25k. Dyer noted that there is an increase in revenue for scrap metal as well as single
sort recycling; other revenues are generally expected to hold steady. Both Fayette’s share and
Wayne's share of expenses are increasing, though Readfield’s share is increasing at a more
rapid pace. The expense allocations are based on valuations and the increase in Readfield’s
valuation is outpacing that of Fayette and Wayne.

Dyer mentioned that Hanish had raised a question prior to the meeting regarding monies in the
Conservation Land Fund; he was concerned they were not reflected in the Trio document. Dyer
pointed out that these reserve funds show up under capital and added that he does plan to




propose adding an expenditure of $50k for the conservation of open space, to be funded out of
that reserve, prioritizing recreational spaces.

The group then turned to a brief review of the first draft budget presentation prepared by Dyer.
He noted that the Town budget will reflect substantial shifts in revenue. This is an artifact of the
approach the Town has taken to budgeting over the past two years. That approach has been to
be extremely conservative both in constructing expense budgets, but also in estimating
revenues. Readfield received a substantial amount of one-time relief funding that helped
alleviate our fiscal picture this year; that stream of funding, however, has ended.

The uncertainties presented by the pandemic demanded that level of conservatism, but the
economy as well as state and local revenues have outperformed expectations over the past
year. Dyer added that last year, the school! district turned money back to the municipalities;
Readfield put those funds into reserves. Taken together, it seems reasonable to now adopt a
less conservative budget outlook for the coming year.

On the expense side of the ledger, though, costs are rising. An increase in the RSU budget of
between 6% and 8% is likely. As discussed earlier, Readfield will bear a greater share of that
increase than other towns in the RSU, as our valuations are increasing at a faster rate.

Taken together, Dyer is currently estimating that our budget is headed for an overall increase of
about 8%, or $277k. In formulating his recommendations for funding that increase, he is
weighing offsetting a portion of the increase out of reserves, but some of the increase will likely
come from an increase in the mil rate.

The next meeting of the Budget Committee is scheduled for Thursday, February 3, 2022.

There being no other business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:45 pm

Respectfully submitted,

/ejs/

Duly adopted on February 3, 2022




READFIELD PLANNING BOARD

Minutes of Tuesday, September 28, 2021

Planning Board Members: Paula Clark (Chair), Bill Buck {present but unable to fully participate/vote due to
technical difficulties), Henry Clauson, Jack Comart, William Godfrey, Jan Gould, Noel Madore {not sworn in yet
so could not vote), Don Witherill

Excused:

Others Attending: Ron “Chip” Stephens (CEO), Eric Dyer (Town Manager), Kristin Collins (town attorney), Leah
Hayes, Alex Brock

Meeting called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Paula via Zoom and at the Town Office.

368 Main Street — Readfield Solar 1 LLC / Syncarpha Solar LLC:

The board considered a request from Syncarpha for a one-year extension of the 11/4/20 approval of a 4.95-
megawatt AC ground-mounted photovoltaic solar array on 20 acres of a 104-acre parcel. The one-year limit on
the original approval expires on November 4, 2021, unless extended by the board. The property is in the Rural
Residential District identified on the Assessor’s map 136, Lot 19.

Chip noted that Syncarpha has come up with a decommissioning bond from CMP so he can now write them a
building permit.

Paula said that considering the timing, they are unlikely to make a substantial start this fall.

Jack made a motion to allow the one-year extension; William G. seconded. Vote unanimous with Noel
abstaining.

Praposal solar project to provide power to Kents Hill School

Chip said an applicant came in for a discussion about a medium-size solar farm to provide 600 Kw to Kents Hill
School. The ordinance that governs this project requires equipment to be real property, a stipulation that the
group cannot meet. Section 7.3, registration for the project, limits the ID to personal property and this group

cannot do it as taxed property. They would not be selling excess power to the grid, but rather selling it to KHS.

Chip asked the board to provide guidance on how to proceed, suggesting that the group might come in and
make a presentation to the board, but they are reluctant until they know if there is a workaround on this
provision.

Jack asked Henry what the reason is for this provision that the system has to be incorporated into the
description of the real property and registered with the registry of deeds.




Henry said the intent of the clause is not to be restrictive and that there is a plethora of PPA models between
landowners and developers. He said the clause is fairly standard and the solar structure is large so it needs to be
in the deed or at least deeded because if there is a change of ownership.

Henry said it will need more thought and discussion, but he suggested that Chip might speak to Eric and also
possibly broach the topic with RSU 38 in case they might be interested in sharing power.

Noel asked where the solar ordinance can be found. Jack said it’s in the list of ordinances, but is not currently
part of the LUO.

26 Mill Stream Road — Safe Space Meeting House (SSMH):

The board continued consideration of the application of SSMH to create a community center/club. The Planning
Board conducted a site visit on August 24, and a public hearing was held on August 25. Public comments on the
application were accepted until September 7, 2021. The property is in the Rural Residential District identified on
the Assessor’'s map 120, [ot 013.

Paula introduced the town attorney, Kristin Collins, and said the plan for tonight is not necessarily to make any
final decisions but rather to discuss the many complicated issues. Votes will be on whether the standard has
been met for any listed criterion, establishing some findings of fact for ultimately deciding on the project as a
whole. She noted that the site review criteria all apply to this application. She noted that it will take some time
and that time must be taken to be sure the board gets it right. There will be an opportunity to revisit any issues
further. There may not be complete agreement, but the decisions will reflect the collective will of the board.

Paula reviewed the LUQ definition for a community center club {page 120 of the LUO), which lists the activities
allowed or disallowed and states that there must not be any pecuniary gain.

The SSMH property is in the Rural Residential District, where specific uses are not allowed. Those include indoor
theaters, restaurants, museums, tibraries, offices, commercial recreation, and civic and convention center, which
includes public facilities for cultural, recreational, athletic and entertainment purposes. Some of the public
comment said it isn’t logical to prohibit those uses individually under that umbrella term nor is it reasonable to
prohibit those public activities if they are being held privately.

Paula noted that it has been difficult to pin down the specific activities that are planned for the facility. The
applicant says the town is not specific in what activities it prohibits, so the discussion has been rather circular. A
broad array of activities has been suggested by the property owner, including use of the property by the greater
Readfield community, music, dance, arts and craft shows, concerts, yoga and weddings.

The question is whether the community club as proposed is consistent with the vision of the ordinance as it
defines a community center club and how it limits or allows various uses. Paula said that a number of the
comments received from the public are about whether the proposal is consistent with the definition put forth in
the ordinance and the broader zoning scheme.

Paula launched a general discussion among board members. Topics included:

» the overall project and intended uses




¢ the building being a nonconforming structure

e part of the building being in a Resource Protection District
* site review criteria: traffic and parking

* noise, music and soundproofing

e commercial cooking

* lighting for safety reasons

® expenses for town

e inconsistencies between corporate filing and application

Paula went through the site review criteria. She suggested that a block vote be held after the 23 standards had
motions and seconds,

On the first (1), aesthetic, cultural and natural values: Jack moved that the application meets that standard. Jan
seconded.

On the second (2), conformity with local ordinances and plans: Jack moved that this standard was not met. Jan
seconded.

Number three (3), erosion: Jack moved they meet the standard. Don seconded.

Number four (4), financial burden on the town: Jack moved they don’t meet the standard because of costs for
improving the road, building a sidewalk and revenue stream from the town for public use requested in SSMH
bylaws. Jan seconded.

Number five (5), financial and technical capacity: Jack moved they don’t meet that criteria based on the
insufficiency of information supplied. Jan seconded.

Number six (6), flood risk: Don moved applicant meets criteria. Jack seconded.

Seven (7), project shall not have an adverse effect on wetlands: Jack moved that they meet the requirement; Jan
seconded,

Eight (8), activities shall not adversely affect the quantity or quality of groundwater: Jack moved that they meet
the groundwater requirement; Bill seconded.

Nine (9}, activities shall not impose a burden on town’s solid waste disposal: Jack made a motion that they meet
that requirement; Bill seconded.

Ten {10), not imposing a burden on existing water supply: Jack moved they meet that standard; Jan seconded.

Eleven (11), adjacent land uses: Jack moved they don’t meet this standard, in particularly related to noise; Jan
seconded.

Twelve (12}, shall not add to water or air pollution: Jack moved they meet the standard, Bill seconded.

Thirteen {13}, shall not impact water bodies: Jack moved they meet the standard; Bill seconded.




Fourteen (14}, shall provide adequate wastewater disposal: Bill moved they do not meet that standard because
of insufficient information; Henry seconded.

Fifteen (15), storm water management: Bill moved they do not meet that standard because of insufficient
infermation on the parking area and subsequent runoff; Henry seconded.

Sixteen {16}, sufficient water to serve the facility for the foreseeable future: Jack moved that they comply with
these requirements; Henry seconded.

Seventeen (17), traffic: Jack moved they don’t meet the standard; Jan seconded.

Eighteen (18), legal access sufficient to meet all proposed uses: Bill moved they meet the standard; Jack
seconded.

Nineteen {19}, impact on adjoining municipality: Jack moved they meet the standard; Bill seconded.
Twenty (20), life and fire safety: Henry moved they do not meet the standard; Jan seconded.
Twenty-One (21), no current violations on property: Jack moved they meet that standard; Bill seconded.
Twenty-Two {22), timber harvesting: Jack moved they meet that standard; Jan seconded.

Twenty-Three (23), proposed road construction: Jack moved they meet that standard; Jan seconded.

Jan made a motion that the applicant meets the standardon 1, 3,6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 12, 13, 16, 18, 19, 21, 22, and 23;

4

Jack seconded. Unanimous except for Noel, who abstained.

Applicants provided information from an engineer saying that wastewater disposal is adequate for 300 people.
Don moved that the board reconsider its vote on that standard; Bill seconded. Unanimous except for Noel
abstains. Don also moved to change the conclusion on standard number 14 from not meeting to meeting the
standard based on the information provided as to the building’s capacity. Jan seconded. Unanimous vote.

Paula called for a motion saying that standards were not met for standards 2, 4, 5, 11, 15,17,20. So moved by
Jack. Bill seconded. Unanimous vote.

Paula asked for comments from Kristin, who will be putting together findings of fact for a future meeting. Kristin
suggested a further review of LUO Article 8 Performance Requirements and Standards, some of which may be
applicable to this application, including lighting; commercial, industrial and institutional standards; parking areas
and traffic access; and resource protection standards.

in section 15, applicant must provide sufficient building lighting to provide safe use at night, including parking
areas. Jan moved that the plan is inadequate for this standard; Bill seconded.

Section 16 states that solid waste must be shielded from public view. Jan moved that applicant does not meet
this standard; Bill seconded.




Section 17 regarding parking setback requirements: Jack moved that they don’t meet the standard. Jan
seconded. The board is unable to determine if they meet the setback requirement based on the map provided,
storm water runoff is an issue, the size of spaces is unknown, and nothing is known about the 19 spaces
proposed for onsite.

In Section 18 the issue is traffic access. Paula suggested skipping a vote on this issue since nothing new is being
developed and instead fold traffic access into the site review.

Parking issues as discussed in Section 19 Resource Protection were discussed. It was determined that part of the

proposed parking lot would be in the RP zone, so it will not meet the standard. Jan moved does not meet; Henry
seconded.

Jack moved that Sections 15, 16, 17 and 19 do not meet the standard. Jan secended. Unanimous vote.

The next meeting is scheduled for 6:30 p.m. on October 12. Kristin will draft the findings of fact to circulate
among the board.

Paula thanked the applicants for attending.

Meeting adjourned at 10:02 p.m. by Paula.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Holly Rahmlow




READFIELD PLANNING BOARD

Minutes of Tuesday, November 3, 2021

Planning Board Members: Paula Clark (Chair}, Bill Buck, Henry Clauson, Jack Comart, William Godfrey, Jan
Gould, Don Witherill

Alternate Planning Board Member (not voting): Noel Madore

Others Attending: Ray Wendell Esquire, Phyllis Cote, Penny Eno, Jerry Bley, Grace Keene, Steve Smith, Ron
“Chip” Stephens (CEO}, Eric Dyer {Town Manager), Kristin Collins (Town Attorney), Leah Hayes, Kristin Parks

Meeting called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Paula via Zoom and at the Town Office.

26 Mill Stream Road—- Safe Space Meeting House {SSMH):

The board continued consideration of the application of SSMH to create a community center/club. Public
Meetings occurred May 25, June 2, July 27 and September 28. The Planning Board conducted a site visit on
August 24 and a public hearing was held on August 25. Public comments on the application were accepted until
September 7. On September 28 the board held a meeting to go over the site-review criteria.

The property is located at 26 Mill Stream Road in the Rural Residential District identified on the Assessors map
120, lot 013.

Paula recapped the actions taken so far. Town Attorney Kristin Collins presented the findings of fact compiled
from the SSMH application, site review, public meeting and September 28 meeting.

Paula went through the findings of fact section by section.
Jack moved that board accept Sections 1 through 4 as written with a second by Bill G. Vote passed 7-0.

In Section 5A, Requested Use, Leah asked for clarification on which portion of the building and land fall into the
Resource Protection zone. A footnote was added noting that the 26 Mill Stream Zone map would be added to
the record. Don moved that with those changes that Section 5A be approved. Seconded by Bill B. All approved.

In Section 5B, Change of Use of Nonconforming Structure, information provided by the abutters for B3 was
found credible. Jack moved that the conclusion be accepted. Bill B. seconded. Vote passed 7-0.

In Section 5C Site Plan Review Criteria, changes to number 7, Wetlands, were suggested. Jack moved those
amendments be approved. Jan seconded. Approved 7-0.

Also in Section 5C, changes were suggested to numbers 13 and 20 and agreed upon.
Jack moved that numbers Section 5C be accepted as amended. Seconded by Bill B. Approved 7-0.

In the final section, D, Applicable Criteria, number 15, the word “specific” was removed.




Section 16, which states solid waste must be in an enclosure, was reviewed and the previous determination was
reversed. The applicant now meets this standard.

Don moved that Section 5D Article 8 criteria be accepted as amended. Bill B. seconded. Unanimous vote.

Paula asked everyone if there was anything else to be discussed before the final vote. There was not. Jack
moved that the application be denied. Bill B. seconded.

Paula noted the difficulties around this application and asked each board member to state their reasoning for
their vote. She spoke about the land use ordinance, which states that any change of use to a nonconfarming
structure will not have a greater adverse impact than the existing use. She said that standard is very clear, and it
is clear to her that the proposed use would have a greater impact. For those and other reasons she votes to
deny the application despite her support for the SSMH mission.

Bill G. spoke of his support for the idea, saying a safe space meeting house is a great idea, but this property is
not an appropriate location and the change of use will have too great an impact on surrounding properties, He is
voting to deny.

Jack said he agrees with everything that has been said. He appreciates the applicants’ mission and hopes they
succeed in doing it, but this is not the right location, especially considering the impact on neighbors Cotes. Votes
to deny.

Jan votes to deny for all the reascons stated in the written decision. She is also particularly concerned about the
noise and other effects of the proposal on this particular area. She also stated support for SSMH and their quest
to find a more appropriate location.

Henry is also voting to deny for all the reasons stated in the findings of fact. He said SSMH is a great cause but 26
Mill Stream is not the right place. He noted that this is why we have land use ordinances and such a thorough
process. All property owners have rights that the community has agreed upon. This is not an emotional
response, but a carefully thought-out decision based on the ordinances.

Bill B. said the project is one that every community needs, but it just doesn’t fit this place. He votes to deny.

Don agrees that SSMH is a great idea, but there are just too many conditions that cannot be met even under a
conditional approval. Votes to deny.

Final vote was 7-0 to deny the application.

Kristin asked that a vote be taken to authorize Paula to sign the findings of fact as amended. Don moved to
authorize that approval. Henry seconded. All approved.

Paula said the minutes from previous meetings would be discussed at the next meeting, which is scheduled for
6:30 p.m. on November 9.

Minutes prepared and submitted by Kristin Parks and Holly Rahmlow




READFIELD COMMUNITY LIBRARY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING
JANUARY 5, 2022

The meeting was called to order at 6:33 by Chair, Pam Mitchell. Meeting was held by Zoom.
Pam Mitchell, Jen Bonnefond, Sonya Clark, Brenda Lake, Maureen Kinder, Pat Clark, Jackie
Drouin, Betty Peterson and Melissa Small, Librarian were present.

Excused was Deb Peale.

Secretary’s Report: November minutes were approved.
Treasurer’s Report: Sonya presented the December and Second Quarter Report and both were
approved.

Old Business:
e COVID Updates: No changes in our procedure. If Melissa feels a change should be
made, she will contact the Board and Eric for approval.
e Wi-Fi Updates: The Wi-Fi has been fixed. Yah!
¢ Christmas Tree Lighting: Despite COVID, this event was a success.
e Grants Updates:

1. ARSL Grant for $4,965.00 was received. This will be used for upstairs patron
workstations and technology, materials for cutreach, and teen and children’s
author events.

2. AARP Community Grant: This grant for Library lawn furniture will be arriving
shortly.

3. ARPA Grant for $2,500.00 has been received by the town. This grant is to be
used for technology and outdoor programming-related expenses.

New Business:

o Policy Review Committee Report: Postponed till next month.

¢ Marisha: Marisha, our intern for the fall did a great job. Melissa enjoyed working with
her and the projects she worked on and the support she provided the library was
extremely valuable.

e Cake Pans: Will be circulating soon.

e Beanstack Reading Challenge: The Readfield Library is part of this program through the
Maine State Library. Details of this program can be found in the Messenger. Melissa
has had 12 people sign up already.

Librarian’s Report:

* library Board of Trustees Meeting Zoom links: We will continue using the
Networkmaine Zoom account for our monthly meeting.

* Town Email and Privacy Related Issues: The Town has had issues with sending and
receiving emails during the month of December. Melissa will be adding a message
below her email signature regarding Freedom of Access Act.

e Ancestry Library: As of January 1, 2022, Ancestry Library is no longer accessible from
home, only from within a public library.

e Library Park: Kents Hill School students, Marianne and John Perry, and other volunteers




and town staff helped clean up the park behind the Library. It is much appreciated.
¢ New Signs: The Historical Society Sign and the new hours sign have been hung.

e Upcoming Programming and Events:

1.
2.

©®ND YA W

Reading Challenges with Beanstack: Already mentioned.

Story Time: This program will take a winter pause through March. However, the
first Tuesday of the month at 9:30 we will continue to meet outside at the Story
Walk. Will also have a Saturday or late afternoon Story Walk.

Tuesday, January 4, 9:30 — 10:30 — Story Walk outdoors.

Monday, January 17, 6:00 pm — Full Moon Snowshoe/Hike.

Wednesday, January 19, 1 pm — Better Business Bureau Info Table.

Saturday, January 22, 10-11 am — Group Story Walk and Story Time.

Tuesday, January 25, 3-4 pm — “Revised Robert Burns Celebration.

Monday, January 31, 6:30 pm - Library Book Group meeting by Zoom.

. Tuesday, February 1, 9:30 — 10:30 am — Group Story Walk & Story Time.

10 Saturday, February 5, 10:00 am-4:pm — Take Your Child to the Library Day.
e Programing/Events Statistics for November, 2021:

1.

NowukswN

8.

Story Time: Met five times with an average of 9 attending.
Author Book Sale/Signing: 17 attended.

Writers Group meeting: 2 attended.

November Book Group: 7 attended.

Hannukah Celebration: 9 attended.

New Library Cards for November:

Curbside service: 3.

Home Deliveries: 2

® Programming/Events Statistics for December 2021:

1.

0w NG U AW

Annual Tree Lighting: Estimated count attending 100.

Teen Challenge Treat Day: 13 attended.

Story Walk and Story Time: 4 meetings, average attending 6.
De-Stress the Holidays: 5 attended.

Compost Workshop: 11 attended.

Girl Scouts info Table: 1 attended.

New Library Cards for December: 2.

Curbside Service: 4.

Home Deliveries: 1.

10 Facebook Followers: At the end of December we had 484 followers.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:54.
Next meeting will be held on February 2, 2022 by Zoom.

Respectfully submitted,
Betty Peterson, Secretary




November 10, 2021

Readfield Broadband Committee meeting
Location: Zoom (remote)

Attendees: Dyer, Wells, Tarbuck, Woodsum
Guests: n/a

Wells called the meeting to order at 18:45

Moved by Woodsum, seconded by Tarbuck, the motion to approve the prior meeting minutes was unanimous.

WKLCBA news; Wayne is back in the consortium. Fayette may be moving out of the process w/ WKLCBA. Had a meeting
regarding forming an interlocal agreement with Kristen Collins from Preti-Flaherty. Collins said that each town would
need its citizens to vote to approve the interlocal agreement at town meeting. There is a request for proposals (RFP)
being prepared now that would consider options from vendors to meet broadband speed and service requirements
instead of dictating a specific technology to achieve those goals (e.g. fiber or wireless or cable).

The pole inventory for Readfield has been done and available on GIS (geographic information system). The total cost was
a bit less than quoted. The pole inventory covers 100% of the town. Lippold will provide a report to Readfield soon.

Spectrum has not yet provided Dyer w/ budget numbers. Dyer will follow up soon to nudge them along.
Spectrum did reach out to Dyer to discuss why Readfield was looking at the other branch of Spectrum.
S50k from ARPA is still in play for Readfield to help fund broadband efforts

How does the recent approval of the infrastructure bill impact broadband for Readfield? Funds will go first to unserved,
then underserved, then to upgrade customers to 100 down / 10 up. It’s a five year plan with funding released starting in
June, 2022.

Notes re infrastructure bill relating to broadband:

The House of Representatives has passed the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act, the Senate is expected to
pass it, and we know President Biden will sign it. It is a $1.2 trillion bill that includes $65 billion for broadband.
The infrastructure programs in this bill are being developed and administered by the National
Telecommunications and Information Administration (NTIA), an agency of the US Department of Commerce.
NTIA will also administer the Digital Equity Grant Programs. The Federal Communications Commission (FCC) will
administer the Affordable Connectivity Program, a new version of the Emergency Broadband Benefit Program.
Below is an overview of the components of the bill with links to more information.

Broadband Equity, Access, and Deployment Program (And the Need for Better Broadband Maps)
e Construct and deploy broadband networks to unserved and underserved areas plus other uses --
$42.45 billion
e Federal Communications Commission (FCC} is charged with developing new broadband maps that are
needed for the Broadband Equity, Access, and Deployment Program -- they are expected in 2022.
e States can apply for these funds which are meant to supplement, not supplant a state’s broadband
deployment funding.




e Eligible subgrantees: cooperatives, nonprofit organizations, public-private partnerships, private
companies, public or private utilities, public utility districts, or local governments

e Subgrantees must provide a 25 percent match which “may” include in-kind contributions.

e Network service must be not less than 100 megabits per second for downloads and 20 megabits per
second for uploads

® Provide access to broadband service to each customer served by the project that desires broadband
service.

e Low-Cost Plans -- new networks will also be required to offer at least one low-cost broadband service
option for eligible subscribers.

® Prioritizing Use of Funds -- States are to prioritize use of funds on first, unserved locations,
second—after ensuring coverage of all unserved areas—underserved areas, and third—after
addressing all unserved and underserved areas—community anchor institutions. Further, states are to
prioritize persistent poverty counties and high-poverty areas, the speed of the proposed broadband
service, the expediency with which a project can be completed, and a demonstrated record of and plans
to be in compliance with Federal labor and employment laws.

® Reporting requirements -- Not |ater than 90 days after receiving these funds, states are required to
submit reports to the NTIA that describe planned and actual use of funds AND outline the planned and
actual process of subgranting.

e NTIA will also distribute, subject to approval of covered applications, $4.245 billion (10% of total
allotment) to states using a formula concerning a state’s percentage of nationally unserved locations in
high-cost areas. Each state will receive at least $100 million. The remaining $37.356 billion will be
distributed to states using a formula concerning a state’s percentage of nationally unserved locations.

Investing in Middle-Mile Infrastructure
e Middle Mile Grants Program -- $1 billion. NTIA will create a program that makes grants on a
technology-neutral, competitive basis to eligible entities for the construction, improvement, or

acquisition of middle-mile infrastructure. The twin purposes are to 1) encourage the expansion and
extension of middle-mile infrastructure to reduce the cost of connecting unserved and underserved
areas to the backbone of the internet and 2) promote broadband connection resiliency through the
creation of alternative network connection paths that can be designed to prevent single points of failure
on a broadband network.

e Eligible applicants -- States, political subdivisions of a state, Tribal governments, technology companies,
electric utilities, utility cooperatives, public utility districts, telecommunications companies,
telecommunications cooperatives, nonprofit foundations, nonprofit corporations, nonprofit institutions,
nonprofit associations, regional planning counsels, Native entities, and economic development
authorities (or partnerships of two or more these entities)

e Middle Mile Grants will require matching funds; a grant may not exceed 70 percent of the total project
cost.

e The infrastructure must be capable of providing symmetrical gigabit broadband service to community
anchor institutions, including direct interconnect facilities that will facilitate the provision of broadband
service to anchor institutions located within 1,000 feet of the middle mile infrastructure.

e Networks built with funds from this program must offer interconnection in perpetuity (which is a long
time) with reasonable rates and terms to be negotiated with requesting parties.

e NTIA has 6 months to issue a notice of funding opportunity about the new program. Within 9 months
after that notice is issued, NTIA will make the grant awards.



e State Digital Equity Capacity Grant Program
o Grants to Develop State Digital Equity Plans -- $1.5 billion
o State Capacity Grants -- $1.44 billion, supports the implementation of State Digital Equity Plans
and digital inclusion activities.
¢ Digital Equity Competitive Grant Program -- $1.25 billion, support efforts to achieve digital equity,
promote digital inclusion activities, and spur greater adoption of broadband among covered populations.

Making Broadband More Affordable

® Emergency Broadband Benefit Program is renamed the Affordable Connectivity Program, it becomes
permanent, and continues to be administered by the FCC -- $14 hillion

e Broadband providers will receive up to $30/month (the Emergency Broadband Benefit is currently
$50/month) for providing service to low-income households.

e The FCC will also give a broadband provider up to $100 if a household purchases one of the provider’s
connected devices (laptop, desktop, or tablet computer) for no less than $10 and no more than $50.

e Providers must allow eligible consumers to apply their discount to any plan the provider offers to the
public.

e FCCwill issue consumer protection rules for Affordable Connectivity Program subscribers.

e Public awareness -- All participating providers will alert consumers to the existence of the program
whenever a customer subscribes to or renews a subscription to broadband service.

The recent vote in Readfield showed strong interest in broadband. The selectboard hasn’t discussed the results of the
recent vote as it hasn’t met since the vote. The next push is for the RFP to be sent out to get information to each town’s
broadband committee. Then the broadband committees would go to the selectboard and look for money to fund the
options. The hitch is they’ll need an interlocal agreement executed to fully work together and realize the most savings
for each community.

Fayette RedZone discussion. It's a 5G network created by Tarana Wireless which would be deployed by RedZone. It
requires the installation of 4 dishes on each cell tower. 10 GB fiber goes to each tower. Then each of the four dishes gets
a quarter of the 10 GB capacity. The claim is that the end user should see 100 mbps download / 10 upload all the way up
to 500 mbps download / 100 mbps upload. The arrangement is a public / private partnership. In the Fayette example,
the hardware costs about $1.4 M; Fayette would pay a third of that. This is a tiered service plan meaning you get better
speeds with higher cost plans. It's about 100 mbps / 25 mbps for $50 / month. There is a commitment period. In
Rockland it was beta tested. If Fayette approves it, they could see buildout within about six months.

At 19:34 Woodsum made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Tarbuck. The motion to approve was unanimous.

Next meetings were scheduled for Wednesday, December 22nd at 6:30 PM and Wednesday, January 26, 2022 at 6:30
PM.



APPOINTMENTS,
REAPPOINTMENTS, &
RESIGNATIONS




Readfield Select Board Ol - OFTCE USE
= )
February 15, 2022 TOWN OF READFIELD ofalaceD
I #22-100 '
o DATE FlECEI\II.".ED/C’,-)’-}CD

APPOINTMENT APPLICATION

The Select Board shall not discriminate against an applicant based on religion, age, sex, marital status, race color,
ancestry, national origin, sexual orientation or physical or mental disabilities. The Select Board may exclude from
consideration any applicant with physical or mental disabilities only when the physical or mental handicap would
prevent the applicant from performing the duties of the appointment and reasonable accommodation cannot be made.

The Select Board shalj have final authority over the appointment of citizens to Boards, Committees and Commissions
that are instruments of Town Government, The Select Board shall not appoint an applicant to a position for which the
applicant will likely have a frequent or recurring conflict of interest,

Please check one: X 1* time appointment re-appointment
Which Board, Committee or Commission
are you applying for? - Term:
Tz (< An 1’1

Name: M‘Q%Qn LQQJQQ‘POHQ | Phone (H): ‘
Street address: _9( (4 .o/ Rd Ilgggﬂ,}gu Phone (C): _2071 - 5/3 - 793¢

Mailing address'Mu_dL A4 Resd ?-nu/l ME
E-Mail:_ﬂ_e%_g_g_,_ni_._]__@_olnfaejlt @')3 Mq;l. Con

Below please tell us of any experience and/or training that might be useful in this position.

Y by el Lo A fueJVE.<-(-q_+€5$

E’sff’\QA’ F\a.‘ne St ?m{‘k ?\qngﬁr ( Vclunro,ef ('G(T{?'Jnncﬂ‘ﬁr R’-Ar“

edads 1% neLeSacy

Below please tell us the reason you are interested in applying for this position,

t,l“-\ an__OVTA ‘”evter lﬂLQ S _aveve. ol ke 15‘0 Aantn tf‘qus

for best ufe. DA love o help make RecdVield temil é;(éﬁ:ﬁ e
oleSpha i, SoX all Livers M Centml mMaine,

if you are currently émploved, what is your position?

-QQ,:CL TP Sor ﬁanqua\ Cd:\\lc r"CJP
aS5Saciocte




APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT FOR:

g)_(g]ggiaoa%
Name: M{g&h ( ) “g'Position: Nrals Q%m]'rerm: /.41,\&/

; 7
"By signing this application for this position the Applicant understands and agrees that the information contained in this
application is required by law to be available for public viewing and agrees to hold the Town of Readfield harmless from
any misuse of the application information by anyone viewing it. As a member of this board, committee or commission

Check onel

| approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on the Town's public sites and publications.

I DO NOT approve the use of my e-mail and phone numbers on any of the Town’s public sites or publications.

ﬂg Date:

SN EENEESEENERESANEEEESEERNER SRR AN A N AN RN RN NN R RN NN NSRRI N NN NN N RN R AN RS R RN PR NN N AN RN SN NE RN FEE NN IR NI RN AN R RN RNEEREEEEEE

CLERK’S USE BEFORE THE APPOINTMENT

Name:

Please check one: 1* time Appointment Re-Appointment

Was this position advertised? Yes D No If no, please explain:

Confirmation from Applicant of attendance at Select Board Meeting if required.

;’Desdo\,%' e ooy \6““} AR E A0

SELECT BOARD APPOVAL
To Wﬂ Wﬁﬁ. of Readfield, in the County of Kennebec and State of Maine: There
being a position on the a‘_\_‘ ':O :\; g ZQ:C - :1 - a iEFZ o we the Select Board of the Municipality
of Readfield do, in accordance with the provisions of the laws of the State of Maine, hereby appoint you to

said position within and for the Municipality of Readfield, such appointment to be effective:

O h-a"] aQ ' thru [o)30)20a)  Given under our hand this , day of : ,20__.
Dennis Price Ralph F. Eno, Jr. Sean Keegan
Carol Doorenbos Kathryn Mills Woodsum

CLERK'’S USE AFTER THE APPOINTMENT

Chair has been notified of appointment? tes jNo If yes, what date:

Is an Oath appropriate: i IYes DNo If yes, what date




OLD BUSINESS




Readfield Select Board
February 15, 2022
ftem # 21-068

RESERVED




Readfield Select Board
February 15, 2022
ltem # 22-89

FY 23 BUDGET - DRAFT

Last Updated February 11, 2022

Draft 2

2/11/2022




zzoz/11/t

%L£9'9T 98€'8 $  £0L'8S $ Liv'se $ 1zE'0s $ 19042 S £20ve $ 75189 s SDIUAIDY 'R ‘S)aed ‘UOIIRIIIDY - OF
%09°EES 8997 $ B89T'E S ¥8LT $ 00S s 9l S £99'T $ 889 3 SlIledl g
%606 0st S 000°€ S 8LT S 0SLT S O0EST S 08P $ 66TE $ saipadold UMOL g
%080 0s $ 00g9 $ €68T S 000529 016 $ - $ 8LE'9p s UOISS|WILWIO] UOIIBAIISUOD (g
%00'ZE 009'T $ 0099 $ 01T's $ 000'S $ 000t $ v06'L s - $ sheqg afeluaH gz
%09° 7T PILT S 00E'TE S S8LYV $ 985'8T $ 8I0'% $ T89S A A S pieog UoNe3.d3Y oz
%Iv'9 ¥OT'T $ 6EE'ST $ 9796 $ SETUT $ 98TV $ 1678 $ 6£06 $ yoeag ot

S3I1AINY B ‘SHJed ‘UOIIE3IIDY - OF

% £202-2202 $ £20Z-2202 139an8 €202 "2A <= ALAZT0Z  1390N9 7202 TVNLIV TZ0T IVNLIV 0202 TVNLIV 6T0Z NOISIAIQ IN3IW1YYd3IQ

%9°L- (g9£'s) S £0.'69 S 8898 S 99v'sL S 0sZ'v9 S ZEE'E9 S I6T9L $ s2213S Alunwiwo) - g
2 08 $ 00§ S SEC S 0zv $ OTT'T g = 5 = S weq 9xe7 J000BURBIBIN og
: (000's) S = $ viZ'sy $ 000 $ - $ - s - $ puegpeoig gy
%ST 18- (osz'e) S 0S¢ S 80z $ 000t S EEvE $ SL09 $ 0709 $ S1Y811 323415 g9
%9T'T 091 S swT'L $ T196C $ S80°L S ¥LI9 $ SLEE S 0¥y 3 AL $5920¥ 21|qNd PI2Ype3Y g
%8761 29Tt S BI6'MY S vz8ot $ 999'L€ $ 006°9€ S vTvLE S 8ISTY s Aeign gy
%9L - (ooT) $ 0002 $ EELS $ 001T $ 0ST S 61 $ 59g's $ Alpuauy 88y g
%00°0 - $ 00S¥ $ 9zT'y $ 005 $ szEv $ 108'% $ szev g 902 A3||eA J2GauULdY g7
%00'0 - $ 0st § $ 0st $ 05T $ 0st s - $ 1SNJL puet 39gauud) gz
%EDYE- (ST6'%) $ 0€s'6 S L8F'F $ Sty $ 0T6'TT $ STLTT S EPSTI $ [043U0) |ewWiUY g

$22IAJ2S ALIUNWIWO)) - §Z

% €202-2202 $£207-TT0T  1390N8 £20Z '29Q <= QLA T20T 139an4g zzoz VN1V TZ0Z VN1V 0202 IYNLOV 6T0Z NOISIAIQ LINIWLIYVd3Q

%69°2¢Z §88°2¢ S 008'LLT S T06'6S S SIGE'bPI $ v9z'IZL $ 692021 $ 8£T'60T S 3JuBUAUIBN - ZT
%000 : $ 000528 680y S 0sc’8 $ 60T $ 6229 S vov'S §  OUEUSIUIEW "CINDI /3PIYAA o
WTL VY 0s0'91T S 00°056'1S LTLTT S 006'SE S B8IV'EE S 9ST'sh S TSE'BE S aoueualuieln Sulp|ing oz
%TL9T SE8'9T $ 00009211 989'€y $ S9L°001 $ LES'SL $ 588'89 S I8Y'Y9 $ SIUBUBIUIBIN |BI3URD QT

9IUBUDIUIBIAl - 7T

% £202-2202 S €£202-7202 139aN4g €207 230 <= Q1A TTOT 13nang zzoz IVNLOV 1202 IYNLOV 0202 1YNLIY 6T0T NOISIAIQ ANINLYYd3a

%59'6 ZE8'65 S 0£6'6L9 S LLL'W6T S 860°079 $  1ZZ'O8Y $ LzT'ivh $ SOT'06% s uonensiuiwpy - 0T
%00°00T 000°sz S 000°0S S LT6'8 S 000'sg S L¥8'6 ¢ 8¥8'6T $ 06I'ST 3 So0IAIDS €897 g/
%00’ - $ 0057 $ LE6 $ 0057 $ oL S 96S'T - 5 FOUEISISSY AUNREH ()
%L9° T (000°s) $ 000L S SET9 $ 00071 $ - $ - $ 0S8's $ Sujuueld g Sunum IuRID g
%00°05- (0s) $ 0S S % $ 00T S GET S ® S ‘ S pieog sjeaddy g
%ELL- (s8) $ ST0T S TEL S 00T'T S 66¥ S - $ STt S pieog Suiuueld gp
%L6'9 SPE’S S 09028 S 08g'ee S STL'9L $ 887'sS S LST16T $ 00129 S JuaWaojul 3P0D g
%YEST 0009 S SL96Z S L96'TT S SL9'tt S 1ZTTT S Tes'L1 S TLT8T S Buissassy g
%89'Z 081 $ 006'9 $ s9z'e $ 0zL'9 $ ELL'S $ S0 $ vI6'S S awdinb3 2dIY0 ¢t
%19t 7969 S SL8'LST S 6v6'LL $ €EI6°0ST $ BET9TT S T1Z6'6TT S EBLTIT S [ouednsu| zT
%89'9 08112 S §S8'TvE S 986'TST S GLE'TIE $ 8£9°092 S 6ST'9VZ S Z96'65T S uonensiuiwpy g1

UO0I3eSILIWLPY - 0T

% £202-7202 S £20Z-720T  1390Nd €207 '23Q <= QLA TT0T 13nang zzoz TVNLIV TZ0Z TYNLIV 0202 IVNLOV 6T0Z NOISIAIQ LN3IWL1Y¥VYd3a

sasuadx3 €207 Ad




zeoz/1t/e

%00'8 6S0°LLT S PETOvLE $ BI9TELT S SET'EIV'E S 806°PE9'E S PBEOTLE S 096'9SS‘E S uonedINp3 - 5L
%00'8 650°LLZ s veLovL's $ BI9TELT S SET'EIE $ B06'PEYE $ PEEDTL'E $ 096'9S5'E S 8E# NSY 0T

uoneanpy -G/

% £202-2202 $ €202-2202 139and €20Z 230 <= A1A 20T 139ang zzoz VNIV 1202 VNIV 0202 TYNLIV 6102 NOISIAIQ LININLYYd3a

%8S 016°8T S SLS'TPE S S8£'09T S S99'€ZE $ T198'80€ S TL8T8T $ 9vz'Tet S 9ISE/M PIjOS - 0L
%00°0 = $ 00SC $ 999 $ 00ST S LOLT S TBET $ 01s'8 $ aoyydeg pg
%68'S 016'8T S SL0OvE $ 6CL6ST $ S9T'TTE S ¥ST'Z0E $ 18v'08T S 9EL'€8T $ uonels aysuell o

215/ PI1OS - 0L

% £202-2202 $ £202-2202 139an4 €202 '29a <= 1A ZZ0Z 131sang zzoz TWNLIV 1202 VNIV 0202 IVNLOY 6T0Z NOISIAIQ LININLYVdIa

%St°S6T L6S'P9L'T $  654'£99°C $ Sop'ZE S 8S8'706 $ EE0'SLO'T $ bIZ'62S S EL5'96T S syuawanosdw| (eyde) - 59
» - s - 5 = 8 = 5 - $ LEB'T6T S TPS'9E $ Weq T H000RURBIEN o
- - $ = 3 < 3 = $ QzE'T $ =2 $ & 4 sjuawanoidw| Suip|ing umo] S8
%Y L1781 S 8059 S SIY'T S 189ty $ t08'6T $ 9LT'LT S TIT'Z9 S uonels Jagsued] oy
%0 ) S LLT9 S LLT9 S L1179 S ) 5 = $ 8ET9T $ sasea] |ende) gg
%0 - $ 000'ST s - $ 000'sT $ LIT'9 s - $ Sov'st g Juswdinby gg
%LT- (0002L) $  000°0sE $ = S 0o0o0‘zEv S TPO'IER S EPT'LE S 8069 ) SPeOY g5
= (000°St) S ¢ g = S 000'st s - s - s - $ $3|eM3pIS og
%00T 000°s $ 00001 S - $ 000's S = S = S 0678 S Ampwad gy
= 0000 $  000°0S & = $ 00001 s - s - s - s 22eds uado ¢
; (000°s€) $ 000°ST $ - $ 00005 $ LLTTY $ 1879 $ 6867 $ Buipiing Areiqn og
= 000°ST¥ $  000°00S S €789 $ 000°s8 S S9LT S - $ SSO'T $ uones409y g syled g7
5 000°01T $ 00002 $ S9E'TT $ 0000T S - S 04§ $ 659 S IIeH 3!9 gg
- (000"00%2) S 3 S = $ 000°00T S TBEVES S 9E6'PST S SLEULT S uonippy uoieis allf zt
- - S - S - S - S - S - S - S uonels all4 g1
= 000005 $ 0000TS S 5799 $ 00001 $ 0019 S 0899 $ - S juswpedsgaiy g
- 0LL'SET'T $ 0LL'SET'T s - S - S - $ = $ - $ }duI3iu| pueqpeolg z
2 0006 $ 0006 S e S = $ L9T'ET S - $ 0009 $ ASojouyda ‘ulwpYy T

sjuawanoJdw] jeude) - g9

% €202-2202 S €202-2202 1394aN4g €202 ‘920 <= QLA TZOT 139an8 720z IVNLIV TZ0T IVNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIG AINIWLHVdIQ

%8E'8T 008'9L S 0S9'vev S E86'EVT S 0S8'LTb S SIT'OTE S E6TLZE $  T.S'P6E S aSeuielq g speoy - 09
%59°97 000°8L $ 0S9°0/€ $ 0Z00ET S 059'T6C S LTTP9T S L£6°09T S TE9'T9T $ JdueUBUIRIN JBUIM o
%96~ (00Z'T) $ 000'veT S €96'El $ ooz'seT $ 8¥6'SYy $ 95299 $ Ov6'TET $ @JUBUAUIBN PEOY QT

28eulelq 13 SpeoyY - 09

% €202-2202 $ £202-220T 1390aN49 €20T "2d <= Q1A TZ0T 139an4 7oz TVNLOV TZ02 TVNLOV 0202 IV¥NLIV 6102 NOISIAIQ IN3IN1YVdIq

%01 ¥T- (00Z‘E) S 00S'6T S ££8°9 $ 0oLzt $ 800°91 $ zov'g S 99901 S $311213Wa) - 05
%bT- (ooz’s) S 00561 $ €£89 S 00LTT $ 800'9T $ or'e $ 99901 $ SalBIBWa] UMO]

$31133aWa)) - 0S

% £202-2Z0T $ €202-2202 1390N9 €207 220 <= Q1A 20T 139ang zeoz IVNLIV TZ0Z IVNLIV 0202 IVNLOV 6102 NOISIAIG ANIWLYYdIQ

%E9'9 0rZ'0T $ SLS'V9T S T08'L9 S GEE'PST S 6L8'61T S 6TS'SIT S v68'6YT s uo01323304d - OF
- 00s $ 000'T s - $ 00S S E s - $ suonesadg Aussiews oy
%b8'8 0sz's $  000°0F $ S0L'ET $ 0sL'oe $ £95'sE $ o/g'Ee $ 61972 $ Suiymedsia pyp
%000 - S 0857 S w6V S 0SSy S 69T°T S SE9L S WLEL S SIUS IAMOL gg
%TC0T 068°E $ 000Ty S SSO'6T S OTT'8¢ S T9T'ZE S o9z S 09%'sT S auenquiy gz
%6t'E 009°C $ STO'LL - TAN4 S SIV'vL S 78605 S SBILLY S 16¥'v6 S juawiedagally gt

Uu0112210.d - Of

% €202-2202 $ £202-2202 139aN9 €20T 224 <= QLA ZT0T 139an8 zzoz VN1V 1202 TVNLIV 0202 VN1V 6102 NOISIAIQ ININ1HYdIa

S9suUadx3 €707 Ad




zeoe/it/e

%0°0€ £06'v60°C S 69£'890°6 $ TIS6'E0T'E S 99v'EL6'9 S 8Z0°0£9'9 S LS5'4p0‘9 $ B9E'STO9 $ IvlOL

%00°05- (000's) $ _000's S ¥96 S 000°0T $ TIZ $ 88T $ 289 S 3JUB)SISSY |BIBUID - §6
%00°06- (00075) $ 000S $ 196 $ 00001 S 112 $ 881 $ 289 $ IIUEISISSY |BISUSD (T

9JURISISSY [BJAURD) - 56

% £202-2202 $ £202-2202 139an4 €202 234 <= ALA 2Z0Z 135and zzoz VN1V 1202 IVNLIY 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIG LNIWLYVdId

%1r9°09- (80£'8LT) $ BYL'STI S LLB'6T S 950'v6T S EEEOV S [9€'9T S 9SEZE $ payisseppun - 06
%00°09- (0009) $ 000 s - $ 00001 s - s - s - S uoRenieAY g
%00°0 = $ 00001 s - $ 00001 $ 000'ST g - $ - $ pung asudialul playpesy g
%I TT 64T S 8rL'T $ 6951 $ 695°T $ 9Lv'T S WrET S LLE'T S duijigowmous gg
%00'0 - $ 000'sg S 7 $ 000°sT $ 6YE9Q $ S8 S 6r0'E ) Aousdunuod gy
%0T'€ S9% S 000'sT S SLE'ET $ SES'PI S s8Iyl S BPIEI S 9E0'vT $ seiusdy 140Jd-UON (7
%0070 = & 0000T g - $ 000°0T $ - m €8¢ m, - $ JENEN] xe] Apadoud [ea0] ST
%BLS LL- (zse'zLT) S 000'0S S €67 $ TS6'TTT S ETTE S UV'E $ SB8ET ¢ (yedpianp /juswaleqy) Aepsang g

paljisse|dun - 06

% €20Z-720T $ £202-7202 139aN4 €202 "220 <= Q1A ZZ0Z 139an4 7zZoz TYNLOV TZ02 TVNLOV 0202 IVNLOV 6T0Z NOISIAIQ ININLEVdIa

%T6'6T S9v'LE S 689791 S vr9'TIT S vZT'sel S EV6'ES S 95§'SL S T9TvIE S 2JIAI35 33 - 58
- 7eT'se $ 0ES0g s - $ 80v's s - s - $ - $ puUog NN TZ0Z o8
3 (tot) S 8LE'SE S 899TH S Thb'ov S 9vv's S s ) 2 ¢ \ed pg0z) pUog "PIINg IUNIN 0Z0Z 08
» - S # S % S - S = s = S E€E89ST $  (yoAed gT0T) PUOE PEOY B00Z O
%00°C - (s8€) S L5881 S STLUT S TrT'6T S vI9'6T S EL6'6T S 0T ¢ J2) weq 3N (e7o0dRURIBN (f
- - S - S = 5 = S - g - S LIT'60T ¢ (pohed 1707) puog peoy €107 sz
- - $ 0001 s - s - s - s - s - $ puog |edidIUNA €20Z €7
%6YT - (808) S pre'es S T9C'Es S CET'YS S €88'%S $ €85'SS S 8ET'9S $ (yyoAed €z0g) HaniL 314 o

2JIA9S 193] - 68

% £202-220C $ £202-2202 139an49 £20Z *22Q <= ALA ZZ0Z 139an49 7Z0Z TYNLIV T20Z WNLIV 0202 VNIV 6T0Z NOISIAIQ ININ1HVY4IA

%00° - $ EWL'6IE $ EvL'6IE S EvL'6IE $  9v8'00E $  66E'S8T $  169'99Z $ xe] Ayunoj - 18
%00°0 - $ SPL6IE S EvLBIE S EPL'BIE S 9¥8'00E S B6ESST $ 769992 $ xe] Ajunoj 33gauuay oz

xel Alunod - I8

% £20Z-ZZ0Z $ €20Z-2202 1390N9 €202 220 <= QLA ZT0T 139an4g 0T IVNLIV TZ0T IVNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6T0T NOISIAIQ IN3INLYYdIa

%0°Z 000'T $ 000°0s S S65'ZE $ 000'6V S 0Ly S £65°Lv $ 9lT'9F $ suoijeziuedig |euol3ay - 08
%00°0 ® $ 000°sZ S LE99T $ 000'ST $ LETWT S 96L'%T $ L60WT S Hed 34 oy
%LT'? 000°T $ 000'sZ $ 8S6'ST $ 0002 S L6LTT S L6LTT $ 6L0T2 $ LIS paysiele 99550GG0) (T

suoljeziuedlQ |euolday - 08

% £202-220T $ £202-7202 1350N9 £20Z 920 <= ALA ZZOT 139an4 720z TYNLIV TZ0Z TVNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIQ LNINLYVdIA

sasuadxj €707 Ad




zeoz/ii/e

%0°0€ €06'V60'T S 69£'890°6 $ TS6'E0T’E S 99t'€L6’9 $ 8Z0°'0€9'9 S LSSLP0'9 $ 89E'STO9 $ 1vLlOl
%0°05- (000's) $ 000's S v96 $ 00001 S TIZ S 88T S 789 S BJUE]SISSY [BI2U3D - S6
%9°09- (80€'8LT) S 8WLSTT S LL8'6T S 9S0'v6Z S gegov S [9€0T $ 9SE‘CE S payissepun - 06
%6'67 S9V'LE $ 689791 S vroTIT S vTT'sTT S EV6'ES S 955'sL S T9T'vee S 221035 193Q - 58
%0°0 d S EVL6TE S EvL'61E S EbL6TE $  9¥8'00€ S 66£'S8T S ¥69'99T ) xe] Ajuno) - 18
%0°T 000°T $ 000°0S S S6STE $ 0006V S PEO'LY S E€65'Lb $ 9LT'9Y S suoneziuediQ |euoisay - 08
%08 6S0'LLT S vETOVL'E $ BI9TELT S SETEIV'E S BOB'WEY'E S P6EDTLE S 096'955E€ S uonesnpy - g4
%8'S 016°8T S SIS'TPE S S8E09T S 699¢€zE $ T98'80€ S TL8T8T S 9vTTeT S 915eM PIJOS - 0L
%t'S61 L6S'79L'T S SS¢°L99'T $ Sov'ze $ 858706 $ £E0'SL0'T $ vIZ'6ZS $ €45°96T S sjuawano.dw) |exde) - 9
%181 008’92 S 0S9'v6Y S EBBEVT S 0S8LIV S SLI'OTE $ EBT'LTE S TLS'VGE S adeuleiq g speoy - 09
%L T- (00Z'€) S 00561 $ ££89 $ 00L'T2 S 80091 S Tor's $ 99901 S S2LI3PW) - 0§
%9'9 ovz'oT S SLSPIT S T0%'L9 S SEEVST S 6L8'6T1 S 6¢S'STT S v68'6YT S uoi339304d - OF
%L°9T 98¢€'8 S £0L°8S S LLV'ET § TZE'0S S T90°LT S €207 S TSL'89 S S3NIAIDY 7 ‘SHyied ‘UOIIE3IIDY - O
%9°L- (€9£s) S €0.L'69 $ /8808 S 99p'SL S 0ST'Y9 S TEE'E9 S T16T9L S $82143S AJlunwiwo) - §7
%L'TT S88°CE $ 008°LLT S T06'6S S STE'WYT S v97'TZI S 69707t S 8ET60T S dueuajuleln - ZT
%96 7E8'6S S 0£6'649 S LLL'V6T S 860029 S 1ZT'08% S LTUThY S SOT'06v S uonelsiuIWpyY - 0T
% €20Z-Z20T $ €T02-TT0T 139an4d €202 "2d <= A1A TZOT 13oang zzoz IVNLOV TZ0Z IVNLIV 0202 TVNLIV 6T0Z AINJNLHVdIA

ISNIdXT - AHVININNS INJNLYYd3d

sasuadx3 €707 AJ




zeoz/ii/e

JDUBYSISSY |BIBUSD - 56
payIsseppun - 06 =

IARSIgag - S8 ™

xe] AJuno) - I8 m

suopjezjuediQ |euoi8ay - og m
uonedxnp3-s/m

dAseM PloS-0L =

sjuswanosdw| eyded -9 m
a8eulelq g SpeoY - 09 W
S91J918Wa) - S W

u01323304d - O @

S3I}IAIIY 7§ ‘$HIBd ‘UOIIB3IIBY - OE W
SIIAIRS AJUNWWOD - SZ |
DUBUIUIBIA - 2T

UOHBASIUIWPY - 0T W

Juawiedaqg Aq sasuadx3 198png £20¢

ESIISES
gag -sg =

xe] Ajuno) - Tgm
suoneziuesiQ
|euoiday - o8 m

uonednpy-s/m

S1SEM PIlOS - 0L =

sjuawanoldw| %9y m
leyudeD -som

%6°CT W
adeulelg

Y SPEOY-09m

S3UBRWID - S W
%L0 m
%97 =

uo1133310.d - OF B g,n-g %g'T
4 2

SIAILDY

B ‘syled or 7"

‘UDIIBAUIBY - OE M AL
LERILVES

Allunwwo) - sz m %L'C |

asuBUIIUIBIA %'l =
Ay | %L 0 m
uonensiuIwpy %T'CT W
-0Tm
%E0 =

juswedag Aq
sasuadx3] 198png zzoe

s95UadX3 £207 Ad




TT07/T1/2

%08~
%0t~
2] e : T S— T W e [ %0

_ %0°0 %07 %08 %8'S %9°9 %9'6 %0t
%6'6T %v'8T %L9T %LTT %08
%0ZT
%091

%00¢C
%P°S6T %0%T

juswpedaq Aq a8uey) % £20Z-2202

1390N8 €207 ® , — ’ — ' -s

139aNng ZzoZm .
000°000°T$

000°000°2$

000°000°€S

000°0007$

Juawiedaq Aq sjeiol £z0z-2z02

sasuadx3 €207 Ad




TToT/1T/T

(80E'8LTIS

(ooz’g)s

(€9275)5

(000's)$ m

TR

L

Sov'LES

0T6'8TS 0rz'0rs 98€'8S

S88'TES

008'9/5

Z£R'ASS

6S0°LLTS

L6579LTS

juswpedaq Aq asuey) § £202-220T

000°00€%-
0000025
0000015~
0s
000°00TS
000°002$
000°00€S
000°00%S
000°00S$
000°009%
000°00£5
000°008%
000°0065
000°000°TS
000°00T'TS
000°002°1$
000'00ETS
000°00t‘TS
000°005°TS
000'009°'1S
000°00£'TS
000°008°1%
000'006'T$

$95U3AX3 £70T A4



7z0z/11/t

%9°E 80€‘T $ SI6LE S 8IT'1E S 1999t S LTL'Te $ 868'TZ $ T0S‘0L $ SIDIAYIS ALINNWINOD ST
%0'0 " $ 000°0€ S LSEVT S 000°0€ S §S0°ST S SS6'PT $ 8780t 5 $334 ISIHONYYS AL 319V 0T0S
%00 E $ &zt $ 00T $ Szt $ 00T S 00T $ scI S suoiled say UoN Aeiqrl 0zZow
%b0- (2) $ 0S¥ $ st S sy $ ¥ST $ 9oTf $ BEY S SUOINQUILOY 3$aQ 044 Aueign) STOV
= (061) $ 00I'T S T0T'T $ 0621 $ 8sT $ TL0T $ L2121 S $d33004d 3TVS AYYHEN 0TO0v
%S 8E 00s S 0087 S 0799 S 00ET S 8T $ LEST $ TL0'LT S SNOILVYNQQ AYVYYEM S0P
- 000 S 0007 S 955'L S = $ 6IVT S = S 0008 S ATON3IY4 39V 000%
- - S - S 0z S - $ €€ S 0€ S SIT $ ANN4 NOILYNIDOVA 900 TTOT
- 2 S 00§ S 09€ $ 00071 S 09€ S S6L S 0§ S JulD salqey  TTOT
%0°02- (00s) $ 0007 S 798 $ 005 S w6l S 60T S LET'T 3 334 ISN3D11 HOA TOYLNOD TWWINY 0TOT

$3DIAY3S ALINMIWINOD ST

% €202-2202 $ £202-220T 1390aN49 €202 "230 <= 1A 7Z0T 139ang 7oz IV¥NLIV TZ0Z VNIV 0202 IVNLOV 6102 NOISIAIO ININLHYdIA

- (002) S - S - $ o0z $ - S 8LT S _8IT S BNVYNILNIVIA - 2T
2 (002) ST s - $ 00z s = S 8LI S 8IT $ XvL13INd otov

IDONVNILNIVIA - 2T

% €202-220T $ £20Z-2202 139ang £20Z "22Q <= QLA TT0T 139an4 220z IVNLOV TZ0Z VN1V 0202 IVNLIV 6T0Z NOISIAIG LINJWNLHVdIa

%L 6LE'VEY $ 8LE'9959 $ SkO'P6eS’S S B66'TET'9 $  995'€209 $ £S6'TEB'S $ TEE'TL9S $ NOILVYHISININGY -0T
- = $ 0009 S - S 0009 3 - S - S - $ spun4 isni] Jo asn £€0S
%T'E8 €86'60T S ESTTVT S - S 0LT'TET S - $ - $ - $ plemiod Alie) Jo asn TO0S
%002 000°0S S 000°00E ) = $ 000°0SZ S = S & S E ) spun4 paleusisapun jo asn  000S
%L 5997 S 008'8f S ¥99'8T $ SET'9E $ B80E'TT & - g = S 032 1¥D0TH3LNI 0v0E
%00 ~ $ 0009 ¢ pop'e $ 0009 $ vIZOT $ 6079 $ 996'S S $334 3SN ANY1 QZ0%
%00 - S 000's S €'y $ 000S S €869 S 008" S 0zr's S $334 ONIGINNTd 0TOE
%0°0 = S 00ST S EEET S 00ST S WrT'E S P6LT S LLTT $ 3juelsissy SunnesH S60T
%0°0 £ $ 000's $ E¥8E $ 000 S BE6TT S LI $ TL0'S S JWODNI ¥3HIO 060T
%0°0 . $ 00S'T $ TS0T $ 00ST S £0ST S TPST $ 8E9'T $ $334 AJOD d3141143D $90T
%00 = $ 0§ $ 0T8T $ 0% S 0S S Of S Of S $334 3SN3DI1SSINISNG  090T
- g $  00S [ $ 00S s - s = § = S $334 IDILON  950T
%0°00T- (ooT) $ - S T $ 001 $ 00T $ 00T $ 00T S SAV ¥3LL3ISM3IN  ¥SOT
%9°'SS 000°s S 000%T $ S8TL $ 0006 S CIT'9tT S 10Z'TT S TLS0T S 334 INJOV €SOT
%0°ET 000°SL $ 000059 $ 606°ZCE $  000°6LS S TT6'TOL $ 0ST'009 S $89'tLS $ S3IXVL I1DIHIA HOLOW ZSOT
%EET 000'T $ 00s8 $ 9¢6 S 00S'L S 9£7'6 S vL6'L $ S0SL $ S3IXVL13SIOX3 LVOE 1S0T
- - s - S BIL'SET g B s & . s - S 6T-0INOD TYOT
%L L- (evS) $ T0S9 S 9v0'L S 9v0'L S BLLL $ 199°CT S ZI9'st S LIN3INISYNEINIZY 3138 PEOT
%T'TT 000°T S 00001 $ 9.L'0T $ 0006 S T0E'8 S €558 S €606 S LININISUNENITY HLMOYD 3341 €E0T
%L L (6v0"9T) S 880°T6T S o0Lo'0zz S LET'S0T S E6POPEZ S 09t°08T S 896'SLT S NOILdINIX3 QV3ILSIWOH TEOT
%S LE- (00S'T) $ 00S8C S SPZ'T $ 000% S 98T $ T08C $ 068°€ S NOILdW3IX3 SNYY¥ILIA TEOT
%00 - $ 0009 § 659t $ 0009 S 8856 $ GBR'ET S 86ETIT S JWOONI LNIWISIANI TZ0T
%L 9T~ (000°s) $ 000sZ $ t00'0T $ 0000€ $ 06E'EE $ 798TE $ 9LEDE S SIXVL NO 1SIHILINI +10T
%EEE 000°SL $ 000°00¢ $ 8LETTT $ 000°sTe S OpSPIE $ 969°05C S LPEPST $ ONIHVHS INN3IAIY ILVLS €T0T
%L L- (LesT) S E6E'8T S 08661 $ 0€6'61 $ T196'1C S vISTE $ B6L'EE S XV1 ALYIdOdd T¥NOSH3d ZI0T
%0'E 09t'6ET S T6LSTLY S EvL'96S'Y S TEE98SY $ 620°665'% S wPE9LYY S [8L09'V S XVL ALY3dOYd 31V153 Tvad T10T

NOILVHLSININGY -0T

% £20Z-220T $ £202-2720T 1390aN49 €207 *224 <= 1A 2Z0Z 139ans 2202 IVNLIV T20Z IVNLIV 0202 IVNLOV 6102 NOISIAIO ANINLYYdIa

SaNuUaA3Y £Z0C Ad




zzoz/it/e

%S '8EE 9VE'099'T  $ 6/8'0ST'T  § Z0L'vEv $ €£S'06Y $ 8p'0T $  68T'v6S $ 1y8'89T $ SINIWIAOUIINI TYLIdYD 59
- = m. - m - m = m - m - m. 000°09T m weq a3eq J00JeUBIEIA (RS9
%0t 9.5 S 60T'ST S €L08 S E€EST S ¥8ror S 6819 S 1r8'8 S (suAem 73 a11@Ae4) uonels Jajsuel] 059
- (000"9€) S: = S $ 000'9€ s - s - 5§ = S $ilemapis 0559
- (000'st) S - S - $ 000'St S . S - s - $ spjalyjjeg $zs9
g = S = S 679'TT S = S = S 000'8LS S - S uoneuop + puog ("qi] +Q4) 3uip|ing  ¢159
- 0LL'SET S O0LL'SET S = S = S - S = S = S (42430 + VdY ) Slued9 puegpeolg Z0s9
%E 90V 0005091 $  000°000C $  000°S6E $  000°S6E S - S - $ - S $paado.d puog [edRIUNIAL 0059

SLNIWIAOUIWI TVLIdYD S9

% €£202-220Z $ £20Z-2202 135ana £207 930 <= ALA ZZ0Z 139ana zzoz WNLIV TZ0Z WNLOV 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIO IN3INILHYd3a

%S'ZT 000't $ 000'9€ S T/9'9g $ 000°Z€ $ PIEPE $ 095'9€ $ 90b'LE S adeuleiq @ speoy 09
2 - 3 - 3 - 3 - S 0ST s - S ©6LT 3 JWODINI AVMHOIH ozoz
%S'TT 000t S 000°9¢ S TL9'9€ S 000°CE S P9T'vE $ 096°9¢ S TI9'SE S JONVLSISSY A¥0d 1¥201 010T

adeulelq g speoy 09

% €202-220T $ €£202-T20¢ 1390N4g €202 224 <= QLA 20T 1390an4d zeoz IVNLIV T20T IWNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6T0Z NOISIAIG LNINLYVYdIa

i - S - S = S = S = S 00T S 00€ $ S31Y31IINTD 05
g - 5 F g s - s - $ 00T S 00E S suoneuod 0zos

$31¥313WID 0§

% €202-2202 $ £202-2202 139an4d €202 224 <= 1A 2Z0Z 139an9 ZzoZ VN1V TZ0Z 1YN1IV 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIQ LNINLYVd3a

%L L~ (0s2) $ 00Z'E $ 08I'TI S 0SP'E $ 00€'E $ 0L2's $ SI6°E $ NOILJ3LOHd OF
) - s - s - s - S - s - S 988 S wuedo Alajes g4 050V
%00 - S 00Z't S = $ 00Tt S 00T'T S 86 S 009'C S S9US JaMo] 00SE
%0°00T- (0s2) $ T S 062 $ 0St $ 00g $ gege $ 992 S dUJUO sHWIdd uing 04 SE0T
- - S - S 06801 S - S 008 S - S €Te S SNOILYNOQ ININ1¥Vd3Ia 344 010T

NOI1D310¥d 0%

% €20T-TZ0T $ €207-T20T 1390N4 €20Z "23a <= ALA TT0T 139ang zzoz IVNLIV TZ0T TYNLOV 0202 TVNLOV 6102 NOISIAIG 1N3N1YYdIa

%0°LZ- (016t) $ 00£'€l $ 66 $ 01Z'st $ PSOZT $ 09¢'61 $ 00S'6E S S3ILIAILDY B‘SHYVd ‘NOILYIHIIY OF
- - 3 - $ SST S - S 009 S 0£8C $ 00T 3 S|ledl QTOL
- = $ < $ 7 s - S 7 $ ) $ T9r'se $ SjuBJD / SUOIIBUOQ UOIIBAIISUOD STOE
i - 5 F $ SST s - S S 89t $ 99 $ S3TVS ISIANYHIYIW - QH  ££02
- (00s) S - S - $  00S S - $ - $ - $ |BJ0JJ33U| - pleOg 23y  £T0T
%6°E 09 S 0091 S # S 0psT $ 585 S 8.1 S T8ET S ||eqos - pieog 23y 9702
= 00S S 00S S 0087 S - $ 0101 s 2 $ or S NOILY3IH¥D3H YIHLO - Q4v09 234 S20Z
%T'TT 0s€ S 00S'E S SIv'E S 0ST'E S - S S90'% $ 060°€ S lleqiavseg - QYv09 234 ¥T0T
= (005'€) S 000T S §8S $ 00Sv S 0sw S - S - S ONIWWIMS - gdv0d D34 £20T
%87 00T S 002'T S 06L'T $ 001C $ - $ GS6'T $ SEIT S ¥3D00% - QY09 234 2702
%LT 08 $ 000 S - S 06T S ISP'C S oty S 6IST $ 11vg3Sve - QYv08 234 TZ0T
%1 LS (000°2) $ 00S'T $ BEE'T $ 005t $ 8S69 S v¥9'6 S 800L $ JWO2NI HOV3g 0T0T

SIILIAILDY 8'SHYVYd ‘NOILYIEI3Y OF

% £202-720Z $ £202-T202 1390N4d €202 2234 <= ALA ZZ0Z 135ang zz0z IVNLOV TZ0Z IVNLOV 0202 VN1V 6T0Z NOISIAIQ LINIWLHVdIa

SaNUBNIY £20C Ad




zzoz/it/e

%T 0E £06'V0T'T $ 69£'890'6 $ SE9'9SZ'9 S 99v'€96'9 $ 9TT'vZE'9 S 968'8TL9 S LES'TLT'9 $ IVIOL
%0°05- (00s5'2) $ 00S'T S " S 000s S = S EZET S 8LY S JONVLSISSY TYHINID S6|
%It 64T'T S 8WL'6T $ E0ST S 695'8C S BEL'T S 9Uv't S PrE'T S Qa314ISSVIINN 06
%E'S 1SS'TT S 68E°87¢ § G96'LPT S 8£89TT S PE6'STT $  089'90T S TWLLLT S 31SYM aI10S 0L
%S 8EE 9¥E‘099°T S 6L8°0ST'T S TOL'VTY $ €es06y S v8vorT $ 68T'V6S S Ty8'89T S SIN3IWIAO0YUINI TYLIdYD S9
%S'2T 000" $ 0009€ $ 7L9'9¢ S 000TE S PIEE S 095°9¢ S 90pLE $ adeujelq '3 speoy 09
- - S - s - $ - S - $ 00T S 00g $ $314313NID 05
%T L~ (0sz) S 00zt $ 08ITT S 0St'E $ 00f's S 0LT's $ GL6E S NOILD3LOYd OF
%0'LT- (016'7) $ 00g'eT S 6EE6 S 012’8t S ¥S02T S 09%'6T S 00S‘6E S SAILIAILOY 8‘SHUVd ‘NOILYIHIIY 0E
%9'E 80€T S SL6'LE $ 8TL'TE S £99'9g S LTL'ee S 868'IC $ 105°0L S SIDIAYIS ALINNIWINOD SZ
- (002) S = S » S ooz S = S 8.1 $ 8Tl S IDINVYNILNIVIN - ZT
%L 6LE'VEY S BL£'995'9 S Sv0'v6S'S S 666'TET9 $ 995°€T0'9 S £56'7E8'S S TEETL9S S NOILVHLSINIWNGY -0T
% €202-2202 $ €20Z-2202 1390aN4a €202 *32Q <= QLA 2T0Z 1390aN19 7202 IVNLIV T20T IVNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6T0T AINJWNLHVdIA
INNIATYH - AHVININNS ININIHYLIA
%2T0E €06't0T'Z $ 69£'890°6 $ S€9°9SZ9 S 99v'€96°9 $ 9IT'vZE9 $ 968'8TL'9 $ LESTLT'Y $ vLIOL
%0°0S- (005°7) $ 00ST S = $  000's S = S TET S 8LV S FINVISISSY TWHINID S6
%0°05- (00s2) S 00ST S S 000'S S - S CfT S 8Lt S INNIATY ILVIS-ISISSY 1¥4INID 0TOT
IDNVLISISSY TYHINID S6
% £202-2202 $ €202-7202 1390N8 €202 920 <= Q1A TZOT 139an8 720z VLIV TZ0T TVNLIV 0202 IVNLIV 6102 NOISIAIO AININIHYdIA
%Y 6T T S _8riee S €0s1T S 6958C S 6ELT s 9bT § WrET s RIS
E 0001 S 000t S €0ST $ 000T S 0L1 3 - 3 - s pun{ es1dia3u] playpeay  OT0b
%YL 6.1 S 8Ll S - S 6951 $ 695T S 9T $ tre'T S 5994 9|Iqowmous  OTOE
%00 - S 0o0'sz S B $ 000'st S = $ = S . S dNUINIY Nded 15414 0STT
@314ISSYIONN 06
% £202-220T $ £202-27202 1390aN49 €202 '223a <= 1A ZZ0T 139ang TzZ0z IVNLIV TZ0Z VNIV 0202 IVNLOV 6T0Z NOISIAID AININLYVdIA
%E'S 1SSTT $ 68£'82Z S S96'LPT $ B8ER9TZ $ VEG'STT $  089'90Z S TRL'LLT $ 31SYM aNos 0L
%8S L19'F S 1T0'v8 S TS0tv S P¥eE6L S 89v'oL S VET'TL S VLT'SL S JYVHS SINAVM - SINNIATY SL 0602
%LT PET'T S 8L0°L9 $ 8v6°9t S vw6'sy S 156'S9 S EETV9 S TET'6S S JYYHS ILLIAVS - SINNIATY SL 680L
: - S - S 00€0z S - S - S - S - S SINVYD S1 0S0L
%0°0b- (0072) $ oot S = $ 00S S = S 00S S 0St S SHUWIRd SJ2|NEH |B12JaWwo) OF0L
- v S = S - S & S g S = S = S JOHNDVE SL 0E0L
- 005 S 00S¢ $ pEST s - S - $ 00S S - S SuipAaay 1og 3j5uUIS 51 9TOL
- - S 00S S 9€g S 00S AT S L9% $ 19 S YIHL1O - SI19VIIAD3Y S1 SC0L
%0°0% 000t $  0007T S SYETT $ 000°0T $ SIT'ET $ 1566 $ L1901 S VLI - $318VIDADIY S1 €TOL
- (003) S - $ vyl $ 00S $ 8 $ ve $ 95 S 1SOdN0D/31DAD3H SL TZ0L
%00 - $ 00009 S 900'vE S 00009 S L£859 $ 90665 $ T8S1E S $334 NOILVLS HI4SNvHL 0T0L
JLSYM QI10S 02
% €202-2202 $ €£20Z-2202 139and €202 294 <= ALA ZZ0Z 139an8g 7202 IVNLIV TZ0T IVNLIV 0202 TVNLIV 6102 NOISIAI AININLYVdIa

SaNUaAly £20¢ Ad




TeToT/1T/T

JONVLSISSY TVYINID Sem™

Q34ISSVYIONN 06 =

JISYM A0S 0L =

SINIWIAOYdINI TVLIdVD S ™

a8euledq g speoy Q9 m

S31¥ILINID O0S W

NOIL310dd ovm

SIILIAILOY B'SHYVd ‘NOILYIYD3Y OE =

SIDIAYIS ALINNWIWOD Sz m

JONVNILNIVN -ZT

(uonpaisiurwpp buipn|axa)
juawpedaqg Aq anuanay 198png £20¢

Sanuanay £¢0¢ Ad

IONVLSISSY
TVHINID S6 =

Q34ISSYIONN 06 =

JLSVYM oS oL =

SLNIWINOYdINI
IV1idvD s9m

a8euleig
B Speoy 09 =

S3YILINTD OS =

NOILD310Yd Ov =

SIILIAILDY "8'SHYVd
‘NOILY3IYD3Y oem

$3DINY3S
ALINNWINOD SCm

JONVYNILNIVIAN - ZT =

(uonpaisiuiwpn buipn(axa)
1uawiaedaqg
Aq 2nuanay 198png zzoe




zeoz/it/e

° ] N 4
IDNVLSISSY TY¥INID S6 ™ o S P P ~
o © & o &&oy & ¢ &
Q314ISSYIINN 06 ® &2 o o > & & & 3 & & &
Aw) AVA/ \/O..d O..VNV .mVrvO \w\u :VV . o JVV¢ 2 r%r
3LSYM aI0S 0L = n%mu %b .,.vo/ 494 o AV owmu RS & .%ww/ o
Q¥ © 5\ 3 s o> & & 3 ) 3
3 & S NG S N N
SIN3INIAOUdNI TVLIdYD 9™ & & - & & F O 4 & £ L
98euleq 13 speoy 09 = — %00T-
%005~ %L %0°LT- 205
S3NYILINTD 0S = i
o j ; _ - . e : i i
NOILJ3LOYd OF B 5
%TH %ES %Sl %oE %00 %L PO
S3LLIALLDY B'SHY¥Vd ‘NOILYI¥OIY 0E m %001
%0ST
$3DIAY3S ALINNININOD 57 = 002
IDONVYNILNIVIA - 2T %0ST
NOILYYLSINIWGY -0T & HO0E
e %0S€
%00
juawnedaq Aq a8uey) 9, aNUANIY £202-220¢
S3ILIALLDY
?'SNYVd $3DIAY3S
IDNVLISISSY  Q3I4ISSYIINN ILSYM  SINIWIAO¥dWI  2Feureig ‘NOILVI¥D3Y  ALINNWWOD  IINVNILNIVIA
1VY¥INID S6 06 anos 0z vLid¥D 9 'BSPEoY 09 SIIWILIWID 0S NOILIALOY OF o€ sz -t
L 1 1 l L i 1 1 1 1 i & lﬂ
000°00S$
139aNg £20Z =
1390ng zzozm 000°000'T$
000°005°T$
000'000°2%
000'005'Z$

(uonpaisiuiwpn buipnjaxa) usawliedaq Aq s|eiol anuandy £zZ0zZ-220Z

S9NU3AIY €707 A4




zzoz/it/e

JDONVLSISSY TvHINID S6 ™
Q3I4ISSYIONN 06 =
31SYM A0S 0L =

SLNIWIAOYINI TVLIdYD S9 =
a8eulelq g specy 09 ®

SAY3LINID 05 =

NOILD3LOY¥d Ov m

SIILIAILIY 8'SHYVd ‘NOILYIYIIY OEm
SIDINYIS ALINNWINGD ST m
JONYNILNIVN -ZT
NOILVYLSININGY -0T B

(00s2)s

(016"%)S$ {oozls

(osz)s

L L L L L L

6LT'TS -
1SSTTS 00075 . 80E'TS

BLETEYS

9vE099'TS

Juawedaqg Aq aduey) § anuanay £70Z-2Z02

0000025~
0s
000°002$
000°00%5
000°009%
000°0085
000°000°T$
000'00Z'1$
00000713
000'009°T$
000'008°TS

SanuUansy €207 Ad




Teoe/1t/e

pJemio4 Alie) Jo asn TO0S
spun4 pajeusisapun Jo asn 000S =
03D TVD0T4ILNI OF0E ™
$334 35N ANV 0Z0E =
$334 ONIGINNTd OTOE ™
aouelsIssy 3unesH SEOT @
JWODNI HIHL1O 060T ®
§334 AdOD Q31411432 S90T ™
$334 3SN3DI1 SSINISNE 090T =
5334 30ILON 9501 =
SQY YILLIISM3IN #SOT
334 INJOV ESOT ®
S3IXVLITIIHIA HOLOW ZS0T =
SIXVLISIOXI LvOa TS0T |
6T-AINOD TOT =
IN3IWISHYNEINITY 3138 vEOT =
LIN3NISYNEWITY HLMOYD 33HL €E0T |
NOILdW3X3 AVILSIWNOH Ze0T ®
NOILdIN3X3 SNVYYHILIN TEOT B
JNODNI LNJINLS3ANI TZOT =
S3IXVLNO LSIHILINI ¥TOT ®m
ONIYVYHS INN3A3Y JLVLS ETOT =
XVL ALYIdOUd T¥YNOSHId ZT0T m
XVL ALH3dOYd 31LVISITIVIH TI0T @

T00S|000S|0F0€|0Z0€E |0TOE | S60T | 060T | S90T [090T [9SOT [ #SOT | £SOT | ZSOT | TSOT | T#OT | E0T | €E0T |ZEOT | TEOT | TZOT | #TOT |ETOT |ZTOT|TTOT
—
=
m
& =
< 2 G| w|2
o i o | 2|8 =NE-NN-
- nl| & S RIS |28 |= = 8|3
S = m i o @ = T m — = = —~
@D 2 T ] = = o o o e 4 s A = m qu 5
2 W = O % o d 9 m - p m m m b N._ m < == m
ocle |2 |5 Elgs|3|ale = s |z z |z |8 ||z |&2|% 3|z
m m c = m — m m o w m = = o
o S = = z @ X w] = = w T > ™ W i s m 4 c o o
- o — o m A 0 o T|._ b == A T = > > = m o o
< o o P 25 =z = o =z = = o 5] vl %) = =l m m = o wn m m
2 a 0 e = o, = o G a = m m m o % e =z 2 = = T o o
- Z m @ =3 o =< m m = = = = < Z z K T o = = = =4
sl |lalalxls|lg|a|lalx|2|Z |2zl |28 |2|2|8|Z2|2|3]|3
fla|mlmlml3 | E2E|lRA|R|lAmlo|lea|lm|lAlealzlzlC|lC |2 |&A]|2|2 |2
o @ o wn wn ™ m ] wn ) & m wn wn =) — — = = m w o > >
%0'00T-
%Lt Rl %L L~
\ L SO, ; . . . . . .
B B %00 400 %00 %00 %00 %00 %00
L o%vL
5E %0'ET%EET
%002
: %99S
%C'€E8

uolsinlg Aq uonessiuiwpy - asueyd % aNUINIY ZZ0Z-1Z0T

%0ST-

%00T-

%0S-

%0

%0S

%001

SanuUanay £20¢ Ad



7T0T/11/T

piemuod Aued Jo asn TOOS
spun4 pajeudisapun 40 asn 00OS =
032 T¥D0TYILNI OF0E =
$334 3SN ANV 0Z0E =
S§334 ONISINNTd 0T0E =
2JUe3sIsSy SuleaH SE0T ™
JWOINI ¥3HLO 060T =
5334 AdOD d3I41143D 9901 =
§334 3SN3IDI7 SSANISNG 090T =
§334 3DILON 9S0T ™
SAV Y3LLITSMIN #SOT =
334 INIOV ESOT =
S3IXVL ITIIHIAYOLOW ZSOT =
S3IXVL3ISIDX3 1vO8 1S0T =
6T-AINOD THOT =
IN3IWNISHNEINIZY 3138 vEOT =
INIW3SHNENITY HLMOYD 3341 EE0T W
NOILdNIXT AYILSINOH Ze0T =
NOILdWIX3 SNYYILIA TEOT =
JWOINI INJWLSIANI TZ0T =
S3XV.L NO 1S3H¥3LNI #T0T =
ONIYVHS INNINATY ILVIS ETOT |
XV1 AL43d0Ydd TYNOSYH3d ZT0T M
XV1 ALH3dOYd 31VISIIVIH TTOT =

1009

piemiod Auied jo asn

000S |0¥0E

spun4 pajeudisapun o asn

032 1VvI0TH3LNI

ocoe

$334 35N ANV

010¢g

5334 ONIgIWNTd

S60T

aouejsissy Suneay

060T | S90T |090T|9S0T

§334 AdOD a314114¥3D
$334 ISNI211 SSINISNG

JWOINI 3H1O
$334 301L0N

¥SOT |€S0T|ZS0OT|TSOT | Tr0T

SAv 43LLITISMIN
SIXVL I1DIHIA YOLOW
S3XV1 3ISIDX3 1v08

334 INIOV
6T-QINOD

70T

INIWISHNEINITY 3139

£e0T

IN3WISHNEWNIFY HIMOYD 3341

CEOT|TEOT|TZ0T

NOILdINIX3 AVILSIWOH

NOILdINIXI SNVYYILIA

JWODNI INJWLSIANI

PTOT|ETOT|CTOT|TITOT

ONIYVHS 3NNIATY J1YILS
XV1 ALd3d0dd T¥YNOSY3d
XVL ALY3d0dd 3LVIS3 1V3IY

$3XVL NO 1SIHILINI

(6v0'9T)S

(o01)8

000'T$ "%
000°sS :

(005'1)S

000°S
h 5 (LeS'T)S

0000S$

feren
UUuUSLS

Loy
UUU L5

£86'60TS

09v'6ETS

uoisinlg Aq uonensiuiwpy - asuey) $ aNUINIY 2Z0Z-TZ0T

000'0¥S-

000'0ZS-

0%

000°02%

000°0vS

000°09%

000°08%

000°00T5

000°0Z1S

000'0PTS

0000915

SaNU3aA3Y €702 Ad




FY 2023

Pre Commitment - ESTIMATE

Town of Readfield
FY 2022 MUNICIPAL TAX RATE CALCULATION FORM

A b s s W b —

=T B |

12.
13.

14.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

. Local Taxable Real Estate Valuation............................... $324,296,395
. Local Taxable Personal Property Valuation........................ $1,262,161
. Total Taxable Valuation (Line 1 plus line 2).........cooooiiiiiiiiiiii e $325,558,556
. a) Total of Homestead Exemption Valuation.......................... $18,830,800
. b) Homestead exemption reimbursement value.......................... $13,181,560
. a) Total of BETE Exempt Property...........cocooviiiiiiiiieiiin., $892,401
. b) BETE exemption reimbursement value.......................oooev... $446,201
. Valuation Base (Line 3 pluslines 4band 5b)........ooooiiiiiiiiiii e, _ $339,186,317

wns —— ESTINVIATE ONLY =

County TaX.ooviviiviiic $319,743
. Municipal Appropriation............ocooeeiiiiiiiiiiiiieie $4,958,332
. TIF Financing Plan Amounts...............coovviiiiiiiiiniiiiine s $0
- School/Educational Appropriations.......c.cceeeveiiiiiiiiiiianinnn., $3,740,294

(Adjusted to Municipal Fiscal Year)

. Total Appropriations (Add lines 7 through 10)................ooiiiiiiiiiie, $9.018,369

ALLOWABLE DEDUCTIONS

State Municipal Revenue Sharing............................... $300,000
Other Revenues:  (Revenues not accounted for in $3,825,594
Municipal Appropriation which are to be used to reduce the
commitment such as Tree Growth and Veterans reimbursement, $832,738
trust fund income, etc.)
Total Deductions (Line 12 plus line 13)..............cocooiinn $4,125,594
. Net to be raised by local property tax rate (Line 11 minus line 14) $4,892,775
$4,892,774.80 x 1.05 = $5,137,.413.54 Maximum Allowable Tax
(Amount from Tine T5)
$4,892,774.80 + $339,186,317 = 0.01443 Minimum Tax Rate
(Amount from Tine T5) (Amount [rom Tine &)
$5,137,413.54 + $339,186.317 = 0.01515 Maximum Tax Rate
(Amount Trom Tine 16) (Amount Trom Tine &)
MIL RATE
$325,558,556 X 14.57 = $4,744,184.97 TO BE DETERMINED
{Amount from line 3} (NILL RATE
$4,892,774.80 X 0.05 = $244.638.74 Maximum Overlay
(Amount from Tine T3)
$13,181,560 P 0.01457 = $192.087.59 Homestead Reimbursement
(Amount from line 46) ~ (Selected Rate) (Enter on line 8, Assessment warrant)
$446,201 X 0.01457 = $6,502.23 BETE Reimbursement
(Amount from line 3b) ~ (Selected Rate) (Enter on [ine 9, Assessment warrant)

$4,942.774 .80 = $4,892,774.80

(Line T9 plus Tine 2T & 22) (Amount Trom Tine T5) (Enter on Tine 5, Assessment Warrant)

(If Line 22 exceeds Line 20 select a lower tax rate.)

2/11/2022



FY 2023

Taxable Real Estate Valuation and Mil Rate Over Time

Fiscal Year Mil Rate Taxable RE Valuation General Tax Information
FY Mil Rate % Change * [Valuation % Change * |Interest Commit. Date  Notes
1982 1983 14.80 -18.2% 41,411,207 19.0% Revaluation
1983 1984 15.30 3.3% 41,847,108 1.0%
1584 1985 15.80 3.2% 42,237,514 0.9%
1985 1986 15.30 -3.3% 42,801,844 1.3%
1986 1987 17.30 11.6% 45,425,772 5.8% 13.50%
1987 1988 16.80 -3.0% 50,623,696 10.3% 11%
1988 1989 16.20 -3.7% 59,762,345 15.3% 11%
1989 1990 9.90 -63.6% 101,779,380 41.3% 12% Revaluation
1990 1991 13.00 23.8% 103,218,225 1.4% 12%
1991 1992 13.30 2.3% 107,159,315 3.7% 12%
1992 1993 14.00 5.0% 108,440,600 1.2% 12%
1993 1994 15.50 9.7% 109,711,840 1.2% 10% 9/20/1993
1994 1995 17.30 10.4% 111,963,640 2.0% 10% 9/6/1994
1995 1996 19.50 11.3% 114,804,040 2.5% 10.75% 9/7/1995
1996 1997 19.30 -1.0% 116,831,218 1.7% 10.75% 9/3/1996
1997 1998 18.60 -3.8% 118,260,542 1.2% 10.50% 9/8/1997
1998 1999 18.60 0.0% 119,793,570 1.3% 10.75% 9/8/1998
1999 2000 18.60 0.0% 123,049,000 2.6% 10% 9/7/1999
2000 2001 18.60 0.0% 123,652,330 0.5% 10.75% 9/18/2000
2001 2002 19.90 6.5% 126,062,740 1.9% 11.50% 8/20/2001
2002 2003 21.50 7.4% 126,102,370 0.0% 8.75% 8/21/2002
2003 2004 23.50 8.5% 128,931,635 2.2% 7% 8/19/2003
2004 2005 23.80 1.3% 127,886,052 -0.8% 6.50% 9/15/2004
2005 2006 14.50 -64.1% 215,140,662 40.6% 7% 9/8/2005 Revaluation
2006 2007 15.50 6.5% 218,471,667 1.5% 7% 8/24/2006
2007 2008 15.40 -0.6% 222,832,062 2.0% 10% 7/23/2007
2008 2009 15.40 0.0% 225,088,075 1.0% 8% 7/17/2008
2009 2010 15.40 0.0% 228,590,495 1.5% 6% 8/11/2009
2010 2011 15.85 2.8% 234,687,157 2.6% 4% 8/19/2010
2011 2012 15.80 -0.3% 235,984,354 0.5% 4% 9/30/2011
2012 2013 16.20 2.5% 237,595,654 0.7% 4% 7/17/2012
2013 2014 18.20 11.0% 238,389,551 0.3% 4% 7/30/2013
2014 2015 18.50 1.6% 238,928,998 0.2% 4% 7/28/2014
2015 2016° 18.08 -2.3% 237,490,554 -0.6% 4% 9/2/2015
2016 2017/ 18.93 4.5% 235,540,554 -0.8% 7% 8/2/2016
2017 20187 19.29 1.9% 233,406,854 -0.9% 7% 8/25/2017
2018 2019 19.44 0.8% 236,460,554 1.3% 8% 8/16/2018
2019 2020 19.55 0.6% 239,131,154 1.1% 9% 7/31/2019
2020 2021 17.57 -11.3% 261,478,034 8.5% 9% 8/17/2020 10% Adjust.
2021 2022 15.79 -11.3% 290,458,034 10.0% 6% 7/29/2021 10% Adjust.
2022 2023 14.57 -8.4% 324,296,395 10.4% TBD TBD 10% Adjust.
AVERAGE 17.19 3.4% 2.1% 8.6%
4 Average Excludes Revaluation Years
# Decrease in valuation in these years is the result of changes to the State Homestead Exemption Formula
S Mil Rate and Taxable Valuation Over Time
350,000,000 o
/ 23.00

300,000,000 /r\\
250,000,000

/ r 21.00

200,000,000 /L/ \,—"/-7\ 19.00
S\

150,000,000 /\ /

F 17.00

)
Y \_”Z__’_,,__J\/'—’

\| 1500

j r L 13.00
50,000,000 s V L 11.00
0 ——— T T T T T T T T e} 9.00

Lo, Yo, fo, <o, {o, Y9, Yo, Yo, Yo, 0, Gy 0, 0. O O 0, 0, 0. 0, Dy D

R TB TR G 9 % % % G 0 % e Y G % % e

e \faluation = Mil Rate

2/11/2022



zeoT/1t/t

€C0T ¢r0T TZOT 0cC0T 6TOT 8TOT LTOT 9T0Z STOT ¥TOC £T0Z CT0Z TTOZ 010T

TN

«32uEjRE PUT AN ®

x9ouRlEg pUI D W

1eay |easi4 Aq saouejeg pu3 pun4

0s
000'005$
000000°TS
000°00S°TS
000'000°ZS$

000°005°2S

.« 3dueleg pU3 4N =

«32ueleg pu3 D™

€20T ¢Z0T TIOZ 020C 6T0C 8I0C LIOC 9T0C SI0C +I0C €10C ¢10¢ T1T0C OT0C

F 0%
000'00S$

000°000'T$
- 000°00S'TS

00000023
000°005'T$

000°000'€$

Jed, |easiq Ag saouejeg pu3 pung

UOIIBAISUOD OS'SS ‘000°0T 40 J2119Y XB1 ‘000°Z 40 pund as11diaiul ‘€086TS 40 59A19534 S| “JUIBW PEOJ 395440 03 000'0SS BunesadQ peoy "3p|q 3|es/pues 1o} 000'0STS |e2ide) peoy

ISPUN4 PalWIWOD JO SN A4 JUaLIND

%L ¥8 (6S°TOT'TEZ) S snjdins / 319843@
$anibA pa1owiisy mﬁN\mmNr_” m QIJue|eg mEUCu 41N Umumm_u:m
6TAS :.m:n:ﬁ Pasn aiam $a32upjog pul pajipny % mﬁv‘ﬂ.nm:n m aouejeg >u:0n_ Wwinwiuin 40
108°T08'T S 9TH'LLT'T S 660102 S p0L'TLT $ 668'67I'T S TLT'849 $ 9S£'SeT $  €65°9SE S $59'904 $ 3OVHIAV
97T'0€6'T $ | otz'ese’t $ | 000°00T $ | 000°00¢€ S | 9tz'egeT s | ote9r9 S | 000001 S | €sTTve S | €9t'68L S |ezoz  zeoe
6LETLTT $ | otz'ese’T $ | 00000€ $ | 0000ST S | otzeeeT S| €91'68L S | 000001 S| oLz'zeT S | €ev'1E8 S |zeoz 10T
6V9VSTT s | atz'ees’T S | 000‘0sT S| L1T'20E S | eg€'58€T s | eev'tes s | 0oo‘00T s | 156959 S | ¥8E'BLET s |tzoz  ozot
LTL'€9L'T $ | ege'98¢€'T s | oevs9z $ | 8srzse S| 16€£°86€°T s | vee'sLeT $ | evzoss $ | 099201 S| L62'586 s lozoz 610z
88T'VEE'T s | 16€'86€°T s |eTLTTR s | ooo‘szt S| zL9'vIET s | 62’586 s | 962'892 S | eog‘Lze $ | ¥08‘v68 s |etoz 8102
9L¥'602'C s | zeo'vieT s | 668°09¢ s|teLete $ | ¥OS'TLT'T s | vog'ves s | ovszLe $ | 818FST s | z8L'o0L s |stoz /107
987'848'T S| vosSTLTT S | T0L's9 S | 0000€T S | zog'seeT s | z8L'o0L S | EVB'EET S| 020°4TT S | 656'669 s |LT0z  910T
T9.'SEQ'T s | zog'seeT $ | eee'sge $ | estoog $ | z19'zov'T $ | 656669 s | z9g'c1r s | s98'vL $ | £56959 s [9toz  STOZ
695'650'C s | zi9'zov'T s |ssL'ter s | tev'etT $ | 8¥T'v6E'T s | £s6°959 s | z8t's6T $ | vv8'o9t s | 619229 s |stoz  vTOT
£98'910'T $ | svz'veET $ | 8£0'€6S S - S| 0L1T08 s | 619'C29 S | £€0'28 S | LEPPET S | £20'5£9 s [vt0z  €TOT
€6T'9LF'T $|os1T08 S| Lev'eot $ | 000‘0ST $ | €69'88¢ $ | czo'se9 s | 90s'98¢ $ | £so'seg $ | pLsiese s [etoz  zTOT
192'TLST $ | £69°88¢ $ |(€9£29) $ | 00009z $ | 9stTTTT s | vzs‘ese s | 128182 s | ¥69'9z $ | vv'eLs s |etoz  tT0T
£06'€89°T $]9sy'IITT $ | eot‘ozT s | zze'sse s | sz9'9sz't s | vv'Tes S | Lvt'TLS S | TLETEY S| 1seTEY s |ttoz  oT0T
9%0'89L'T s|ss99cz't s | geT'evt S = S| zep'bET'T S| 1iET6Y S | £199'605 S 1088791 S | ¥8SPPT'T s jotoz 6007
IJUE|EG pUn4 paulquwo)| ., sduejeg puj 4N spund maN spund jo asn ddue|eg |eijiu| x 9oueleg pu3 40 Spund maN Spund jo asn Jdue|eg |elju] JEaA |BI3SI4
sajue|eg pun4 Um:mmmmmcb saduejeg pun4 pajliwiwio)

_

Je3A |edsid Aq spund Jo asn pue sasuejeg pung pauSisseun pue palliwwo)

€T0T Ad



Te0T/11/T

T£0¢ 0€0¢ 6¢0¢ 8¢oe Leoc 9¢0¢ §¢oe veoe £¢0¢

ceoe

120T

[edDIUNA INZS €207 @
000'0STS

f ! 1 L L L L L L -S JjoAed
TZAd - puog peoy €107 ®
000°0S$ johed yzAd
- puog yani) 3114 9T0Z W
000°00TS Hohed 6ZAd
- WweQ joodeuelelp STOC =
000'0STS
HoAed 9gAd - puog
Buipjing [ediunin 0Z0Z =
0000025
HoAed ZyAd - puog

Jjohed ££A4 - puog
[edIDIUNA YSEES TZOZ =

000°00€$
JedA |edsi4 Ag 1gag wiia]-8uo uadan)

SP6'66T S 985007 $ 0SKLIZ § 8IS'8Tz S 8SS'6IT § TSS'02T S L0S'TTe  $ 8/8'%iT  $|889'29T S| 9T6TTT S TS0'EFT S TvLOL
000'82T S 000'82T & 0008ZT & 000°8¢T S 000'8¢T S 000'82T S 000'8CT S 000°8ZT S| O0OFT S 340Aed ZrAd - puog [edIUNIN INZS £20T
6ZE0E S PPE'OE $ [9EDE  § (LBE0E S LIVOE § BEFOE S LSYOE  $ 89¥'0E S |ezsoe  s|orre $ HoAed £EAd - puog [edIUNIA ISEES T20T
99Ty S TwI'Tk S €¥8Ty S 6IVEF S 696'€r S /[6Y'PP S vOO'SY S 86b'St S |8LE'Sy  S|evvor S Lvvs S Hohed 9gAd - puog Bulpjing eddIuniy 0Z0Z
ovZ'9T  $ TIL9T S TLTLT S LI9°4T S 9VO'8T S 6SP'BT S| £S8'8T  S|EvIel S vI9ET S Hohed 67Ad - weq yoodeuele 10T
esy'zs  s|vee'es  $|zET'PS S v88vS ¢ HOARd FTA4 - PUOG HINIL 3414 9TOT
LTT'60T & }0ARd TZA4 - puog peoy £10¢
TE0Z 0€0Z 6202 8¢0T L2T0T 9202 S2Z0¢ 20z £20¢ fq4ir4 1202 19=Q

€20C A4




FY 2023

Budget Sheet Summary Revision History
[1282 Changed all header information, rows, columns, etc. on all sheets to reflect FY23
; nput FY22 YTD {(émc} and FY21 Actual values
nput draft FY23 budget numbers for available departments
nput all remaining draft revenue and expense numbers
Revised numbers based on sepaertmental requests and internal staff review
Reconciled with TRIO, adjusted variances, set mil rate to

2/11/2022

18-Jan
20-Jan
25-Jan
3-Feb
8-Feb
11-Feb




What's it gonna cost me if I'm a resident?

FY22 HOME VALUE

FY 2023

S 266,200 =5242,000in 2022, $220,000 in 2021 and $200,000 in 2020
TAX YEAR |TAX RATE HOMESTEAD TAX ANNUAL DIFFERENCE?
2023 14.57] S 25,000 | S 3,515 | § 120.02
2022 15.79] S 25,000 | S 3,395 | $ (31.30)
2021 17.57] S 25,000 | S 3,426 | S (92.85)
2020 19.55| S 20,000 [ S 3,519 | S 159.80
2019 19.44( S 20,000 | S 3,499 | S 27.00
2018 19.29( $ 20,000 | S 3,472 | S (29.85)
2017 18.93| S 15,000 | S 3,502 | S 66.85
2016 18.08 § 10,000 | S 3,435 | S (79.80)
2015 18.5| § 10,000 | S 3,515 | S 57.00
2014 18.2| $ 10,000 | S 3,458
What's it gonna cost me if I'm not?
FY22 HOME VALUE
S 266,200
YEAR TAX RATE HOMESTEAD TAX ANNUAL DIFFERENCE?
2023 14.57| 5 - S 3,879 | S 58.01
2022 15.79( S - S 3,821 | S (44.22)
2021 17.57( S - S 3,865 | S (44.60)
2020 19.55| S - S 3,910 | § 22.00
2019 19.44] S - S 3,888 |5 30.00
2018 19.29( S . S 3,858 | S 72.00
What's the value of the Homestead Exemption
YEAR TAX RATE HOMESTEAD VALUE
2023 1457 | S 25,000 | § 364.31
2022 15.79 | S 25,000 | § 394.75
2021 1757 | S 25,000 [ S 439.25
2020 1955 | S 20,000 [ S 391.00
2019 1944 | S 20,000 [ S 388.80
2018 19.29 | S 20,000 | § 385.80
2017 1893 | S 15,000 [ $ 283.95
2016 18.08 | $ 10,000 | § 180.80

What's the Value of a Mil?

YEAR

AMT TO RAISE

VALUE OF 1 MIL

TAX IMPACT OF $100,000

2023

S 4,744,185

S 325,558.56

0.31 Mils

2/11/2022




10t

STot 910¢ L10T 810¢ 6T0T 0coz Teoc [44]4

€¢0¢

(xv1) seaun

XV | e

INNOWNY XV1 IINOH NVId3IIN

000°€S

00T'ES

00zZ'€$

00€'€S

00t'€S

00S€$

009°'€S

00L'€S

008°€ES

006°€S

0007S




%00 oot 00°0aT oot 00°0S1 00’0 000 000 Y321440 HIVIH 0E-52

%00°00T- 00'0ST- 00 00'c 00'08T 00°0 00'0 00'0 A1a¥LSNOD 02-5¢
AN3AdLLS
%1621 00'0£5'62 CO'0BT'8ST TO'E6H'EET 00°089'87Z L£7TB6SET 00°SET'SBIT £9°950'/81 TINNOSYId
%00" 00'0 00°00S 000 00'00S 000 0544 00'0 JONVMOTIV DNIHLOTD 06-0C
Y%TLTT 00°006'22 00°005°81¢ 95'098'STT 00°009'561 LSDTEVLT 12°862'€91 $5°L0TE9T SADVM 09-02
%0001 00'0s 00°0SS GE'66T 00°00% 00'00€ 00°00E 00°00¢ auoyd @ abes|iiy WL 05-02
YEEEE 00°006' 00°009°61 TLPI9Y 00°00£'pT 5249 [T TISL £$°9L06 1NIWIALLTH 002
%00 8- 00°00t- 007001 LT 00°005 £8°06 60°60T PR EOP IOVITIW 0€-02
%bETT 00°080°7 00"0£6'8T 99°'06/'6 00°058°91 98'595'F1 76'£69'ET TLBILET V¥2Id 02-0T
MANNOSY3d
%8P EC- 00°005"8- 0000442 £L'689°7T 00°00Z'9¢ 16'9L0'LT 6T LEL'ET S0'8/£'62 NOLLYALSININGY
%00 000 007005 08'68¢ 00°00S 000 66'7C 00°0 SYITLNNTOA S8-0T
%00"001 00°000'1 00°000°7 66'69£'T 00°000°1 097k0'T 00°0¢e8 00°LPE'T SADNFHZINCD B DNINIVHL 08-0T
%00° 000 00°008 000 00°00S 00'¥bS 00801 S8 beT uoniubooay saAoldw3 45 8/-0T
%00° 000 000001 000 000001 06’816 65'¥86°¢C 98'7S6'Z paeoqIdaes L4-0T
Sd33da
YBZ b1 00005~ 00°000°E 00°841°T 00°005°S 00879’z 00°976'Z 00'650° d0O AYLSIOAY - DNIQHO03d 5/-01
%00°05- 00°000°s- 00°000°S 68'€80'T 00°000°0T 05'S0E"Y £9'5/1°S 60°650"% 39Y1S0d 09-0T
%00 000 00000’ L0°E8T'E 00°000°E $8'865°C 85°8LE°E 80°085'8 SAMddNS 321440 S5-01

ussy JBuly ‘ussy
QIRYIM ‘USSY SBIIL TUSSY SHIDD ‘YINW

%00° oo 00°00T 'y £9°Thr 00°00T % T6'SHIY [E:8FAN 4 £v'668°E SdIHSE3GINIW SE-0T
%00°08- 00°000°¢- 00°000°C oo'e 00°0007 0Lv8¢ 00’0 000 suonesagnd 0F-01
%S 8E- 000052 00'000"% SE'S9PE 00°0059 TF'9EL'6 65'950'C 00°60C°E SNOLL2373 0e-01
%0052 00005 00'00Se 00°LLTT 00'000°2 01706 06'80'1 PLIIPST ONISLLAIAQY 01-0T
NOLLVYLSINIWNGY

uoeIsIuWPY / INJWNYIA0D TvEaINTD 0T-0T :AaAdag

o abuey) $ abueyn Jabeue)y alA pbpng [eny [eny |enoy

png np png .Lnp £20¢ (114 e0T 1¢0¢ oTderd 6102
snbay uew | sA bay uep

asuadx]y
T =bed WY T#:0T
220T/11/20 Jobpng yeiq puz £ZAd plalypeay



%259 00°000'S 007000786 'szZob 00°000°Z6 05'S8r"48 #5'9TT'¥8 SPG/E'8L JONVANSNI HLTY3H 02-5T
AINVYNSNI

sauBInsUL [ INJWNYIAOD TVHINID ZT-0T -AlgAdsq

%899 00°08F'12 00'S58'2rE 98'6/t'28T 00°SZETZE ¥Z'8£9°092 ¥E'651°9 ¥5918'657 uolensILWpY
ANIVIN “HIVd3ad
%G68'£1- 00°G0S- 00°00T°S £1°297 00'009'c 61568 LTOpE'E 1£°6E6', ‘NOLLYY3IJO dIND3
%00" 0070 00'001 00°0 00'001 000 LT 00°0 INIVIN B dIVd3d dIND3I 301440 07-09
%62 FI- £0'00%- 00°000'€ £1°287 00°005°¢ 61°S68'T 5£79T'E 12°6E6'2 LNIVIW % HIVd3d ¥3LNgWOD 0T-09
AINIVIW “HIVdad ‘NOLLYYIJ0 dIN03
SIOIAYIS
%by 00052 00'S75'6E £0'90£'82 00°5£7'6¢ 88°7L2'8T 85°€/S+HT £5°E05'FT 1OVEINOD
%St Sb- 00°052'1- 00°008°T LE'88F'T 00°05£°2 STE6T'l 00°00£°T 00°058'7 SNLLSOH 93M §6-05
‘2)5EM 240w
10| € ul sBunq ‘S1 IR PRy MOU JUDAT
ISYm
%00'0C 0070001 00°000°9 90'¢08'S 00°'000°S 00°sSH'y 000 60°vE9 SNOQYVZYH TI0H 3SN0OH 16-05
%00 0070 0052 000 0052 000 00°5T a0'8 sali| 98-0§
OIdL 404 000'0Z%
%00 000 00°000%T 09°€T0 41 0070002 £9°97E'9T BO'RSE'ST PETTE T L140ddNS HALNAIWOD 52-05
%99 007005 000008 00000 000052 00°006°2 00°005°9 00°001°9 $IDIAGES L1ANY 02-05
SIDIAYIS LOVHINOD
%00°5Z 00'000°T 00°000's B6°72L'T 00000 £p799°T 0z'ezr’s TL8LT9 SILLLLN
%00°52 06°000°T 00'000's 66'4TL'T 00°000 £p759°T 07'€21’s T8LT'9 INOHJI 3L 08-0F
SALLTILLN
%ITE- 00°00¢- 00°05E'6 £6'086'p 00'059'6 00°05T' 00'0ST 00'0ST Y AN3J4LLS
%8Y b~ 00°0ST- 00'00T'¢ £6'086'T 00°05€'E 0o 000 00°0 snuog J3ly 09-5Z
000°¢$ 11ey) ‘yoes sad 000'T$
%00" 000 40°000°9 00°000°¢ 000009 00°05T'p 06 05T P 00052 % pieog 2[5 05-52

A, INOD uonensiuwpy / INFWNEIAQD TWdINTD 01-0T :AQ/dsq

%, sbueyd 4 abuey) Jabeuey alLA 1=6png lenioy lenpy |enoy

png 4an) png .LInJ £20¢ eoe [44114 Teoe 0202 6102
SA boy uely  ,sn bay uep

asuadxy
¢ 9beg WY T+:0T
2202/11/20 3=ebpng Yeuq puz £ZAd peupesy



NOLLYYLSINIWAY
Buissassy [ INIWNYIAQD TvYaINID 0Z-0T :AlgAdeg

wmm:u._zn_\mmmm._
%89°7 00081 00°006°9 06'802'€ 000229 PTETL'S 6875102 0T'¥16'S adinb3 23140
1NIWIDOVIdTY
%00 00°0 000007 000 600001 000 0T'0TH'T 6TTBLT INTdINDI
%00 00°'0 00°000'T 00'0 00°000°1 00°0 0T 07’1 6TTHL'T THYMAAYH dILNdIWOD 0T1-59
INIWIDYIdIY LNIWLINDI
AINIYW “dIvdad
YSH'E 00°081 Q0°00%'S 9T PSS 00°0T7's £5°87E'S 64'%6T'S 95°55£'T ‘NOLLYY3IdO dINO3
YoSt'E 00°081 00°00%°S 9T'b55°E 00°022'S £5BTES 6L EHT'S 985527 §3SYIT LNIWAINDT 21440 52-09
ANIVIW “dIvd3d ‘NOLLYHILO dINdA
%00 00°0 007005 b2 ST 00008 19°+8¢ 00°00¢€ §T9LE NOLLYYLSININAY
%00° 0070 00°005 bLPST 007008 19°48€ 00°00¢€ §79/E 39YLS0Od 09-0T

NOLLYYLSINIWAY
aseyouitd/asea 1dinba 010 / INFIWNYIAQD TYHINISD ST-0T :AIg/dag

%19 00'795°9 00'S/8'/5T 89768/ /8 Q0°ET605T SZ'8ET 971 19'0Z6'611 ST'I16°2IT SURINSUT
%S8'T oc'ot 00'0ss S8°0PS 00°0kS 64705 4’88k FA AN TINNOSYHId
JnoAnq 24edyljesH - ¥oId
%S8'T 00’01 00°05s S9°0pS on'ors 6L7ERS v 88 FA:ARE YOId (¢-0¢
TENNOSY3d
%Z9'P £0'756'9 B0'STE'LST £0'€1T'48 00'£££°05T 9t E9'eTT [TERBIT 8T'E6LTIT JONVUNSNI
0S/£$ SL shulw /94°Gz$ ajed Jualnd
%911 {00052 00°0S8£'12 6’1661 00700512 79°'88+91 [6'966°2T 8599971 dIWOD SHAHOM 08-5T
%9971~ 0086z~ 00°5/0°C 7476001 0O'€LE'T 16'48- POHPT- SL98T- LNIWAOTAININN 09-9T
%S5t 00°000'T 00°000°¢cZ 00722122 00'000°'2¢ 0O'6ET'TIT 00 ¥0% 0T 00'9rS 6T ALTIAVYIT 8 ALYAdOHEd 0F-ST
%00° 00'0 007008°Z1 /9808’8 00008271 SC'60% 00807 00 sPP'T 1NIWISINGIITY HLTVEM §¢-ST

Q.LNOD 8oueInsu] / INJWNYIA0D TW¥INID ZT-0T :Ndf3dsa

oy abueyd $ abuey) Jabeuepy alLh 1=b6png |enpy |enioy [enpy

png .unp png n) £20¢ Ze0e o Te0e 070¢ 6T0C
sanbay uely  ,5A bay uepg

asuadxy
¢ abed WY T+:0T
7202/11/20 19bpng Yyeiq puz A4 pRUpesYy



ANIJILS

%eE'd o0oLe’e 00'000'6L STHEC Y 00°0£L'SL S0'9/6'5S £9701'67 99°p90°29 TINNCSYH3d
Pl2ypesy loj sBiw ad
awos snid yeom Jad sunoy gz "auARM
Ol ynm paleys osam 1ad siy O
%10°S 00'002'E 00T L9 0Z'€¥9'9E 00°D0&'EY S6'ZH6'6h 85°25£'9C 259Z0°LS SAOVM 09-02
%5609 00°0s¢ 000019 65991 00'05L'S 00’0 Q00 000 AINIWTALLTE 0+-0¢
%00"00T- 00052~ 000 wrE8 00°0SL LT9Ek 0Z'L8F 59'59 ADOVTIIN 0€-02
%288 0004t 00°002's S0TEe'T 00°0£E'S £8°965V 16'292°C 617Z9E Y VYOI 02-0¢
TANNOSYId
%00 000 00°SES 00'0 00'S€S 00'08 0C'o 00°5€ NOLLYYLSINIWAY
%00 000 00°005 000 00009 00’08 og'o ao'o SIONTYIINOD B DNINIVYL 08-01
%00 00'0 00°5E 00'0 00'SE 000 coo 00'SE SAIHSYIAGIWIIW S+-0T
NOLLVYLSINIINQY
UBUIB0I04UT 3P0D / INFWNHIAOD TYYINID 0E-0T 'AQAdsg
%¥PE'ST 00°000°9 00'SL5°62 OT'£9b'ET 00'SL9°€T £1°127'12 T5'TES"LT D6'0£6"LT Buissassy
SADIAGIS
%85 TE 00°000'S 00°000°Se 0T'£90°TT 00'000°6T 1£'579'81 09'596"+1 6198241 1OVdINGD
Masul R |[Iq Xel
%00° 000 00°000°T 0T°£95 00"000'1 1£°526 09°595 61'985"% Sa2IMBS pPaldenud) T1-05
\uow s2d Aep BIIX3 JO UCRIPPY
%EEEE 000009 00°000"%T 00700501 00°000°8T 00"00£°LT 00'00b"bT 00'00Z'€T INIOY ONISSISSY 01-05
SADIAYIS LOVALNGD
%00 000 00'5£9'% 00°00+'2 00°529'% Th'S65'C 76°595°7 1L%1 NOLLYYLSINIWAY
$a33q
%00 oo 0Q'S/1 oee 0051 ATl 76'591 14411 40 AYLSIDIY - ONIQE003d S£-0T
saepdn dejy ‘s19
%00 00'g 00005 00'00%'2 00'005'% 00°00¥'2 00°00b"Z 000 suonexqnd 0+-01
G.LNQD BuissessY { INFWNYIAOD WdaINAD 02-0T :ANg/idag
o, 2bueL) $ abueyd 1abeupyy LA 18bpng |enioy |enioy [enioy
png .Lnj png nj £coe [\ 14 ¢c0e 120¢ 0¢0¢ 6T0Z
sabay uel  ,SA bay uep
asuadx]y
+ abey WY T+:0T
7e0z/11/20 32bpng 3ye1q puz £TA4 plpupesy



NOLLYHISINIWAY
pleog sjeaddy / INJWNYIAOD TvdaNID 0§-0T AIQAdeQ

YEL L~ 00'58- 00°STO'T 8EIET 00'091'1 66'86 000 00°0 pleog Buuueld
9%05°8- 00°58- 00°516 8C°TEl 00°000°1 66°€6E 00°0 00°0 TINNOSYAd
%00° 00°0 007008 F0'ZeT 00°008 £6°S9€E 000 0070 SIOVM 09-07
%00° 00°0 0005 000 0005 0G0 00°0 00°0 INIFWIALLTS 002
%0000 - 0005~ 200 0070 0005 00°0 00°0 000 JOVFIW 0£-02
%00'5E- 00°S¢- 00°59 ¥E'S 00°001 70'8T 00°0 000 ¥2Id 0Z-02
T3INNOSHI
%00" 00°0 00°00T 00°0 007001 00°501 00°0 00°0 NOLLYY1SINIWNGY
%00" 00°0 00001 00°0 007001 00501 000 00°0 SIONTHIINOD %8 ONINIVYL 08-01
NOLLYYLSINIWAY
pieag Buiuueld / INJWNIIAOD TWuaNID 0F-01 :AIQAdeq
%£6'9 00°5E’S 00°090°Z8 IS EES'TH 00°STZ'9L #0'882'58 bELST'6T 99'660'29 JUSWSDI04UT BP0
ANWADV TN
%00'05- 00°05- 00708 00°0 007001 66°95 04°€2 000 INIWLIND3
%0005~ 00°05- 00°085 000 00°001 66'95 0L°€T 00°0 571001 05-59
ANIWIOV1dTY LNIWCIND3
INIYIW “HIVdId
%00 00°0 00°0S 000 000§ 00°0 S6°0¢ 00°0 ‘NOLLYY3dO dIND3
%00 00'0 00°05 00'0 00°05 00°0 g6°08 00°0 1239 2AIIIBI0.d |RUOSIBd H/-09
AINIVIN “dIVdad ‘NOLLYYIdO dINd3
%EEES 00052 00°05S FE'66T 00°00% 00°541 000 000 SALLTILLN
YEE'EY 60°052 00°05S bE66T 00°00¢€ 00°S£T 000 000 INOHd 1132 01-0%
S3LITILLN
%00 001 00'528'1 Q06481 000 00'0 00'0 060 00°0 aN3dLLS
%00 001 005281 00'5£8'1 000 000 00'0 000 000 snuog 91 05-5¢

@, LNOD JuaWa2.04u3 3pod / INFWNYIAOD TWHINTD 0£-0T AIdAdeq

o, abueyd $ abuey) Jabeuely) alAi 126png [enpy jenpy [enay
png 4ng png n) £c0e [44IT4 [a41TA 1202 0coe 610¢
saboy uel  ,sA bay uep

asuadxy
S abed WV T+:0T
720Z/11/20 196png yeia puz £TAS pleypesy



ANIFWNEIAOD

%S9'6 00°Z€8°65 DO'0E6'649 58'ZES'IPE 00°860'029 £6°02Z°08k 8 LTT THY 81'e1L'68p TYYINTD
%00°001 00°000'sT 00°000°05 01°£76'8 00°000°sZ ¥ L¥8'6 96'/¥8'61 £8'687'ST $394 ASulony
%00°00T 00°000°62 00°000°0S 014768 00°000'5Z v LP8'6 96"L¥8'61 £8'681'Se NOLLYY1SINIWGY
%00°00T 00'000sT 00'000'05 012268 00'000'S2 vb'/#8'6 96°£18'61 £8'681'S7 $334 AINYOLLY 02-01
NOLLVALSININGY
5924 ASUl0NY / INJWNYIACD TvH3INID §/-0T Ad/Adeq
%00 000 00'005'C 0L'9€6 0070052 04°0bZ 29'565'T 000 NURISISSY BunesH
%00 000 000052 0£'9¢6 00'005'2 0L°CbL 78'565°T 000 SALLIILLN
%00 000 00005 0£'986 00°00S'2 0L 70PL ZRGES'T 0070 ONLLYIH 05-0%
SILLTILLN
doueysissy BunesH / INJWNYIAOD TVHANTD 04-0T AIA/Adaq
Y%LY T 00°000°s- 00'000°£ 19'+65'L 00'000°ZT 000 oo 00'0SB'S Bulueld g sjuein
SADIAGSS
%00°05- 00'000°s- 00°000's 19°¢65°2 00°000'01 00'0 00D 000 1DOVHINOD
%00°05- 00°000's- 00°000°S 19°v65'L 00°000°01 00'0 00°0 000 SIS papenuod 11-08
SADIAYIS LOVHEINGD
%G0" 0070 00°000°2 0070 0070002 0070 00'0 00'058'S NOLLYHLSININQY
Naom Bujuueld / Jueab J1aylo 4oy
000°Z$ ‘s3epdn ueld dwed) 1oy 000's$
%00’ 0070 00°000°C 000 00°000°C 00°0 00'0 00'058'S "DSIW 05-0T
NOLLVA L SINIWAY
Buluueld 3 5IURID / INJWNYIAOD TYHINID 09-0T :Aig/dag
%00"05- 00°05- 0005 000 00°00T 00°SET 000 000 pieog sjeaddy
%00°08- 00°0S- 00°05 000 00°00T 00°SET 00°0 000 NOLLVYLSINIWNGY
%00°05- 00'0S- 0005 00'C 00007 00°SET 000 000 SADNTYIANCD B ININIVHL 08-0T
pieog sjeaddy / INJWNYIAOD TvHINTD 05-0T :MQAdeq
o, abueyd $ abueyd Jabeuely ali 1abpng BNy |enioy [enioy
png N3 png 1in) £20¢ ¢e0e ¢coe Teoe rdirs 610C
sA bay uely  ,sA bay uep
asuadxz
g abed WY T+:0T
T0T/11/20 196png )yeiq puz £ZA4 PlaUpesy



1NIWIOV143d

%00 00'0 007000 000 0070001 BTI8ET L1686 IE66T'T INIW4INDA
%00 00°0 00°000°1 000 00°000" BT THET LT686 18°661°1 STOOL 05-59
INTFWIIVIdIE LNIWINDT
LNIVW “dIvd3ay
%IT'TT 00°001 90°000°1 617985 00°006 6L218 £5°866 9/°058 NOLLYY3IdC dINd3
%00 00°0 00°00F 812 00'00F 8T Sk 0E 48T 8L'9TF 1239 BAIIRI0N [BUOSIDd +/-09
%0002 007001 00009 TEP9S 00°00S 1998 (T 86'EED Wiely B Jiedsy 51061 0409
LNIVIW “dIVd3d ‘NOLLYI3HO dINd3
%EEL'S- 00°05- 007085 89786 00°009 007009 00°009 00'05% SILLIIILN
%EE"S- 00'05- 007055 897867 007009 007009 00°009 00°05¢ ANOHd 1132 0T-0F
SILLITILN
Yol b~ £0°097°T- 00°05H'T T A 0070152 00°S21 000 0070 aN3dILS
%L1 Eb- 00°0T6- 00°00T°T 1£790°C 00°011°T 000 000 900 snuog JUSW 09-52
51 3yl yum ds 00s$
%00°05- 00°052- 00052 L1%01 00°00$ 00°'$CT 000 00°0 13010 A1RJes 05T
QN34LLS
%LL 8T 00°0£8°21 06'0OT'ETT 08'009'St 00°0EZ'S6 55719'ZL 96'9%1°99 TL¥8T'19 TINNOSHId
%00° 000 00008 00°19T 00008 pOTHE 98109 86978 IONYMOTIV DNIHLOTD 06-0Z
%9b 61 00°008'ST 0000046 8T'TTl'Ey 00°007'T8 L0°06L%9 $9'168'8S SH195%S SIOVM 09-02
%9T'51 00 0b6 00°091°Z £9'685'T 00°051'9 8/°50T°T 1478581 £5°708°T INFWIHILIA 0b-02
%EEEE- 00°05- 00°007T 7857 00°0S1 66407 SOLL 0Sb1 A9YITIW 0E-0Z
%S0°LT 000811 000018 £9'109'E 00°0Z6'9 £9°691'S XAV 9Z°6/E"p W¥oId 02-02
T3NNOSYId
%S9°/T 00'SL 00°00§ 000 00'Sey 000 00°08T 00'6/F NOILYHLSINIWAY
%00°ST 00007 00°008 00'0 00°00F 000 00°08T 00'6LE SADNTYIANOD B ONINIVHL 08-01
%00°001- 00°'s52- 000 000 00'52 06’0 000 0070 STVNNYIN SE-01
NOTLYILSINIWAY
aoUeUIUIRl |RIDUIS) [ SoUBUSIURL OT-2T Al/Adeg
%, abueyD $ abuey) Jabeuey alA 126png leny [enRY [eny
png Lin) png 4D €207 720t 720z 1202 0202 6102
sA bay uely  ,SA bay uep
asuadxgy
£ abed WY TH:0T
7Z0Z/11/20 32bpng Yeiq pug €ZAd PlRIpeSYy



INIVIN “HIvd3d ‘NOLLYY3dO dInd3

oueusue Juawdinba/apIyaA [/ aoueuduel 0g-z1 AagAded

2oUBUIIURY

%I bt 00°0S0'91 00°056'TS 88°798'%1 00°006'sE TT'8TH'EE ZL°S51°Sh ¥6 1SE'6E Buipjing
%ST'T 00002 0000’91 YT L8 00'000°9T 0E'Seh'LT 0£°€59'4T 60°505'61 WB0 DNIQIINg
%00 00'0 00'000°T 81°c£s 000007 15°E69 98076 8T 14k SANAdNS 04-04
%00 00'0 00'000°07 SSTET'T 00'000°01 89'968'8 65°519'0¢ 8E'P5TL ADNYNILNIVIN 09-04
%00 00'0 00°008 86'cL 00008 6T°0T¢ 88°E5E 8H'EEET SANNOYD 0H-04
%00 00'0 00"000°T L1'b96 00'000°T ZE'9BL'D &0 b9LT SE'6E0'T FONYNILNIVIN IDVYNANL 0£-0L
%00'02- 00"00§- 00°000°Z 9E"LPH'T 00"005°Z £0'590°1 8b'609'C 00'506°T dOLYAITT 02-04
%00" 000 00°008 000 00°008 00'2E9 00'092 00°0FC J0jeloUal ST-04
%00'0FT 00°00L 00°00Z'T 00'92L 00°008 Ob'6ET'T Ob'6ET'T 0LT9T'S WdvYTV 0T-0£
WRBO DNIgIINg
SADIAYIS
%00"00T 0000541 00°005'£T 000 000 000 000 000 1O¥dINOD
uonReIS 2414 pue ‘Adeign
YO UMO | 243 10} SIDIAIDS JeLojuep
%00'001 00°008°£T 0000541 00°0 0070 000 000 00'0 S30IABS |RUONLRL 2T-08
SA2IAY3S LOVALNOD
%&T'g- 00°059°T- 00°0SZ°8T ¥9°5L6°6 00°006°6T 18°766'ST 0708°LT 58'9¥8'61 SALLTILLN
%05"LE- 00°05T- 00052 00°08T 0000t 00°0+C 00'+0Z 00'8€€ dALYM 06-0F
%00°0¢Z- 00°000°Z- 0o'000’8 5865 00°000°0T 8752’9 05'905"/ 2LP95°0T ONILY3IH 09-0t
%97°5 00°00S 00°000°01 68'961'S 00°005°6 £0°666'8 5164’6 ET'vb6'8 21415373 0€-0F
SILLILLN
souBuIIUIR Bulppng / asueujuirly 0z-z1 AQfdsg
oUeUTIRY
%197 00'SE8'9T 00'D09'LTT ST'459'1S 00'S9£'001 £5'9£5'SL 04'+88'89 6P |[eloU25)
SDURUIIUIE [2I3URD) f anuBURUR QT-ZT AIQ/dag
9, abuey) $ abueyd Jebeue|y QLA 1obpng |[enpy |[enoy |lenpy
png .ng png anj £70¢ [ 114 ¢C0C Teoe 0cot 610¢
snbayue |, sabay uep
asuadxg
g abey WY T+:0T
2z0Z/11/20 3obpng Yelq puz £ZAd playpesy



%00 Q0’0 00°000°€ 00°000°T 00'000°E 00'000'€ 00'0S£'C 0070822 AN34dILS

%00" o0'o 00°000°E 00°000°T 00°000°€ 00°000°¢ 00'0S.T 00°0S£'T YADIAH0 1OHLINOD IWININY 0T-5¢
AN3dLLS
%ES'55- 00'ST6%- 00'nee 98'¢Z8 00°'S+1's 86'8ST'% 19'696'C 16'590p TANNOSYH3d
%00'00T- 00'058'¢- 000 0£°€65 00'058°E £1'809°¢ SL'89E'E £0'T9E'E SA9vM 09-0¢
%00'00T- 00°0zZ9- 000 000 007029 Q00 LLTET 80°e81 ANIWIALLTY O+-02
%0000T- 0000t~ 000 000 00001 91'9¢ 000 SEES JOV31IW 0£-0¢
%00 09- 00°SbE- 00°0cz 95°6¢T 00°545 S9%IS 60789 +#'69% v2Id 02-02
TINNOSYAd
%Q0°SZ 00°0s 00'0se £8°c8 007002 000 Q0'0L 00'04S NOLLYA LSINIINAY
%00°SZ 00°05 00'0se 00°0S 00002 000 Q00 000 SIONTHIINOD B DNINIVHL 08-0T
%00" 000 000 £8°€E 000 0070 00°0L 00°048 OSIW 0§-01
NOLLVALSINIWQY
[03U07D [ewIUY / SADIAYAS ALINNWWOD 01-52 Ad/Adeg
%69°Z2 00'5882¢ 00'008°£41 [9'812°2L 00'ST6E ¥T §6°£9Z°121 £0°657'021 0Z'0Z0'60T 2DUBUAUIEY
duRUIUEW
%00° 000 0o'CsT'e $9°804°S 00'05Z'8 T£°60E21 19822’ L6'E0F'S Juswdinbg/apIiyaa
INIVIW “dIvdTd
%00 ¢ 00°057'8 $9°804°S 00°052'8 T€'60ETT 19°872°9 16°E0P'S ‘NOLLYY3d0 dInd3
%00" 000 00009 000 {40°00S DE'981 £E'STE 887404 19315 PIS 18290d 59-09
%00°001 00'00S 007000°T 88T 00005 b6l 15°0BE'T F91 JOMOW Al £5-09
%00" GO0 00052 047601 00°9s5¢ oc'e 05 106tk JaMoly J2Y|ep 95-09
%LETEE- 00°005- 0070001 86'79T 00'00S'T TTEBR'E 80'596 LL¥ES HOLOVYL 25-09
%00 000 00°000°T £T'848'T 00'000°7 10'880'9 19'%/P'T 18°9£0°T Wond) Apog dwng 0554 paod 15-09
%00" 000 00008 000 00°00s 00'0 LBEFT ££°971 Yoru) dnyold ged papusixd JWS 05-09
%00 000 00°00s 12'0E 00005 PLVL LA 4 9T E6E IONYNILNIVIN LNIWAINDT SE-09
%00" oo'o 00'005°T 0T '€b1'T 00°005'2 19441 LTvip'T 6b'0VST 1I0/13nd 0€-09
Q. INOD scueuduiel Juswdinb3fapiyap / soueusiuiely 0£-ZT ‘AJAdeg
07, abueyd $ abueyd 1abeuey QLA 126png |enoy |enpoy [enpy
png unj png Jang £20¢ [adIr [AAI T¢0L 020¢ 6T0¢

sA bay uely  ,SA bay uep

asuadxg
6 abed WV TH:0T
220e/11/20 Jebpng yeiq puz €ZA4 pPRyUpesy



UIACD JO

%00 000 00005y 00°922t 00°00S" 00'SZEy 00°10E" 00'5ZEy j1BUNa As|jep uusy
%00 oo'c 00°00Sy 00'see'y 00°006"t 00°SZEt 00°108"y 00'5ZEy S1NIWSSISSY
%00 000 00005+ 0092y 00°005% 00°SZE Y 00°108'y 00°SZE"Y AOSy JO |I2UNOY) AB|]RA JBQSUUS) QE-St
SLINIIWSSISSY
JULLIAOD JO [IUNCD ABljeA UUBY / SADIAYAS ALINNWWOD §Z-52 AIg/idag
BN
%00 00'0 00°052Z 00'0 00052 00'0Se 00052 000 pueT 2aqsuus)y
SIADIANTS
%00 000 00°05Z 00'0 00'052 00'052 00°052 000 ALINNIWIWOD
%00 000 00052 000 00'052 00'052 00°05¢ 00'c 1SMdL OGNV D39INNIN 0Z-5S
SIDIAGIS ALINNIWIWOD
1SN1L pue 22q8uUdy / SIDTAYIS ALINNIWWOD 0Z-62 ad/ideg
%E0"bE- 00'ST6% 00°0£5°6 98'£08'S 00°S¥b'FT 29'606°11 SESTLTT SLTHS'TT [043U0D) |[BUILY
ANIWIOV1d43d
%00'001- 00°007- 00’0 00'0 00'00T 000 00'0 00'0 INIWAINGA
%00°001~ 00°00T- 000 000 007007 00'0 000 00'0 57001 05-99
INIWIDV1dId LNIWAIND3
SADIAYIS
%EL'8- 00°00S- 00°005°S £8°/bR'E 00°000°9 $905L PE'SZE'p PROLT'P LOVHINGD
%00°08- 00°00S- 00'005 00'09§ 000001 00°09¢ 00°56L 000 D seIgey T9-09
ALIIDOS
%00 000 00°000'S £8°/8F'E 00°000°S #9068 P8 OET'Y PROETY ANYIWNH AFTTVA J393NNIN 09-05
SADIAYTAS LOVILINQOD
%00°0CT 00'058 £0°0SS PEBY 000 0070 0070 00°52 SALLTTLLN
%00°00T 00'0SS 00°055 vE'6b 000 000 00°0 00°52 INOHd 1130 01-0%
SALITILLN
QLLNGD [043U0] [ewiuy / §IDIANIS ALINNWIWOD 0T-5T AId/Adeq
o4 abueyn $ abueuy) Jabeuely alA 13bpng [enpy [enpy |[enoy
png N} png N3 £coe €20t 2z0¢ TZ0C 0zoc 610¢C
sabay uel 5 bay e
asuadx3y
01 abeq WV TH:0T
7202/11/20 30bpng Yeiq puz £TAd pRlpeaY



%00 00°0 00 66°GE€T 00D 00°0 00°0 80°0b INIVIN 8 YIvd3d dINd3 321440 02-09
INIVIAN “dIVdTd ‘NOLLYYIdO dINd3

SIADING3S
%96°E- Q0°5ee- 00°588'¢ £6°S15°S 00 01T'8 176228 PETSE'S 16°SE0°7 ALINNWINGD
%96~ 00'szE- 00°588°2 £5'515°S 00°017'8 17628 PLZGE'S 167680, NOLLDITIOD Advdall 0£-5S
SIDIAYAS ALINNIWIWOD
%G8’ 00701 00°08T'1 $8'029 000411 #0°090'T 95°590'7 S8°€T0T S3ALTIELN
%0L'E 00701 00082 #8051 00042 #0052 95°69¢ S8'HET INOHJINIL 08-0F
%00 00°0 00006 00'0LF 00006 00018 007008 00'68< SNOLLVIINNIWWOD JINOYLD313 02-0F
SN
%/L6'ET 00" £ES°G U EIR'EE $9'1£2'81 0094242 66°£59'9Z 18°010'12 8Z'TET/T TINNOSHAd
%ELET 00'8LF'E 00°S18'8T 16'962°9T 00°£££'ST 89'€92'pT T£'£15'6T 06'€16'ST SADVM 09-0¢
%00°'001 00°€65'2 00'£65°2 0E'£L9 00'0 00'0 000 00'0 1NIWIHILTIH O+-0¢
%E0'FT 0095t 00°S0k'Z £5867'T 00°6E6'1 PEFER'T 01°£64'T 8 L17'1 YOlId 02-0¢
TINNQSHIA
%6201 00001 00°0S0'2 GR'Z/S'T 00°0T0°1 0e'7Z8 $T'206 06'661°T NOLLYHLSINIWNAY
%LTEY 00°01E 00008 6Z'F5E 00°06% 1T 10% 120k 557655 SATddNS 301440 S5-01
%BE OFT 00°0gL 000521 958021 000zs 6T 17y £0T9r SEPHY "2SIW 05-01
NOLLYYLSINIWNAY
Aeagin / §30IAY3S ALINNWIWGD 0b-S2 tAQAdeg
%9/ - 00°00T- 000002 £L77EL'S 00001’ 66'6bT 007261 86°+9£'8 Ajpusid aby
SADIAY3IS
%00" 000 00'000°'T ££°7€L'S 00'000°C 66°6T 00°Z6T 866878 ALINNWINGD
%00" 00'0 00'000°T ££'78L'S 00°'000°C 66'61T 00°Z61 86'687'8 Alpuallg 3By 0p-55
SADIAYIS ALINNWIWOD
%00°00T- 00001~ 000 000 0000t ooo 000 00'sz NOLLYY1SININGY
%00°00T- 00'00T- 00’0 000 00’001 00'c 00°0 00°SZ ONISLLYAAAY 01-01

NOLLYYISINEWAY
Apusil] 9By / 53DIAY3S ALINNWWOD 0£-SZ :AIdAdsd

of, abueyd $ abueyn labeueyy LA Jabpng [en}oy [enpy [eny
png 4n) png uung £eoe [4ANT4 [A4 1202 oot 610¢
snbay uely  ,sA bay uep

asuadxy
1T abed WY T:QT
2202/11/20 3obpng Yyeiq puz £ZAd plRYpESY



AINIVIN “dIvd3d

%0009~ 00°00¢- 007002 56621 00'005 00'0 0a'0 £5°/5 ‘NQLLYYIHO JIN3
%00°09- 00°00%- 007002 56671 00008 000 00°C £9'/S LNIVIA 8 dI¥daY Y3LNdIWO2 0T-09
LNIVIN “dIVd3d ‘NOLLYY3HO dIND3
%00’ 00°0 00002 6126 00°00Z 17851 8b'shT 000 S3LLTIILN
%00’ 0070 007007 61°26 00007 17841 8SH1 000 SNOLLYDINNWIWGOD JINOYLD313 02-00
SALLTILLN
%00" 000 00°005'E 000541 00'00S'E 007005'E 00°000°¢ 00°000°¢ ANAdILS
%00° 00'0 00'005°E 00081 00°005°€ 00700S'E 00°000°E 00°000°¢ YOLVELSINIWAY AL A13IHavIY SE-52
aN3dLLS
%59°8Z- 00°0bS- 00°SPE'T 88°€c1 00°588'T bHETY 75'627 75'627 J3INNQSY3d
YELEE- 00°005- 00°000°T 00°0 00'005°T £E°SET 000 00°0 S3ADVM 09-0C
%6£0T- 00°0b- 00°ShE 88°cel Q'S8 11'842 75'67T 75'622 v2Id 02-02
TANNCSH3
%00° 000 0’0 000 000 000 0G0 147891 NOLLYHLSINIWAY
%00" 0'0 00'0 000 00D 0G0 000 1£'8%1 53addNS ADHH0 §6-01
NOLLYYLSINIWGY
AL $5300% 2I|qNd PlpeaY / SIDIAYIS ALINNWWOD 05-57 MQAadaq
%BT6T 0029, 00876V S£°657°92 00°999°£E £5°668'98 0L bTPLE 97'825 T Aleagn
%00’ 000 00°0 16'1F 000 0007 956788 8 5T8'PT W80 ONITING
%00’ 00°0 00'0 16'TF 00°0 0007 956768 AR AN JONYNILNIVW 09-07
WB0 DNITTING
ANIWIDV TN
%Q0" 00°0 00°0 66'66 000 66°601 56691 9/°14T ANIWINGA
%00" 00°0 000 6666 000 66'601 56691 9142 INTFWAINDT WLIdVD 0£-69
INIWIDVIdIY INIWAIND3
AINIVIW “dIvVd3y
%Q0° 00°0 000 66°9€T 00°0 00'0 000 20°0F 'NOLLYY3dO dINd3
A.LNOD ABiqrT / SIOTAYAS ALENNWIWGCD O+-62 AIgfideq
o, abuey) $ abueyd Jobeuey alA 12bpng [enpy |enioy fenioy
png 4und png 1no £207 720t Teoz 1202 0207 6107
SAbay uel  sA bay uel
asuadxy
Z1 @beg WV T+:0T
zZz0z/T1/20 196png Yelq puz £ZAd plRypesy



%00'00% 00002 00°0S2 0070 00°08 0£'601'1 00'0 000 WB0 ONIQINg
%00°00% 007002 00052 000 000§ 0£'601°1 00'0 00'0 ADNYNILNIVIA 09-07
W'20 DNIQ1INg
%HEE"80T 0C'GET 00'05¢ Zr'see 00'021 00°0 00’0 00°0 SILTILLN
%EE 80T 00'0%T 00°DST [AN %4 00'0Z1 00°0 00°0 00'0 210373 0€-0F
S3AUIILN
weq e yooaruelel [ SIDIANAS ALINNWIWOD 06-67 AIQfideq
%00°00T- 00°000°s- 000 05°¢17°08 00°000'S oo 000 000 pueqpealg
S3DIAYAS
%00'00T- 00°000°G- 000 05'€12°08 00'000°S oce ([eN¢] 00°0 LOVHINGD
saouas Buuue)d pue bulynsuc)
%00 00T~ 00'000's- 000 05'€12°05 00°000's 00'0 0co 00°0 Bunnsuo) pue Buluueld 5H-0§
S3ATIAGAS LOVHINGD
puegpeotg / SIDIAYAS ALINAWWOD 0/-57 ‘AdAdeq
%S2'T8- 00'0SZ'¢- 00°0SZ ¥2'99¢ 00°000'F S9'CEF'E TL'%£0'9 120209 $3ybn 1921s
SIDIAYIS
%ST'18- 00'0S2'¢- 00052 $7'992 00°000"% S9'TEF'E T£b£0'9 120209 ALINNWIWOD
%ST'18- 00'0SZ's- 00°0SZ $7'997 00°000"% S9'ZEK'E TL'%£0'9 12°020'9 S1HOTT 133415 05-95
SIOIAGIS ALINNWWGD
Subi 192415 / SIDIAYAS ALINNWWOD 09-5Z Ald/idsg
AL 55930y
%92'C 00081 00'SHT'2 £4'286°T 00°580°L £9°€L1'9 00'S/E'E LT0TH'y 2qnd pRijpeay
ANIWIDVId3d
%00°001 0070601 00°000°2 14188 00'000'T 86°T01°C 00'0 IH'¥56 1NIWAIND3
%00"00T 00°000'T 00°000'2 15188 00°000'T 86'T01°Z 000 456 INIWAINOI TWLIdYD 0£-59
INIWIDVIdIH INIWAIND3
Q.UNGD
AL $5920¥ Mqnd PRUPeESY / SIDIAYAS ALINAWWOD 0§-S7 AdAdeq
9, 2bueyD $ sbueu) obeuepy QLA 18bpng ey jenoy jenpoy
png ng png np £20¢ ¢Z0e £20¢ T20¢ 020¢ 610¢
sabay uep  ,SA bay uep
asuadxy
¢T abey WV T+:01
7zoe/1/z0 30b6png yeiqg puz £TA4 pllpesy



INIVIN “dIVdTd ‘NOLLYY3dO dIND3

%9L"9E 00002 0005 18°£9S 040'05S 16°009 98'S09 127438 SALLTILN
%98k 00'0ST 007005 0005t 00°'0sE 00'S0F 00°S0t 00eee AdOLVYAY1 0£-0F
SOW ZTX O JodgT
%00°ST 00°0S 00'0se 18'£11 00002 16°561 9§°00¢ TZ'H8T JTd10313 080
SALLTIILN
%1 91- 00"9vE'2- 00'681°ZT ¥2191'8 00°SE5 b1 60°PS6'TT POEED’L ET°£96'9 T3INNOSY3d
uepusny

siYpt g Jadns/pienbalit siyob
- 008 03 s4noy QOQ‘T Wwol) pasnpay

%ET"91- 00°8£1°2- 00Tz Tl SLT185'L 00°00S°ET 85 H0T'TT £T'EES'9 20'2L¥'9 SADYM 09-07
%ET9T- 00°891- 00258 66°645 00°SED’T 15'6¢8 18'66% 11°56F v2Id 0¢-0¢
TANNOSYHAd
%00 06 00°0SS 06°6£7 007085 97917 6¥°095 00°F1S NOLLYYLSINIWGY
%00° 00°0 00°0S 00'0 0008 og6t Q059 0070 SAMddNS 321440 §5-0T
%00 00’0 00°008 00°5L2 00°00S 95°99T 6+'S6t 00°F18 "ISIW 05-0T
%00 00°0 00’0 000 000 0008 00°0 000 ONISILYIAQY 0T-01
NOLLYILSINIWAY
HOVag / STLLIALLDY 2°SHuvd 'NOLLYIHDId 01-0¢ AQ/adag
SIDINGAS
Yo' L~ 00'€9.'s- Q0°£0/°69 £9'vZ/'56 00'99b'S/ Z1'052'p9 9% ZEE'EY LFT619L ALINNWWOD
weq
%50°61 00'08 007008 AR 0002y 9£'60T°1 003 000 DAET HOOIRURIRJY
INIVW
8 NOLLYY3IdO
%00'001- 00052 000 0070 00082 00°0 000 000 SAYM DI78Nd
9%00°001- 00°05z- 000 000 00°0S2 00'0 00°0 00'0 SADIAYES LOVHLINOD 0T-08

INIVIA 8 NOLLVE3dO SAYM DI1dNd
. LNOD weq sye 3oodeusiel / SIDIAYAS ALINNWWOD 06-5Z :AlgAdad

9% 2bueyy  § 2abuey) Jabeuey alA 196png jenoy [eryoy enpy
png un3 png unj £eoe ez Zeoe Teoe 0¢0e 610¢
sn bay uel  ,sh bay uep

asuadx3y
1 abey WY TH:0T
zzZ0T/11/20 J9bpng yeia puz £ZAd playpesy



LNIVIN “dIvdad ‘NOLLYY3d0 dIND3

%IFLT 00v1L'T 00°00€'8T 849510 00'985'ST 97'810% 09'189'5 88°010°6 NOLLYIHDTd
%00°051 00°00€ 80°00S 00T 007002 p66L1 5%°501 816 SIUSAT 12410 09-0E
%EEEE 00°005°T 00°000°9 0070 00°00S'p 00°0 00'0 20°0 NOILDNYLSNI WIMS SS-0€
%00°001 007005 00°000°T 000 00005 00°0 00°0 000 dINO3 WIMS 05-0€
%I 0058 00 00E'T 0TZIST DO'SIT'Z 00°0 LE8T1T 6T THS'T HIDD0S 0405
%00 00’0 00°002 000 00°002 000 000 00°0 uny b63 433se3 SL-0F
%0005 0001 00°00¢ 06°'5/Z 00002 9T¥L 000 8€'15 NIIMOTTVH 0£-0¢
%IT'S 001 00°00S'E Z0E8Y'E 00 0SE’E 0070 8€'868'C 68°08£°E TIvaLINSYd 02-08
%WbZT'T 06°SE 00°009'1 060 005551 05'sZ 00°50Z- 810261 TIvd140S Z1-0€
%18 00+ 00°000'E 9% THI’'T 00°9£6'T 99'8€/°E 9Epos T 96'Ep0'T 11vg3svd 01-0€
NOLLY3dDO3d
%00 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 595¢ NOLLYYLSINIWAY
%00 000 000 00°0 00'0 000 000 IP95E "JSIW 05-07
NOLLYYLSINIWAY
ayvog
NOLLYZHUDTY / SALLIALLOY B'SYuvd ‘NOILVIWIId 0Z-0£ AlafAdag
%19 00'%01'1 00'6££'81 76'+60'6 00°5€7'4T 1F'98T'pT S5 062'8 07'¥5L'8 HOw3g
%8I'8TE 00°00S°¢ 00°009'% £E°06 00°00T°T 00°00€'T SETL £5° 195 W30 DNIQTING
%00 00°0 00°001 8E°1Z 00°00T 00°0 000 18'0€€ Sarddns 0/-02
%00 0L 00°000°¢ 00°000°% 66781 00000 000 S§'1L 7L 0ET FONYNILNIVIN 09-07
%00°601 007005 90°005 000 000 00'00€'T 00'0 00°C SANNOYD OF-0L
WSO DNIQTINg
INIVIN “YIvd3Id
%00°05- 00052 007057 0070 00°00S S0°S1T TE°61 £Eb61 ‘NOLLYY3d0O dINT3
%00°05- 00°00Z- 00°00T 00°0 00°00¥ 90°S1T 000 £CHET JONYNILNIYIW LNIWLINGT SE-09
%00°05- 00°05- 0008 0070 00001 200 T£'61 00" 0% 0/13nd 6£-09
.LNOD HOV34 / STLLIATLOY B'SHuvd ‘NOLLYIYDId 01-0€ :nQ/fidag
o, abueyd $ abueyd Jabeuely arAi 19b6png |enpy |enioy Jenioy
png un) png 4N £20¢ 4114 44174 1202 0z0z 6102
sanboyguel A bay uep
asuadxy
ST abed WY T+:01
Z270T/T1/20 396png Yeiq puz £ZA4 plepESY



paeog uoneAssuod / SITITATLOV B'SHYVd ‘NOLLYIYOIY 0€-0€ :AidAdag

007CE 00'G09'T 00°009'9 96'601'S 00'000°'S 00"000°€ 66'¢06°L 000 SAVQ IDVITHIH
%00°00T 00052 00'05Z 000 000 000 Q00 0070 SALLTIILN
%00°00T 00052 00’052 00’0 00’0 000 000 000 AdOLVYAY1 0£-0F
SILTILLN
%6881 00058 00°0SE'S 96'60L"F 00'005't 00°000'€ 66°££8"9 000 NOLLYI433y
%00° Q00 00°005 00720t 00°00s oGt &b £5L'T 000 Y3HLO SAVQ IDVIIYIH S6-0€
%0008 00°00%- 00°00T 96°/5 00005 000 05°Gec 00’0 SATNAdNS SAYQA IOVIIYIH $#6-0€
%08°05- 00°05¢- 007052 Q0’0 00°00S 0070 00°C ooc LNIWAINDA SAYA IDVITIH 26-0€
JNFWNIVLHIALIND
%0005 0070051 007005 00°05Ep 00°000°t 00°000°¢ 00006y oce SAVQ IOVIIE3IH 16-0E
NOLLYSdDE
%00°00T 00005 00°000'T 00°00¥ 00005 000 00'920'1 000 NOLLYALSINIWAY
%00°00T- 00"00¢- 000 007001 00700z Q00 10906 000 “OSIW 0S-0T
%0000t 00700t 00005 00700E 0000t 000 00'0 0600 suoneslqnd 0+-0T
%00'051 00"00¢€ 00005 0070 0000z 000 00021 000 ONISLLYIAQY 01-0T
NOLLYH I SINIWAY

SAYQ 3OVLTIIH / SALLIALLDY B'Sidvd ‘NOLLYIYDId SZ-08 :Aladeq

aQdvod
%09'PT 00'p1L'T 00°00E'TE 8/79£b'9 0098581 9T'810F 09°189's STLEE'6 NOLLY3H¥O3Y
%00° Qo0 00°000°E 000 00°000°E 000 000 000 WRB0 DNIATINg
%00° 000 00°000°€ 000 00°000'E 000 000 000 SANNCHD 0+-0L

W0 DNICTING
INIVIW “HIvVdad
%00" 00°0 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 06’64 ‘NOLLYd3dO dInd3
%00" 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 06'64 FONVYNILNIYIN INAWINOT $£-09
4,1NOD advod
NOLLYI®DTY / SILLTALLOV B'Sxuvd ‘NOLLY3YD3Y 0Z-0£ Ad/Adeg

9 2bueYD $ abueyd Jobeuel QLA 18bpng [enioy |ergoy [enyoy
png Jng png nd £20¢ 220 2¢0e Te0¢ 020¢ 6T0¢
SA by ue A bay uep

asuadx3
9T abed WV T#:07
2z02/11/20 Jobpng yeiq puz £ZA4 plaLpesy



%6076 00°05¢ 06°000'E 00°05¢ 00'05£T LE'0EST ST08k H'661°E salpadold umol

%00°0s 00'000'T 00'500°E 000 04'000T LET0EST ST1°S6T PPOT'E Avsdold umol
%00°0s 00'000'T 00'000°€ 000 00'000T LE0EST ST'961 PP POT'E S|eU=lRN OP-SL
Auadold umol
%0C 00T~ 00°0s4- 000 00°'0SZ 00054 oo'c 00°58¢ 00°56 S3ILTILLN
%00 001- 00'0s4- 000 00°05¢ 00054 0% oo'sse 0096 AHOLVYAYT 0Z-0F
S3LLNLN
saipadold umol / STLITALLDY B'SHUvd ‘NOLLYIIOIY 09-0E Aa/adsg
%00 000 000 000 000 000 0G'0 0G0 ueld aoeds uadp
%00 Q00 00’0 000 000 00’0 00’0 000 NOLLY3dD3d

NOLLYIdD3d
ue|d adeds uadQ / STLLIALLIY B'S3HVd ‘NOLLYIHIIFY 05-0€ :NaAdeq

%08’ 0008 00°00€°9 PE°80T 00°05Z'9 56606 coe 0ot pJeog UQIIBAISSUOT
AINIVIA
B NOLLYH3IdO
%00 000 00°005°€ 000 00°005°€ LP'95P Q00 000 SAVM 2T14aNnd
%00'00T- 00005 000 0070 00°00s L¥'95F 00'9 000 SATd4NS/SNDIS 08-08
%L9°9T 007008 00°005’E 000 00'000°E Q00 0070 000 SIVIEALVYIN O+-08
LNIVIA 8 NOLLYH3dO SAVAA 2IMdNd
SAJIAY3S
%00 000 00°0S6°T $E£°80¢ 00°056'1 8F'EEY 00'0 000 ALINAWIWOD
%00 000 00°056'T $E780T 00°056'1 BF'ECT Q00 (H] 1S3904/WYYd NMOL 09-55
SIDIAYIS ALINNWWGD
%ST'9 00705 007058 0070 00008 00'0Z¢ 000 H] NOLLYALSININGY
%00°05 0005 00°051 00°0 00°00T 000 000 000 SY33LNNTOA §8-0T
%00" 000 00004 Q00 00700 oorozz 000 Q0'0 suonedand M-01

NOLLYYLSINIWAY
p4ROg UORBAIDSUOD [ SALLIALLDY B'SHUVd ‘NOILYIYDIY 0£-0£ ‘AIg/Adeq

o4, abuey) $ sbueyd Jabeuely ala 196png [eny jerpy lenoy

png Ln3 png unp £coe 7eoe 0t 1202 0c¢0c 610¢
SA bay uel S bay uep

asuadxgy
LT =bed WY T+:0T
2zZ0T/11/20 1obpng 1eiq puz £TA4 plRypEaY



INIFWLYY4IQ A1 / NOLLDALONd 0T-0F :AQAdeq

SALLIALIDY
B'SHYVd
%l9°9T 00'58¢'s 00°£0£'8S LE'BER'TE oo'1ZE’s $2°190°42 LT 09'1€6'LZ ‘NOLLYIHDOIY
%00 000 0c'o iy oc'o 0070 000 TUErR’S S}ieq umor
LNIVIN
B NOLLVY3dO
%00° G090 000 00’0 0o'c oco 000 00'TIEY SAVM DOI'1dNgd
%00" 0070 000 000 0o 000 oco 0011 SIADIAYIS LOVILNGD 0T-08
LNIVIW ® NOLLYYIdO SAYM 211aNd
%00 Qo0 00'0 Q0'0 000 000 0’0 7r'zest NOLLYIHD3d
%00’ 000 000 000 o] 00'0 000 rzesT wleq wesns|iin S8-0€
NQLLYIUOIY
Sped umo] / SATLTALLDY 9'Sdvd ‘NOLLYIYDIY 08-0€ :AQ/deq
%09°EES 00'899°C 00'891°E LEFELT 00°008 SE'9TE’S 86'999'1 65°£89 s|edl
ANIVIA
B NOLLYY3dO
%09°e05 008152 00'310°¢€ 8Ll 00700s L7816 #EZSST £E0re SAYM DI14Nd
%00° 000 00°001T 00°0 0000t 00rsee (8 [0)Y] Q0TL SAT1ddNS/SNOIS 08-08
%00°05- 00°00c- 006 00z 00°0 00°0Ct 000 0¥'98S £e'9s SIVTAALYIN 008
%00°00T 00892 00'89Z 00'zea’T ogo ¥L85F S6'LTF 000 pues /loARiD) DE-08
%00° ooc ooo oc'o Qoo 000 66'S¥ 000 Jjes pecy [ |04uUoD uoiseld 0Z-08
%00"00T 00'0ss’T 00’0561 88°0T1 oco 00°See 00°Z01 0o'zet S3DIAY3S LOVHINGD 0T-08
LINIVIW 8 NOLLYY3dO SAVM JI14ind
%00"00T 00'0ST 00’04t 6t 1t 0go TS°£6E'T POPIT 9Z'LbE NOLLVALSINIWAY
%00 000 00'G 00’0 00'c 00'S6¢'T 000 PELIC "J5IW 05-0T
%00°00T 00'0ST 00057 6Tt 00’0 187207 POFIT P PET suonedlgnd 0p-GT

NOLLYYLSINIWAY
sjiedl / SALLIALLDY B'SHUvd ‘NOLLYIHDIY 0/-0€ AIgAdag

o, abueyd $ abuey) Jabeuey LA 196png lenjoy [enioy lenyoy

png .Lnj png Lin) €0 a0t a0 1202 020¢ 6T0¢
sabayuep  ,SA bay uep

asuadx3y
g1 abed WY T+:0T
2e0Z/IT/Z0 Jobpng Jeiq puz £zAd Pleijpeay



%LE'EY 00°005°Z 00°005°S 59°0T6'S 00°000°€ 00701 FSISTY 00°000°€ JUBW/ESAL dINNd 205
%00 000 00°000'Z 00°0 00°000'2 00°02L'T CO'FET'T 00'SkH'T ONELSAL MO vEDSs T+-08
SADIAYIS LIHVELINOD
%2991 00°00T 00°00Z LEPBE 00°00% gz'9rT'T ZLTUS 81'8ES SN
%./9'9T 00°00T 00002 LE¥8E 00°009 0z'9IT'T ZLUS 81°8€S INOHJITAL 08-0F
SALLTIILN
%00 00°0 00°005°8 00°0ST°€ 00°005°8 00°0SL°L 00°000°£ 00°001°2 QN3AdLLS
%00 00°0 00°005°Z 00°00S 00°005'Z 00'005°1 00°000°T 00°001°1 suieydeD and 9/-5¢
%00 00°0 00°00S 000 00008 00°05¢ 00°005 007005 1220 buluiel | 3 /-5
%00" 00°0 0070021 007009 00°00Z'T 000021 00°00Z1 000071 $BIYD) 21 JURISISSY £/-5C
%00" 000 00°00E’T 00°059 00°0DE'T 00°00E"t 00°00ET 00°00£"T $nD g Andaq z/-5¢
%00" 000 00000 000087 00°000°¢ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000'€ YD 2414 T£-ST
aN3dLLS
%00 000 00'SLLPE S6°+00°01 00°SLL'pE ££°816'82 A Wk 68'€96'CE TANNOSYId
%00" 00°0 00'0 00°0 000 00°0 00'0 91’6y saddns 56-0¢
%00 0c'0 00°000°Z€ 00°€90°6 00°000°ZE 55°Z1£°52 ¥£'105'+T 00°000°T€ S39YM 09-02
%00° 000 00°S£L'C S6'TH6 00°52L°C 8/°508'¢ 04 Lbb'T EL'PT6'T VI 02-02
TINNOSYHI
%00° 060 00°006 00058 00°006 007058 00°8pL 00°058 JONVUNSNI
%00 000 00006 00'0S8 00006 00058 00°'8bL 00°0S8 dvs seyybig 214 06-51
JONVINSNI
%00 00°0 00'059't 00'88t 00°059% 000 §689Z'T 958907 NOLLYHLSININQY
%00 000 00°000'F 000 00°000 000 55°862 99'EET’T SIONIYIINOD B ONINIVAL 08-0T
%00" 000 ooos 000 00'0s 000 000 00'0 SAIddnS 321440 SS-01
%00 00°0 00°0 00°'£9 00'0 00°0 00°0T 00°01 "JSIW 05-0T
%00 00°0 00009 00°STh 00°009 00°0 00°05% 00°5Z6 SAIHSYATWAN S+-01
NOLLVYLSININGY
IN3WIYYd3IQ THH / NOLLDALOWd 01-0p :AIQ/daQ
o, abuey) $ abueyd Jabeue|y QLA 12bpng [Ny |enioy |enyoy
png unj png 1inJ £20¢ [44174 (44174 120¢ 0coc 610¢
snboy uep  ,SA bay ue
osuadxy
61 abed WY T+:0T
2207/T1/20 Jabpng yeiq pug £TAd playpesy



%00 00 00'000°E 95185 007000 w1 09°89Z'9 50°096'S J11S ¥3IM0L 06-05
SAJIAYAS 1DOVHINOD
%00 000 00'000'T FAaota 00°000°T 7E£99 £5°082 $6'£68 SALITILLN
%00 000 00"000'1 POy 00°000"T 25499 £5°054 $6'£58 Jrd103713 0£-0F
S3LLITLLN
S21S Jamol [ NOLIDALOYd SE-0F Algfidag
%1201 00'068'€ 00°000'2F 00'550°61 00'0TT'8E 0o'zat'es 08'6£292 0F'0St'ST AONYINGINY
S3DIAY3S
%1207 00'068°S 00'000°2F 00'650°61 00'011'8€ 00'791'2¢ 08'6£2°9¢ o' 0St'se ALINNWINGD
%1707 00'068°¢ 00°000°2¢ 00'550°61 00'011'8E 00'791'ZE 08'6£2/9¢ 04°09%'ST FONYINAIWY 0T-SS
SADIAYAS ALINNWWOD
IONYINGWY / NOLLDA10Yd 02-0b ‘AdAdeq
Y%t E 00'009°Z 00'SZ0LL 0£'£6£°87 00'STY'P/L 78°T86'05 EWAVAAY 05 06b'46 INIWLHY43IQ 3914
ANIWIIV 143
%00 00'0 00"005" 659789 00'008°¢ SLPOP'T 00001 09'8bt'S ANIWINGA
%00 00'0 00'008'¢ 697789 00'008’E SLP90'T 00001 09'8tb'E SYIDVC/SOIAVY OF-59
INIWADYIdTY INTWAINDT
INIVIN “dIVdaY
%00° 0070 00700591 ¥9°728'G 00700591 FSTST6 62°€99'S 12'9/0'Tk "NOLLVY340 dINd3
%00'5¢ 00'000°T 00'000°S 00'S85% 00"000"F 0§'£909 00'60T°T 00'90%'£1 Jea) BADB30Md |RUCSISd H/-09
%00° 00°0 00°005+ £0'089°'T 00°005"F ¥ESL T 98'000'T 09'9€T°E INAWEIND3I I ££-09
%00 00°0 00°000'S 19°/59 00"000°S 2190L 96'896'Z S6'725'61 SHOMYL TdId 1/-09
0hEE'EE- 00°000°T- 00°000°7 00'0 00'000°S 8b'579 £b'8s 7£010°2 T10/13nd 0£-09
AINIVIN “AdI¥d3d ‘NOLLYYILO dINd3
SA0IAY3S
%,00'0S 0070087 00'005°2 S9°016'S 00°00G°S 00'0£2'T $S'STE'S 00'SH¥'F 1DVHINOD
INIWLHVIA FoI4 / NOILD3LCHd 0T-0b AIdAdag
o, abueld $ abueyn Jobeuep aAlA 196png jenioy |enyoy |enioy
png unp png Lng £20¢ 2e0e €eoe 1202 0202 610C
sa bay ue  sA bay uel
asuadxg
0¢ sbed WY TH:0T
220Z/11/20 jobpng jjeaq pug £TAd pRYpESY



%00 0’0 300 00°'05¢ 0070 000 0o 000 NOLLVHLSINIWAY

%00° 000 00°0 00082 300 000 00°0 00°0 "SI 0§-01
NOLLYYLSININGY
SINYALAWID NMOL / SATIALAWID 0T-05 :AIgAdaq
%E'9 00°0F2°01 00°S/5'¥9T §9°£/5'18 00°SEE"PST 97'6/8'611 [5'875'ST1 10'v68'60T NOLLDZLOYd
suoijeiedQ
%00'001 00°00§ 00°000'% 000 00°00S 200 000 000 Aousbiswig
INIWIDV 4T
%00°00T 00005 00°000°T 00°0 00°00S 000 00°0 00'0 ANIWAIND3
%00°00T 00°00S 00°0D0'T 00°0 007008 000 000 000 sucpeaUNWWOD [eXde) SE-59
INTFWIDV AT INTWAIND3
suonessdg) Axusbiawl / NOILDALOUd 0/-0F AIdAdeq
%b8'8 00°0S2°E 00°000°0% 9E/bT'67 00°052'9¢ 89°995'SE L0'948°¢E Z1°619°22 Buiymedsig
SADIAYIS
%be'8 007082 DO"00O 0P 9£IbT'67 00°05£°9€ 89°995°GE £0°9/8'¢E Z1'619°22 1OWYLINOD
31215 3 PsIoWoS By dolyjuip
%b8'8 00°0s2°S 00°000°0% 9c°/bT'6T 00°05Z9¢ 89°995°SE L0°948°¢E Z1'619°22 HOLVJSIA 0b-08

SIIAYIS LOVHINOD
Guiymedsig / NOLLDALOYd 0b-0b AI0/AdRQ

%00° 06'0 00°0SS ¥ £0°786'F 00055y 9£°89T'T 91569~ 66'ETE'L SRS 1BMOL

ANIVIN “dIvd3y

%00° 06’0 00°05S 00°0 00°08S 007005 £0°960 00°008 ‘NOLLYY3HO dINd3
%00° 000 00°00S 000 00'005 00°005 007008 00°005 Juay fesea Juadinbl 09-09
%00 060 0r'0s 0C'C 0605 000 £0°961 00°0 10/13nd 0£-09

AINIVIN “dIVdId ‘NOLLYYIdO dINd3
§3DIAYIS
%00 06'G 00°000°S 95°155"y 00°000°€ ! 09°892'9 50°096'S 1OVdINQD

Q.LNQD S3US 4omo] / NOLLDALOYd S€-0b AId/3dad

9, abuey $ sbueun Jobeuely QLA 1°bpng |enjoy |enioy [enoy
png ng png anJ £20¢ (44174 fadvrd 1202 020¢ 6107
snbayue |, sn bay uep

asuadxy
1¢ =bed WY Tt:0T
T0T/1n/eo Jobpng Yeuq puz £ZA4 pleyYpesY



SADIAYTS 1IVIINGD
U4 bulArt / SATYFLIWID 0Z-09 AIQ/Adeq

%01 p1- 00°002'¢- 00°005'61 87°'£18'9 00°00£'22 6E£'800°9T LUT0P'8 95°999°01 SIAR3LIIWID NMOL
ANIVIA
B NOLLYY3dO
%tbT1°SE 00'GOET 00°000's 00 00°00£°E 78172 &b'05T 86'661'S SAYM DITaNnd
12UI0D) plIBJpedd Muel J91eMm
%T1£°68T 00'00£'T 00°000'2 000 00004 [4: R4 65°0ET 86766 S3ddNS/SNDIS 08-08
Juawaaosdw] abeuielq
%00 00°0 00'000°¢ 000 00°000'c 000 000 00°00T'S SIADIAYIS LOVELINOD 01-08
ANIVI 8 NOLLYY3dO SAVM 2INdnd
Y%EE'EE 00'00S 00°000°Z 00°0 00'005'T 66'99¢ 2L'1T6 £6°084 W0 9NIQIINg
%ELEE 00°008 00°000°2 00'0 00°005°T 66'99¢ 2126 £6'087 SANNOYS Ot-04
WRO DNIATINg
LNIWIDVid3d
%00'001- 00°000'8- 00°0 057851 0070008 69°£00°Z 00’0 000 ANAWLINO3
%00°00T- 00°000°8- 00°0 0572881 0070008 69'/00'2 00°0 000 FAYMLIOS HILNdWOD 07-59
LINIWIDVIdTY INTWAINDI
S3DINGES
%00 go'o 00°00ST 84°0€¢ 000081 65'90€"T 95 PLS 89°STY ALINNIWIWOD
%00" 00'0 00°00S'T B/°0ET 00°006°T 65°90€°T 95 b4 §5°57k [eLIOWR SURIBIBA /-5
SADIAYIS ALINNWWOD
S3AJINY3S
%05 L€ 06'000°E 00'000'1T 00054y 000008 0£'S0T'TT 00°S££'9 00°097'% 1DVdINOD
%00 000 00°000'S 00'0ST'1 00'000s 00°000°2 00°6Z0°s 007092 TYACKWIY HSNYS 8 QOOM 68-05
%00°00T 00'000°E 00'000°9 00005 00'000°S 0£'S01°S 00'05£°T 00000y dIVdad ANOLS Ad3LIWID SE-05
SATAYESS LOVALNOD
CLLNOD SATYILIWID NMOL / SATEILAWTD 0T-08 Ad/dsg
o, abuey) $ abueyn Jabeueyy diA 1236png [eny |enioy [enioy
png 43 png LN} AN FAANT 2e0e 1202 0co¢ 610¢
sabay uel A bay ue
asuadx3
7T abed WY Tt:0T
Z20Z/11/20 3obpng yeiqg puz £ZA4 pjeupesy



%00° Q00 00°059 66°LLT 00059 80°TOY ¥5°091 LEHPS JTHL03713 06-0F
SN

adueLUIE JSUIA / Sbeulrlq g speoy Ob-09 AIdAdeQ

%86~ 00°002'T- 00°000"%ZT $E20T°91T 00°002°9ZT L6°/b6'S 78°557'99 SL'6E6'TET SIUBUDIUIRI pRoY
INIVIA
g NOLLYYIdO
%90°'1- 00°002°T- 00°000°ZT1T 0°ZES'ET 00'002°ETT L6°Lb6°Sh 2865299 SL'6E6'TET SAVM D11dNd
%00°007 007005 00°000°T 60'TL6 00°00S 80'TIE or'106 12161 SAddNS/SNDIS 68-08
%00'001 00°00S 00°000'T 000 00°00s or2z1'1 219e 00'9¢s SNIHO1vd 0£-08
%00 oo goo 000 000 000 000 08"9SE STVIMALViA 0+-08
%00 oo 00°000°S 0oo 00°000'S 000 0£'0£7'€ BE'ECT LY puesg /2l 0£-08
%00° oo 0c'o 000 000 000 00'S8¢€ 86'6F1 J|es peoy [ |o1uod) uoisai3 0Z-08
%S0°Z- 00°00¢'2- 00°000'50T £6'098°71 00°002'£0T 6b"609 't 09°2£9'19 S£'98¢°78 SADIAGIS 1OV INQD 0T-08
INIVIW 8 NOLLYY3dO SAVM D11dind
1NIWIADVI4TY
%00 000 00000z LT 00°000°T 0070 000 000 ANIWLIND3
500" 000 00°000°C 0Lt 00'0002 000 000 000 STO0L 05-59
ANIWIOVTdTY INAWAINDSA
S30IAY3S
%00° ] 0Q0°Q00°0T 00"000°2 00°000°0T oc'c 000 000 10OVHINGD
%00° 000 £Q'Q00°0T 00'000°2 00°000°0T oc'c 000 00°0 ONTYIINIONT 05-05
SAJINYIS LOVILNOD
SoURUSIUIRY PEOY [/ 2beulRi] g SpRoy 0T1-09 :AId/adsg
%01'PT- 00°00Z°¢- 00'004°61 8z'c18'9 00'004'ez 6£'800°91 LLTDF'S 9$'999°01 SATHALAWAD
%00° 000 0070 000 000 600 o0'e oco U4 Buian
SIOINAIS
%00° 000 000 000 000 000 coe oc'e 1OVHINGD

soudd Buia / SATYALIWID 02-05 ‘AIQAdeq

9, abueun $ abuel) Jabeuely AlA 18bpng |en1oy |enioy [eniy

png unp png an) £¢0¢ [arAir4 [AAL4 Te0¢ 0¢0<¢ 610¢
sabayuep  ,SA bay uep

asuadx3y
¢z abed WY T+:01
220T/11/20 jobpng yeiq pug £TAd plRypesy



S3OIAYES ALINNWWOD

pueqpeod / SINIWIAOYAWI WLIdYD Z0-59 :Ad/dsqg

%00°00T 00°C00'6 00°0006 000 000 9Z'£9T'ET 000 00°000'9 ABojouyss] wpy
LINIWIDVId3d
%00°00T 00°000'6 00" 000'6 000 000 9T L9T'ET 000 00°000'9 AINAWLIND3
%00°00T 00'000'6 00'000'6 000 00°0 97 LGT'ET 00D 00°0 1INAWCING3 TYLIdYD 0E-59
%00° 000 000 000 000 000 000 00'000'S FAYMTYYH W3 LNAWCD 0T-59
INFWIDVIdTY INTWLING3
REBITYE
%00 00'0 00'0 00°0 00’0 00°C 000 000 LOVHLINGD
SAJIAYIS LIOVELINOD
ABojouyda L WPY / SINJWIACHIWI TYLIdYD T0-59 Ag/deq
%8E 81 00°008'9/ 00'059 v6t 69°€98°07¢ 000§8' /1t PLTOTE 65'76T'LTE TE'TLS'V6E abeuiesq g speoy
%5997 00°000'82 00°055°04E SE'T9L'H0T 00°055°Z62 §8'972'p9T ££'9£6'092 95'TES'T9Z ADURUIUIR JAJUIM
ANIVIW
? NOLLYY3dO
%65'LT 00°000'08 00"000'0LE 9E'€85 0T 00°000°062 £4'5T8'€9T £2°9££'09¢ §9°'850°'19¢ SAVM DIdnd
%00 000 000 00°0 000 000 00'0 76'TLT SAddNS/SNOIS 08-08
S|ellgyewt Jo 3sod m:_mmw\_u:_
XIW puesfjjes uj Jjes pIsesssur
%00°5Z 00700001 00700005 9e'ETL'Ie 000000k TySHYTT TE'055°2T 9/'519'1¢2 j|es peoy [ |0auU07) UISOI] 0Z-08
%00°82 000000 00°000'02E 00°098'Z81 00°000°D5¢ SE'6LT'THE 16'522'8€7 00" TZE6EZ SADIAYAS LOVULNOD 0T-08
AINIVIA B NOLLYAIdO SAVM 2119Nd
2%00°00T- 00°000°2- 0ce 00'c 0070007 0070 000 1582 WO DNIANING
%00°00T- 00°000T- 000 00'C 00'000°2 000 000 1582 ADONYNALNIVIA 09-0£
WR0C ONIATING
%00 000 00059 B6LLT 00059 80101 ¥5°09T LEPPS S3LLTILLN
4, LNOD ssueusjuiely Jajuip [ sbeuelq g speoy 0b-09 :AIQ/Adeg
of, abuey) $ abueyn tabeuey ali wbpng |lenyoy |enioy jeny
png und png ) £ecoe €c0e [441 1202 0coe 610¢
sn bay ue | sA bay uep
asuadx3y
¢z obed WY T+:0T
720z/11/20 3obpng Yelq puz £ZAd pRypey



ANIVIN

¥ NOLLYY3IdO
%00° 000 000 000 00'0 00’0 00'0 000 SAYM JI1and
LNIVI 8 NOLLYHIdO SAYA 2I79Nd
SAIAYAS
%00° 000 000 00°0 00°0 00'0 000 9E'SLE'T 1ovdINGD
%00° 000 00'0 00’0 00°0 00°0 000 9€'SLE' T ONIYIINIONT 05-09
SADIAYIS LOVYLINOD
SjURWRACIAW] UOREIS 341 / SINIWIACIWI WLIdYD 0T1-59 Ag/ideq
%00"0005 00°000°00S 00000015 89'9b'1 0000001 0070079 00'089°s 00°0 juswyedaq a4
INIVIW “dIvd3d
%00°00T 00'000°00S £00'000°00S 89'0tH'T 00’0 00°001'9 0070899 0070 ‘NOLLYY3dO dINd3
yonay adij MaN
%00 D01 00'000°00§ 00000005 89°0¢4'1 G0'0 00'001'9 00'089"9 00°0 INTWGINDI I ££-09
AINIVIN “dIVdId ‘NOLLYYILO dIND3
SIDINGIS
%00 0070 000 00°0 000 000 000 000 ALINNWIWNGD
SIDIAYAS ALINNWWOD
%00 00'0 00°000°01 00'0 00'000°01 000 000 0o'c NOLLYYLSINIWNGY
%00 00'0 00°000°0T 00°0 00"000°01 00'0 0o'n 000 "DSIW 05-0°T
NOLLVHLISINIWNAY
Wwalpedaq all4 / SINIWIAOUIWL WLIdYD S0-§9 Md/deq
%00°00T 00°0££'SET’T 00°0££'SET'T 00°0 00°0 000 000 G0'0 pueqgpeo.ig
SADIAYAS
%00°001 00°0££'SET'T 00°0££SET'T 00°0 000 000 000 000 ALINNIWIWOD
Yddy 000°SET$ ‘Puoq 000°000°T$
2400°001 00°0££'SET'T 00°0L£'SET'T 00°0 00'0 000 00'0 00°0 TINYIUINI ANVIAVOUSE S5-5§
pueqpeosg / SINIWIAOULIWI W LIdYD Z0-59 :Ald/dag
o, abuey) $ sbueyn Jabeue aLa 1=2bpng [enY [enpoy |enoy
png LN png 13 £coe 2e0t 20T 1202 020¢ 610¢
SA bay uely  ,sAa bay uep
asuadxy
§7 abed WY T#:0T
T202/11/20 1ebpng Jyeiq puz €ZAd PlRYUpESY



%00°00T 0000007 00'000'0Z LTS9ETT 0000007 000 007048 AT {IeH siio
INIVIN
B NOLLYY3dO
%00 00°0 200 £T°69€'T1 00’0 000 000 000 SAVM DI7and
%00 000 200 £T'S9E'TT 000 000 00'0 oo SADIAYIS LOVHLINGOD 01-08
INIVIA 8 NOLLYYIdO SAVA 2119Nd
900001 00°000°0T 00700002 000 00°000°D1 c0'0 000 0o W20 ONIJTINg
%00°001 00°000°0T 00700007 00°0 00°000°01 200 0o oo FONYNALNIVIA 09-07
WRO DNIQTING
ANIWIOV 143
%00 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'0 00'0 ¢0'0 ANIWINGA
INIWIIV 4T LINFWAINDA
SAJINYIS
%Q0" 00°0 00’0 000 000 000 00'0£8 SL'854°9 1OWH1INCD
%00 000 00°0 0070 00°0 00°0 00°04S S4'854'9 ONIYIINIDNT 05-05
SAJIAYIS LOVHLINQD
%00° 00°0 00’0 000 00°0 00°0 000 000 NOLLYYL1SINIWNGY
NOLLYALSINIWAY
[leH 3119 / SINTFWIACHIWI WLIdVD 0Z-59 Mgfdag
%00°001- 00'000'002- 00'c 000 00'000°002 H'78EPES £6'SE6'HST 00°0 ucHIppY UcnRels iy
SJADIAY3S
%00°00T- 00°000°00Z- 000 00°'0 00'000°002 ' ZREPES £6°SE6'H5T 00°0 LOVIINDD
%00°001- 00°000°00Z- 000 000 00'000°002 T T8E'PES £6'SEBHST 0070 uoIINISUOD 92-0S
SADIAEIS LOVILNOD
uonIppY UoREIS 3l / SINIWIAOYWI T¥AIdYD 71-59 Ad/idag
sjuRWA0IdW]
%00 00'0 00’0 00°0 000 00'e 000 9£'S/E" /T uonels aiid
a.LNOD
suawsacidw] uonels and / SINIWIAOYAIWI TYLIdvVD 01-69 ‘AgAdeg
9, abueln $ abueyy Jobeuel alA 186png [enoy [EMPRY [eny
png ung png .unj €07 FAANTA ze0e 10T 070t 610¢
sabay uel  ,5A bay uep
asuadx3z
gz abed WY Tt-:0T
coz/11/z0 jabpng Yeiq puz €A PlRYpeESY



a%eds uadQ / SINIWAAOYdIWI TWLIdYD S€-59 AIgfidag

%00°04- 00°000°q¢€- 00°000'ST 000 00°000°0S £8794T' 19 01°1£8°09 0£°686°T Burpping Ateag
ANIVIA
B NOILVYIdO
%0000T 00°000°sT 00'000°sT 000 000 000 0o'c oo'o SAVM 2TdNd
Buiaed 301 Buiyied
%00700T 00°000'ST 00°000°ST oo'o Q00 00°0 ooc oe'e SAZIAG3S LOVUINQD 0T-08
INIVIA 8 NOLLYJ3dO SAVM D179Nd
SJDIAYIS
%00°001- 00"00C'05- 000 000 00'000°05 ££947'T9 01°1£8'09 0EB8E'T LOVALINOD
%Q00° 000 000 000 000 000 £8'9K9'9 DE'685'T ONTYIINIONT 05-05
030 ‘adedss aJy ‘ssaufiz Aelqn
%00°00T- 00°000°0s- 000 000 00°000°0S £4°94T'T9 £THTTHS {070 UoIRNsUQ) 9Z-08
SADIAYES LOVHINGD
Buiping Aeiqr / SINIWIAOEdIWI WLIdYD 0€-59 AIQ/daq
%9995 00'000'5TY 00°000'00S 6I'S00'8 00°000°S/ 00°694'T 000 00°350°T UonEs1I3Y/sHled
INIVIN
¥ NOLLYHEdO
%IT'T10T 0C'000'SSk 00°'000°005 69°268°C 00'00Q°st 00°0 000 00°s50'1 SAYM DINand
sjuswaaosdwi g plai4 spuncabaey
SITTICT 00'C00°SSk 00'000'005 69°'768'C 00°000°SH 000 ooD 00°550'7 SIDTANIS LOVHINGD 01-08
ANIVIA B NOLLVYIdO SAVYM DIdNd
%00° 000 oce oo oco 00°0 000 000 W20 DNIJ1Ing
WRB0O DNIGIINd
SADIAYAS
%00°00T- 00000 0g- 000 0SCIT'y 00'000°0E 00°59LT 000 000 LOVEINQD
%00°001- 00°000°0¢- 000 0SZIT'Y 00°000'0E 00'S92T 000 000 ONTIFINIONT 05-05
SADIAYAS LOVHINOD

UOIeAII3Y /A ed / SINIWIAOYII TYLIdYD §Z-69 :Adfideq

o, abuey) $ abueyn labeuely QLA 13bpng [eny |enoy [enoy
png N3 png AN £coe 2c0e ¢Z0¢ Teo¢ 0¢oc 610¢
shbayg uel  5A Doy usw

asuadx3y
/2 abed WY T+:0T
2e0z/11/20 Jobpng yeiq puz £TAd ENL=EN]



%00 00°0 2070 000 00°0 0G0 08'€16 79'T6L'T ONTYIINIONT 05-05
SIDIAMIS LOVHINOD
Speoy [ SINFWIAOUWI TVLIdYD S5-69 :AlgAadeg
%00°00T- 00°000'St- 00°0 00°0 00°000'sE 0070 0070 00°0 sy[emapls
INIVW
B NOLLYY3dO
%00'001- 00°000 G- Do’0 000 00°000°St 000 00°0 2070 SAYM DI19nd
‘AR JUeib
LOQN Aq 19540 %08 ‘@suadxa |Ing
%00"00T- 00000 "5H- 000 000 00°060'SH 0070 000 000 SIDIAYIS 1IVHINGD 01-08
AINIVIA 2 NOLLYY3d0O SAVM DI1and
SHIemaPIS [ SINFWIAOUdWI WLIdYD 05-59 :Alg/deq
%00°0CT 00°000°S 00°000°0T 0070 00'000°S 00’0 000 00°062'8 Aeppw)
INIVI
B NOLLYY3dO
%00°001 00°000°0T 00°000°01 00°0 00°0 00°0 000 00°062'8 SAVM DI1and
%00°001 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°0 20°0 00°0 00'0 00'06Z'8 S3DIAYIS LOVYLNOD 0T-08
INIVIA 8 NOLLYYIdO SAYM D119nd
SIOIAYIS
2%00°00T- 00°000"s- 000 00°0 00°000°S 00'0 00°0 00°0 1OYHINOD
%00°00T- 00°000°- 000 0070 00°000°S 000 00°0 000 ONTYFINIONT 05-05
SIDIAYIS LOVIINDD
A2PWa7 / SINIWIACULINI T¥LIdYD 0F-S9 AIQ/ideq
%00°00% 00°000°0t 00'000°08 000 00°000°0T 00°0 00’0 00°0 aoeds uadp
%0000k 00°000°0 00°000‘0S 000 00°000°07 00°0 000 00’0 NCILYIHYO3Y
%00°00b 00°000°0F 00°000°0S 00°C 0000001 00°0 00D 000 aoeds uadQ 08-0¢
NOLLYT4D3d
aoeds uado / SINIWIACYAIWI TV LIdYD S£-59 :AId/Adeg
o, abueyd § abueyd Jobeuely ali 12bpng |enioy |enay |enioy
png .ung png nd £eoe ceoe (44T T20¢ 0202 6T0¢
snbayguew | sA bay uep
asuadx3y
g7 abey WY T#:0T
z2202/11/20 39bpng Yyeia puz £ZA4 plaIpeay



%00 00°0 00°2£1'S 16°9/1°9 00 ZL1'9 00°0 600 000 FInag dmidid e pRpuEIXa DD 05-09
LNIVIA “HIVd3Y ‘NOLLYE3dO dIND3
s2see7 { SINIWIACHINI WLIdYD 99-59 :AIQ/idag
%00 00'0 00°000°ST 00°0 00°000'ST 15°9/1°9 00'0 78081 Juswdinbs
INIIWNIOVd3d
%00 Q00 00°000°ST 0070 00°000°sT 18'941'9 00'0 8'+0P'8T INIRAIND3
SAI5SY
%00 00'0 00'000'ST 000 00°000°ST 18°9/1°9 00'0 80181 INIWAINGT TWLIdYD 0E-59
ANIWIDV1dTY INAWINDT
wswdinby / SINIWIAOYIWI WLIdYD §9-59 AIdAdeq
%907/ 1- 00'000°24- 00'000"0SE 000 00'000°2Tr 65 THO'TEY 6V EPT 6 £T'806'G specy
1NIVIN
B NOLLYY3dO
YT - 00'000°2LT- 00000002 000 00'000'ZLE 65" TH0TEY 69'6Z7'96 1070062 SAYM 2119Nd
£ZAd
ul buiaed |enize oy - aaasal Buiaed
%89°66- 00°000'2Z2- 00'000'051 00°0 00°000'2£€ Z8'190°55E 65°622'96 00°0 DNIAVL 06-08
%00 000 000 00'0 00D SE'ELLLS 000 00°0 WIvd3d avod 09-08
LOITI2SIUI UOSIONDIN /2BpId-d
PUR J2U10D plaupEY 104 Y2BD 000'STS
%00°'00T 00°000°0S 00°000°0S Q00 000 t'902'81 og'o 1070002 SADIAYIS LOVHLINOD 01-08
ANIVIA R NOLLYY3dO SAVM DINdnd
9%00°007 00°000°0GT 00°'000°051 00'0 00'000°05 000 00'C ob'9Tl'e W20 9ONIQIING
Juswaoe|day Bulp|ing pues jjes
%00°007 00°000°001 00°000°0ST 00°0 00°'000°0S 000 0o O OT1'E IDINYNILNIVIN 09-0Z
WR0 SNIJIING
SAVIAAAS
%00 0070 00’0 000 000 00°0 08€16 78°164'T 1D¥VHINOD
Q,LNOD Speoy / SINTWIAOUIWI T¥LIdVYD S5-59 Md/ideg
o, abueyn 4 abuey) Jabeuely QLA 12bpng |eny |enoy [enppy
png .unp png an) £c0g [4AIr4 [AAIT4 Te0L 0Z0¢ 6T0C
sa boy uely  ,sA bay uep
asuadxy
67 abed WY T+:0T
2202/11/20 j0bpng yeiq puz £TAd plRYpesy



%60t 00°£Z8'1 00'805'9% 9£'099°21 00' 189"+ 1£'€08'61 96'SL1'LT $6'0TT'Z9 uone)s Isjsued |
INIVIN
B NOLLYY3IdO
%00 000 000 00'0 00'0 co'0 79'065'S F6°0T1'29 SAVM DT180d
%00° 000 000 000 000 00'0 000 ST'666'F ONIAVd 06-08
%00" 000 000 000 000 00'0 00'0 0+ 682'S pues /jaaRl9 0£-08
%00" 000 000 000 000 00'0 79'086'S 62'778'91 SADIAYIS LOVHLINQD 0T-08
INIVIN '8 NOLLYd3dO SAYM DIdnd
%00 0070 00°0 000 000 000 000 000 WRQ DNIQTING
W20 ONIATINg
ANIWIOV1d3d
%00 000 00°0Z8'61 8% /SETT 00°0Z8'6T T4°£08'6T FES8I'TT 000 1NIWNAIND3
007'11$ @sea 2ouoeg
‘079'8% 2s5e97 JuUn Jo33edwol
%00 000 00'0Z8'sT 8b'/SE'TT 00°0Z8'6T 12°€08'61 FES8TIT 00'0 INIWINGI WLIdYD 0£-59
INIWIDV1dTH INIWCINDA
SADIAYAS
%00 000 00'C 000 000 00°0 00'0 000 1OVAINOD
SADIAYIS LOVILNOD
Y%SE'L £0'/28'1 00'889'92Z 8Z°E0€'T 00'T98'vC 00°0 0070 00°0 NOLLVYLSINIWAY
(Tst'8$) auAepy g
'(8b2'9%) emRARd ‘(LBF'TTS) PlRYPRIY
10 JUSWIILILGYD 2AI953Y |ejded ||nd
YSEL 00'£28'1 00'889'97 82°80L'T 00'198'pT oo 000 000 "JSIW 05-0T
NOLLVYLSINIWGY
uonelsS Jaysue] [ SINIWIAOYAIWI TVLIdYD 0/-69 Mgfadeg
%00 000 00°£21°9 15°941°9 00°2L1'9 000 06’0 000 sases
ANIVIN “dIvday
%00 000 Q0°241°9 15'9£41°9 00'2£1'9 co0 0o 0c'o ‘NOLLYY3d0 4INd3
595297 / SINAWIAOUMIWI TWLIdYD 99-59 :AIdAdRQ
o, abuels $ abueu) Jabeuely QLA 186png [enpy Jenoy jenpy
png unj png 1no £20¢ a0 [4AV4 TZ0¢ 0Z0¢ 610¢
sa bay uel  ,SA bay ue
asuadxgy
0¢ abed WY TH:0T
ZZ02/T1/20 Jobpng Yeiq puz £ZAd pRUpESY



%00°00T 00°05¢C 00052 000 000 000 000 00'0 NOLLYONQ3 §2-0T
%0000~ 00°0ST- 000 c0'0 00°05¢ 00'0 00'0 00°0TE ONISLLIYIAGY 0T-0T
NOLLVYLSINIINGY
NOLLYLS ¥IHSNVHL / ILSYM QTTOS 0T-04 MQfAdeq
SINIWIAOUIINI
%5861 00°265'p22L'T 00'S5b'£99°T TP'PS9'6E 00'858'768 9T EE0'SL0'T 9S €1Z'625 L8'FER08T WLIdYD
wieqg
%00’ 00'0 00°0 00'0 000 000 80'££8'T61 L5 THE9E e YOooIEUBIRY
INIVIN
? NOLLYd3IdO
%00 000 00'0 000 00'0 000 SH'168'881 L TIP'IE SAVM 2I7and
%00’ 0070 00'0 00'0 000 00'0 SH'168'881 LFT9P'9% SADIAYAS 1OVULNOD 01-08
INIVIA 8 NOLLYY3dO SAVA D11dnd
%00 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'0 000 00'0 000 W80 ONIQTINg
WRQ SNIQTINng
SADIAYAS
%00" 00'0 00'0 00°0 00°0 00'0 £9°Gh6"T 600 1OVHLNQD
%00" 00'0 00°0 00°0 000 00'0 £9°5H6'T 000 ONIYIINIZNT 05-05
SADIAYAS 1IOVEINGCD
%00’ 000 000 000 000 000 00'0 00'08 NOILLYYLSINIWNGAY
%00 00°0 00°0 00'0 00'0 00°0 00'0 00'08 "JSIW 05-0T
NOLLYYLSININAY
weq e 3o03euBRRl / SINIWIACUAWI TVLIdYD 06-59 :AId/Aded
%00" 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'0ZE'1 000 0070 sBuip|ing jediojuniy
SADIAY3S
%00’ 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'0 00°02€"1 00'0 0070 1OVHINGD
%00" 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°02€'T 000 00'0 uoipniIsuo) 9Z-08
SA2IAYAS 1OVHINGD
sBuipping (edduniy / SINIWINOEdIWI TYLIdYD §8-59 AIQ/adRg
o, abuey)d $ sbueyd Iabeuep alA 1abpng |enpy [Bn1oY [en1oy
png .ng png Ln) £20¢ 220t zeoe 1202 0202 610¢C
SA by uel  ,SA bay uep
asuadx3z
¢ abey WY TH:0T
zeoz/11/e0 ¥obpng Jjeiq puz €ZA4 PRUpESY



S3LNLn

%IT'TL 007586 00°05E°T $570P0'T 00'59€"1 00°SZT Q00 000 QN34S

%S8'ES 00'sEL 00001 LE7966 00°59e"1 000 Q00 000 snuog B4 09-5¢

%00°00T 007052 00052 L1701 000 00'sZ1 000 0070 10 ARjes 0b-S7
AN3dLLS

%8807 00'0£8'6 00°009'001 £0'652'95 00°0££°06 60°SHT'HS 90°885°cS BI'99/°E8 T3NNOSY3d

00F$=uosiad
1=d goz$ ‘00gs=si00g 4d 7

%~L9°9- 00°0s- 00004 v6'STE 00°0ss 66" 6 00°0¢S £8'H5% JONYAMOTTY DNIHLOTD 06-02
%6E°0T 000008 ¢0'000°s8 LS'THL'6b 00'000°2L SLT6LSL §6°505'bL 6'T6RTL SIADYM 09-0¢
%T6'LT CO'0RT'T 000052 PEPES'T 00'09£9 05'028'T 92°959°C #5108 INIWNIFALLTS 0b-02
%00 00'0 00001 00°0 00001 ¥2'85 00°Z61 18b5L JOVIIIN 0€-0Z
%06'TT 00°08< 00°00£'£ 89'790' 000259 15'8£6S SEETL'S PE'ZSE'S vOId 07-02
TANNOSYEd
%881 00°00£ 00'8L6°LE 98'£18'22 00'SZ"LE L5'T8C'EE £H'96292 v pL82E JONVUNSNI
%00°5¢ 00'0SL 00'054’€ B0'ESTT 00°'000° 7€'79¢'E 86'7E7E PT0ET'E dINOD SYIAHHUOM 08-ST
%6¢ Tx0009E
%E5'01- 00°05- 00'SZk 95'98 0054k 09'18¢ #6755 ST'15S INIWACTIAIWANN 09-ST
%00 00'0 00°008°E £€'608'E 00°008°¢ S1°247 £0'985'T 00'TZL'T INAWIASINGWITS HLTWIH S2-ST
%00 000 00°000°0€ 68'9%'9T 00°000°0€ 05'09Z'6Z 1S'+9€'1Z ST'TLE'LT ADONVYNSNI HLTV3H 0¢-5T
FONYUNSNI
%86'9- 00'522- 00°000°E 6b'S20°T 00'sZZ’E 86'+/8'C €L0PT'T Sp'59E'T NOLLYHLSININGQY
%00°001- 00°002- 000 000 00°00Z 00'0 00'0 GO PST suig bulpAYY §56-01
%00 000 00°000'T 007055 0070001 007001 000 0OELT SAONTHUIANOD '8 DNINIVHL 08-0T
%00°001- Q0°5z- 000 000 0052 000 Q000 000 uouBoday sadojdwz g5 §/-01
%00’ 000 000001 v658 00°000°1 66'8L6'T SE'LP6 96°L10'T $3I7ddNS 01440 55-01
%00 000 000 §S°6ET 0070 66'99 BEOLY 05'S "DSI 05-0T
%00 0o'o 00082 00'0ST 00°05L 00°6¢L 00°LT4 Q0'504 SAIHSY3gaWAW S+-0T
Q.LNOD NOLLYLS Y3dSNvYL / 31SYM ATIOs 01-0Z :AGAdeq
o, abuey $ sbueyd Jabeuepy alA 18bpng [eny BNy lenoy
png 43 png N3 £20¢ z0z 0z T20¢ 0¢oe 610¢

SAbay uep  ,SA bay uew

asuadx3y
7€ =bed WV T+:0T
Z20T/T1/20 396png Jelq puz £ZA4 pRYpeaY



ANIWIDVIdIY LNIFWGINOI
LNIVIW “HI¥d3d

%S5t 00'00Z- 00°002°F 00'852'€ 00°00%"F [4A: 14" £9'TH0'T ¥5'708'8 ‘NOLLYYI4C dInD3
%00°05- 00°00Z- 007002 000 00°00F 96'£61 SE'/8 66'89 1eaty BAID810Md [RUOSIRd £/-09
%00 000 0070 000 00'0 00'0 00'0 00'tke jusy/esesT uawdinby 09-09
%00° 000 00°000'F 00°S57'E 00°000'% 97'£80"9 87°b56'T G588 IDONYNILNIVIN LNFWAINDT SE-09
ANIYIN “dIvdad ‘NOLLYY¥IdO dIND3
S3OTAYIS
%99° 00'00T'T 00005 '891 1S°60+°00T 00700t £91 8L7TLL/9T 9T'115°LST SETTPOST 1OWdINOD
%00 oo'e 00'0ob 8E°591 00°00% SL°€6E 00°00€ 00°0ST ONLLSOH g3Mm 56-05
%00 000 000009 ST'BIS'T 000009 S6'ET6Y O£ £L5'E 0L 195" TYACWIY HSMYF B AOOM 68-05
9%00°00T 00'00s 00 0001 £+'859 00008 0 Z8t ££790¢ 9e7¢ss TWSO0dSIA ILSYM TVSHIAINN 88-05
%05°L 070009 00°000'98 S5'G0E'PS 00'000'08 £0°€2E'S8 12°912'5L 99°b86°9/L ONIddLL HSY4dL /8-05
%00" 000 00°008'T 0079601 00'008T 00°¥6E'T 00°8Z8'T 00°0FG'T salll 98-0S
%00 000 00'00S'T 00'SST'T 00'00S'T 051091 05°£8¢T 05°Z€S TWSOdSIA NOIU +8-0S
%697, 00000 00°'000°82 69'£61'9T 00'000°92 ¥'0£0°€T 66'919°0¢7 £8'890°0¢ ONIddLL CW3IA £8-0S
%00°00T~ 00°000°ZT- 000 co0 00°000°CT 0L7£89°2 9/'STT'p1 0b'185TT ONI4dLL 1HOS IIDNIS 28-0S
%ES 0T 00000 00'000'TH 15°06£°€2 00'000°8€ 'S8T 6t°012'8€ ¥S6TLVE SNINYH NOLLYLS d34SNVHL 18-05§
[€3U21 URD YSS 006
%00°0S 007009 00°008'T ¥R'S7S 00'002'T +5'629'T $5°1S8 0112 IYLNIY YINIVLNOD SL 08-0S
SADIAEIS 1OVHINCD
%£8°'C 007081 00°05+'9 PLT9ET 0000£7°9 6P 6498 £0°598'¢ 18901t SALLITLILN
%e8'18 00°0s¥ 00°'000°T LO'EZS 00°0sS 9'616 #5188 0e°£18 INOHJI13AL 08-0+
yuey BuipjoH jo sbuidwnd ¢
%00 0070 00°00Z'% 00°00% 00°00Z°1 00°012T 00's/S 00'SZS AdOLYAYT 0/-0F
%00°'52- 00°052- 00705Z 88°9£T 00°000°T £F15€E 84929 #9°E6L ONLLY3H 09-0F
%00 000 007005°T 6£°T0Z'T 00'008°T 8L°660'C L0111 180477 JI¥10973 0£-0F
%96'T- 00'0Z- 00°000°T 0070 00°020°1 96°860°F 000 000 SNOLLYIINNWIWGOD JINOY1D3 13 0Z-0F
Q.LNOD NOLLYLS W34SNYHL / 1SVM aT10S 0T-04 :AIdAdeq
o, sbueyd ¢ abueyd Jabeueyy alA 126png [enpy |enpy [eny
png LNy png ung (AT €0t €C0¢ 120¢ 070C 610¢

sA bay uel  ,SA bay uely

asuadx3y
¢¢ abey WV T#:0T
ze0T/11/20 126png 1eaq puz €ZAd plaLpeay



8e#NSY / NOLLYINA3 01-54 :Agadag

%b8'S 00°0T6'81 00°S£8'ThE 96°255'681 00'559'€Z¢ LT TOR'80E 16'1£8'28C 6¥" 9T 26T ALSVYM AI0S
%00 000 00°005°Z 60959 00°005°Z 92041 15°06€°2 6E0TS’S 30HYOVd
AINI¥W "dIvd3d
%00 000 00'008°2 60°959 00°005°2 9 L0L'T 150682 5€°015°8 "NOLLYY3dO dIND3
%00° 00'c 00'008'1 60°959 00°005°T TL'655 19'756'1 07'695'L aoyyoeg S5-09
%00" 000 007000 00’0 00°000'T bLEPO'T 06°/Eb BTTHE 10/13Nd 0£-09
LINIVIN “dI¥dad ‘NOILYYIdO dINd3
JOHNOVE / ALSYM A0S 05-04 AQ/Adeg
NOLLVYLS
%685 00°016'81 00'5£0°0pE £8'906'881 00°S91°TZE T8'€5T'£0€ 0F' 1808 D1°9££'€82 YIASNYAL
LNIVIA
¥ NOLLYY3dO
%000~ 00°000°T- 00'005'T £F'0ET 00°005°C 00°0SZ 96601 0070 SAYM DI18Nd
%0005~ 00°00s- 00'008§ £r'0ET 00'000°T 000 8b'p 0070 S3TTddNS/SNDIS 08-08
%00 00°0 00'0 00'0 000 0ce 85'501 00°0 dlvdad dvOd 05-08
%EEEE- 00°00s- 00'000°T 000 0070051 00°052 00’0 000 SADINYIS LOVHLNGCD 01-08
LINIVIW 8 NOLLYYI4O SAVYAM DIENd
%EE'8GT 00'005'6 £0°005's1 LTSTIH'T 00'000'9 05'622'¢ vEREPY Z0'80P'T W30 DNIQTINg
%05 LE- 00°00¢- 00°00S F1'492 00'008 15°5T2 PEGS 70918 S3AddNS 04-04
%00°00F 00°000°01 £0°005'TT €1'8bE 00'005'T 6C'9TL'T P'L85°T 00265 IONYNILNIVIN 09-04
%00 00°0 00°005°2 00°008 00'005'2 044ST 98 H5ET 00°0 SANNOYD 0F-04
%00'001- 00"00Z- 00°0 00°0 007002 00°0%T 000 000 FONYNIALNIVIA IOVNANL 0£-02
W20 DNIQTING
INIWIDY1d3d
%00° 001~ 00'000°2- 00°0 00°0 00°000°2 8T'11 00°0 000 LNIWJINO3
%00°00T- 00°000°Z- 000 00°0 00°000°Z 81’11 00°0 000 $1001 05-599
Q.LNOD NOLLVLS ¥3JSNYYL / 3LSYA ATT0S 0T-04 AIdAdeg
o, sbueyd $ abuey) Jabeuely dlhi 196png jenpy [enjoy |[eny
png 4an) png unj £eoe [441T [a41rs 1202 0c0¢ 610¢
shbay uel  Sn bay uepy
asuadx3y
pe abeq WY TH:01
7e0z/11/20 3obpng Yelq puz £TAd PlRUpEY



%00 00'0 00°EbL'61E 0 EPL'GTE 00°EbL’81E £F'908°00€ SH'66E°587 £1'+69°997 SINIWSSIASSY
%00 00'0 00°€kL'61E 20'€bL 618 00°Eb2'61E £ OP8'00E SH66E'58Z £T'$69'992 XV.L ALNNOD D3IGINNIN 0Z-SF
SINAWSSISSY
XYL ALND DIGINNIN / Xv.L ALND DIFINNTN 02-18 AIg/Adea
SNOLLYZINYDYUO
%02 00°000°T 00°000°05 00°S65'7€E 00'000°6+ 7SEE0 Ly SI'E65'/y 9'9/T'9% TYNOIDTY
%00 00'0 00'000°52 00°££9°91 00'000's7 T80ET'HT S1°96L"P ' L60"FT yed 38414
%00 0070 00°009°sT 00°££9°91 00°000°SZ T5°9ET¥T S1964'%T 9 L60'FT IVIONYNIA
%00 000 00"000°sT 00°££9°91 00°000°52Z T59ETHT ST°964'¥Z 9 /60"FT LNIWLSIANI YdvdLSl-d 06-2T
IVIONYNIL
yed 150 / SNOLLYZINYSHO TWNOISAY 0408 Ad/fdeq
1DTHLSIG
%L1 0o'000'1 00°000'ST 00'856'ST 00'000+2 00°£6L'T2 00°/64'C2 00'6£0°Z2 H3LVYM 335508900
%L1 £0'000'T 007000'sZ 00'856°S1 00'000"+T 00°26£'22 00°£6£'TT 00'6£0°TT SINIWSSISSY
1omIsIa
%L1 £0000°T 00°000'sZ 00'856'ST 00'000'%T 00'Z6L'2C 00°£64'T¢ 00'6£0'T2 (3HSY3I1LYM 335509800 0T-5F
S1INIWSSISSY
1oTdISIa
YILYM JISSOECD / SNOLLYZINYDHO TYNOIDIY 01-08 AIgfdeq
%00'8 00'650°2/2 00'v6Z°0bL’E 9£'£2880£°7 CO'SET'EOV'E 00'806'bE9'E 00'P6E0TLE 00°096'955°¢ NOLLYDNd3
%00'8 00'650'442 00'¥62°0pL'S 9€£'€78'805'7 00°SET'Eob'E 00'806'bES’E 00¥BEDTLE 00°096"955°E 8L#NSy
%008 00'650°242 00'+6Z°0%L’S 9¢'£78'80£°C 00°SET'E9%E 00'806'FE9°E 0O'PEE0TLE 00'096'955°E SLNIWSSISSY
%008 00'650°447 00'+6Z'0FL"E 9¢'£78'80£"T 00'SEZ'E9F'E 00'806'FES'E 00'F6E'0TL'E 00'096'955°€ INAWAYD 8E#NSY S-S
SINIWSSISSY
8€#NSY / NOLLYONGA 01-SZ :MaAdeq
o, abueyn $ abueud Jabeueiy aLA 126png |enpy |eny [enoy
png 4nd png .unp £z0t [ail4 ¢20¢ 120¢ 070¢ 610¢
sanboy uely  ,SA bay uely
asuadxg
g¢ abey WY T+:0T
7202/11/20 3obpng yeiq puz £TA4 pleupesy



SE0Z/TT puog Bulp(d 1unl / ADIAY3S 1930 08-58 :AlQ/idad

6207/ weg
%00°C- 00'58¢- 00°£58°8T 0Z'STLLT 00°ZFT'61 09°€19'61 0824661 0b /0T e yoodeuele|y
%00°C- 00°58€E- 00°£S8'8T 0T'STLLT 00" THT'6T 09°£19°61 08'2£6'61 O 0'T IVIONYNIA
%8811~ 00°98¢- 00°/58'C 0Z'STL'T 00°THT'E 09'€19'E 08'7L6'e Ch'PL0'T 1S3W3 NI ANOY SZ-2T
%00 0070 00°000'ST 00700091 00°000°9T 00'000°9T 0000091 00'0 TVLIONTYd ANOS 02-2T
IVIDNYNIL
6202/5 Weq a4=7 yooseueriely / IDIAYIS 1930 0F-58 AIQ/deq
puog spafold
%00°00T 000001 00"000"T ooe 000 0070 000 Q0’0 [edDiuny £202
%00°00T 00'000 b1 00"000*pT 00'C 000 00°0 000 00'0 IYIDNVNIL
AJuo 3153133U1
1Y - %S @ SIAQZ 40} 000°000°7%
%00°00T 00'000'+T 00°000'+1 000 000 000 000 000 1ST9TUINI ANOE S¢-¢T
TYIONVNIL
puog sy3(0ld [edipluni £20Z / IDIAYIS 1830 €2-58 AQAdRQ
Yobtr'T- 00°808- BO'FCE'ES 00°'19Z°¢S 00°ZET'PS 0P 8RS 08'Z85'55 0D"8ET'9S £20Z/TT yorL a4
%6t T- 00'808- 00'vee'es 00°192'¢S 00°ZET'H5 OF'€98'%S 0§'285'55 00°8€7'95 IYIONYNIS
%06'L8- 00°808- 00'vZET 00'192°1 0O'ZET'T 0b'E883'C 08'Z85'C 00BETY 1STIINI ANOd §5¢-21
%00 000 00'000°Z8 00'000°Z5 00'000°ZS £0'000'2S £0'000°ZS 00°000'TS TYAIDNINd ANOS 0Z-21
AVIONVYNIL
£Z0Z/TT A2ndL 244 / IDIAYAS 193A 01-88 ANdAdeq
XvL
%00 000 D0'ERL'6TE TOERL'BTE 00'€kL'61E £+'9¢8°00€ Sb'66£'587 £1'$69'992 ALND DI9INNIA
XvL
%00" 000 00°HL'6TE T0ERL6TE 00°chL'6TE £F'9r8°00E SH'66L'S8T £T'#69'99Z ALND D393aNNIA
XYL ALND DIFINNTA / X¥.L ALND J393INNIH 0Z-T8 AlgAdeq
o abueyd $ abuey) Jabeuep QLA 126png [enpy lenpy lenyy
png ng png Lno £coe [ 4114 €ecoe T¢oe 0e0¢ 6102
SA D3y uel  ,SA by uep
asuadx3y
o¢ abed WY T+:0T
T202/11/20 uwm_u:m Helq puzg €ZA4 plRUpEsY



%00" 0070 0000001 00°0 00°000°0T 000 0BZ8E 000 JoljoY Xe| |edoT
%00 000 00°000°0T 000 00°00G°0T 00°0 08'78¢ 00'0 SINIWILYaY
%00 000 00'000°01 0070 00°000°0T 000 08'78¢ 00'0 $919y xe ] €207 §T-06
SINIWILvEY
Jolley xel |ed0] / 3IHISSYIDNN §T1-06 AldAda]
Aepang
Y%hlS Ll 00'2S6'2LI- 00'000'0S 65°0EL'/T 00'786'CC2 99°77Z't Yardoas 0S"P68'ET [SINTWIALvEY
Y%lG Ll 00'256'241- 00°000°0% 65'0£L°£1 00zs6'TeL 9%°ZTT'E 6T LUP'E 05 PE8'ET SINAWALYaY
SYBIPJAA0 00075 ‘Sudwieqy
%S L 00'786'T41- 00°000°05 65708441 00'756'2T 95'7ZT’E 62TUY'E 05'¥68°CT SINIWALVEY 0T-06
SINIWI1VaY
ARLIBAQ /SINIWALYAY / QIIHISSYIONN 01-06 :Aldfideq
%2662 00" S9p"ZE 00'685°78T PREFSTIT 00'+ZZ'sZT LTEH6'E8 09'555'5L 0F'ZTE'RS ADIAY3S 1933
9e0¢
%ES O 00°ZET'SE 000£5'08 000 00°80%"S 00'0 000 00'0 uonebiqQ [epuan
%S PIP 00°ZZT'sT 00'0£5'0€ 00°0 00°80+'S 00'0 00'0 0070 IVIONYNIZ
15243u| puoq Jedpuniy
%29'ST 00518 D0'ESTY 000 00°80b"S 00°0 000 000 1SIYIULNE ONO8 S2-2T
%007001 00 £LTYT 00" £42'vT [0N0] 000 000 oo 000 TYdIDNIdd ANOd 02-2T
IYIDNYNIA
9£0z uolebiqo |eseuas) / 3DTAYAS 1930 §8-58 AIQAAdeq
SE0T/11
%00'T- 00'v9b- 00'8/6'S ¥9°/99'TH 0G'Zbr ot LTH6 000 0070 puog Suip|g 1unjy
%001~ 009~ 00'8L5'SH $9°/99'TH 00'ZH 9 LT 0070 000 IVIDONVYNID
YSL b 00'bIb- C0TIE'S £6000'S 00°G/L'6 LT 000 000 1S3H3LNI ANOd S2-2T
%00 00'0 00°£99"9¢ £9999'9¢ 00'£99'9¢ 00C 000 000 TVJIDNTdd ONO4 02-21
IVIDNVYNIL
SE0Z/TT puog BuUIpIg IUDKW / IDIAY3S 1930 08-58 AIQAdeg
oy abueyn $ abuey) Jabeuely alA 126png lenjoy [enpy |ernoy
png 1n) png 1nj £¢0¢ £e0e 70T TZ0T 0zot 610¢C
SA bay uel  ,$A boy uep
osuadxy
L€ 9bed Wy T+.0T
20Z/11/20 1obpng eiq puz £ZA4 pPYpEsY



pund

%00 000 00°000°01 000 00°000°01 06°000'ST 0o 000 asudiaug pipipesy
%00" 00’0 00°000°01 00°0 00°000°01 00°000'ST 00'0 00°0 NOLLYYLSINIWGAY
%00° 00’0 00°000°01 00°0 00°000°07 00'000'5T 000 000 "ISIW 08-01
NOLLYY1SININGY
pund asudiaiug pRupesy / AIIHISSYIONN 09-06 :md/Adeq
%IHTT 00°6£1 00°'8FL'T 00°695"T 00°695°T 00°9£4'T 98 €'l 00'£LE'T Buriqowimous
%Ib 1T 00°64T 00°8bLT 00°695°T 00°695°T 007947 98 EPE'T 00°ZLE"T NOLLYZHDFY
%TH 1T 00641 00°8kL'T 00°695°T 00°695'T 00'9L4'T 9A'EPE'T 00°ZLE'T ONITIHOWMONS 0/-0€
NOLLYIMDIY
Buipgowmous / GIIISSYTIONN 0S5-06 Ad/deq
%00" 00°0 DO'00D'ST 00°0 00"000'St 00'6b5°9 00'5£8°T 5/'8b0'E Azusbunuo)
%00 000 00°000°ST 000 00°000°5T 00'6kE’9 00°5£8°T 5/ '8p0’E NOLLYYLSINIWAY
%00 000 00°000°sT 0070 007000'sZ 00°6PE'D 00'5/8°T S80S "JSIW 05-0T

NOLLYH1SININGY
AxuabunuoD / 3IHISSYIONN 006 AIg/adaq

SAIDNASY
%077 00'ssy 00°000'ST 00'SZEET 00'SESF1 00°S8ZFT 00°8PT'ET 00"9E0FT 1140Ud-NON
%02 00'59% 00°000’ST 00'SLE'ET 00'SESFT 00°S8TF1 00°86T'cT 00"9E0'PT NOLLVALSINIWGY

016% Ynessy

|BnXas ‘7oces sove ADsio fuelely
‘000T$ HEN ‘05Z1$ 20uUS]oIA Ajlued--
000’s$ IsnoH Bunasi uown ‘€151
wnypads IS ‘00§°Z$ 42A1Y S|iW 0f

%0Z°E 00'59% 00°D00'ST CO'SLE'ET 00'SESFT 00°S82¢'F1 00°8KTET 00'9E0'PT "JSIW 05-0T
NOLLVALSINIWNGY

SIIONIDY LI40Yd-NON / QIIHISSYIONN 02-06 Ald/dag

o, abuey) $ abueyp lobeuely QLA 12bpng [enpy [enoy (erioy

png .Lnp png N3 £e0e [AA1T4 (4178 120¢ Vrdord 6102
snboyguey | sA bay uep

asuadxy
8¢ abed WY TH:0T
2e0z/11/20 19bpng Yeaq puz £TAd paypeay



%ET 0E 00'E06'F0T'T  00°69E'890°6  96'SLT'EVV'E  00'99F'E96'0  TT'STO'0E9'S 6LTTIH'IS0'9  BI0S8'I69°S is|ejo) asuadx3
JONVL1SISSY
%00°05- 00°000'S- 00'000°s 0996 00°000°0T 00'112 00881 ¥E'289 TYdanNID
JONVLSISSY
%00°05- 00'000's- 00'000°S 09'€96 00'000"01 00112 00881 PET8Y TIINIAD
%00°001- 00005 't- 00’0 09'8Ek 00°'00S % 00°0 00881 FET8Y SALLTILLN
%00 000 000 098 000 000 00881 bE'08S ONLLVIH 05-0p
%00°00T- 00°00S'p- 000 co'0 00°'00S "t 000 0070 00701 DIMIDTI3 0E-0t
SILLTILLN
%60°6- 00'005- 00°000°S 00°525 00'005'S 00'TTe 0c'o 0070 NOLLYYISINIWQY
%606 00°005- £0°000's 00'9T8 00°008°S 00'1TZ 0c'o 000 ‘JSIW 05-01
NOLLVYLSINIWGY
JINVLSISSY TVHIANIO / IDNVLISISSY TvuaNaD 01-56 AIQAdeg
%b9°'09- 00'80E"8LT- 00°8b£'STT 65°b/9ZE 00'950'%62 99'2EE'0 S6'TTZ'0Z §7'9SE'TE Q3EHISSYIONN
%0009 00°000°S- 00°000" 000 00"000°01 000 000 600 uonenfeAsy
S3DIAM3S
%0009~ 00°000°9- 00°000'y 000 00°000°0T 00'0 00°0 000 1OVYINOD
%00'09- 00°060°9- 007000t 000 00°00C'0T 00'0 00'0 00'0 AINIOV DNISSISSY G1-05
SADIAYIAS LOVEINCD
uonenieasy / g3M4ISSYIONN 06-06 :Ad/d=Q
o, abueyd $ sbueyd Iabeuey QLA 196phg jenioy [enloy lenpoy
png uno png Lnj £20¢ e0c Zcoc T20C 0coe 610C
sa bay uey  ,SA bay uel
asuadxy
6¢ obed WY T+:0T
Tz0T/11/20 326png Yeuq puz £TA4 PleLpeSYy



000'5223 10
Xe] [edousn) ‘000’sz$ Aduabuiguon

%0002 00°000°05 007000°06€ 000 00°000'057 000 000 00°0 spung paieubisapun 4O 3sn 0005
%8E'L 00599 00°008'8€ 91°118'1% 00°SE1'9¢ S L08'TE ooo 000 (030 |e30(4=3UT OF0E
%00° 000 00'000"9 06'9£6"E 00°0009 SEHIZ0T 6/'802'9 21'996'S S334 3SN ANV 020€
%400° 000 00"000°S 00045t 00°000°S 05'286'9 00'008'+ 00'02¥'s S3d3d ONIGWNTd 0T0E
%00° 00°0 00'005'2 00°10£'2 00°005°Z 09°cbz’e S6'€6L'T 80'/L1'C aouesissy Bunesy S0t
%00 000 007000 10°€H8'S 00'000°S 8E'8E6'ZT 80°/L8'9 62'TL0'ST JINODNI Y3HLO 060T
%00 0070 0070081 0¥°E8T'T 00°005°T 02'€0S’1 00'THS'T 028651 S334 AJOD A4 93D S90T
%00° 00'0 0008 0070781 0008 0008 00'0g 00°0¢€ $994 IsuIaI ssaulsng 0901
%000° oco 00°'00S 00’0 00°0CS 000 000 00’0 $394 ID110N Jqnd 95071
2600700T- 00°00T1- 000 o0zt 00’001 00001 00001 00001 SQAY Y3LIIISMAN 50T
%95°59 00°000’s 00'000'%T §7'65/'8 007000'6 SATIT9T SZ10Z'CT §£'0£5°0T 334 IN3IOY £90T
%POET 00'000's/ 00'000'0S9 [8'898'£8E 00'000'545 £2'TT6'TOL $9'6+1°009 5" ER9'E/S SIAXVL FTOIHIA HOLOW 2501
Y%EEET 000001 00'005'8 00'8Z0°T 00'005'Z 05°9£7'6 06°CL6'L 09'+08°/ SINVL ISIOX3T 1v0d 1501
%00 00 [Higi] T1°69/'G€1 000 000 00°0 000 Buluue|d/sjuess o501
YTl /- Q0°ebs- 00'705'9 00'9v0’/ 00'SH0’'L 00"8LL'L 00°199°ZT 002191 JINIWISHNAWITY 3138 +E0T
Y%IT'IT 00'000°T 00°000°01 68'5/£'01 00'000’6 £5°T0ER £1°655°8 187606 LINIWISHNGWITY HLMOYUD J3H 1 £€0T
YTl L- 00°6+0°91- 00'880°Z6T 00'020°02Z 00°/£1'807 00°E6+'0b2 0C'09H'081 00'896'6/T NOLLdINIX3 dv31SIWOH ¢S0T
%0S°£¢E- 00'005°T~ 000058 00'sbT'T 00"000'F 00°9/8'C 00'e08'e 00°068°¢ NOLLdINIX3 SNvd313A TEQT
%00 000 00°000°9 89°990°¢ 000009 81°885'6 99'$88'CT 0T°86E'TT FWOONI LNIWLSIANI T20T
%£979T- 00°000°s- 00'000'sZ ¥o'H1LTT 00'000°0€ £5'68€'CE 59'188'7¢ F8LE0E SIXKVL NO LSTYILINI +101
2]1E1S
AQ 2jeWwnss 006’008 >_3ms_xemaw
%ECEL 00°000'Ss 00°000'00E 69°88£'/5T 00'000°5ZZ 89°6E5'PTE 62'959'0£7 Z5'9FEHST DONIHYHS 3NNIATY JLVIS €101
YlL'L- 00 ZES'T- 00°€6£°3T $S626'6T 00'0E6'6T LET96'TZ 60'+2S'TE 1£'86/'€E XYL ALY3d0dd T¥NOSHAd 2101
%+Q'E 00°0%F6ET 00°Z6L'S2L 'y GS'E89'T09 DO'ZEC'98S Y [T670°665 TEWE'9 Sy T L8909y XVL ALY3d0dd ALY1SE Tvdd T10T

INAWNIIAOD TYaANTD 0T :deq

o, 2Bueyn $ abuey) Jabeuey QLA 1=fipng jeny |enpy enpy

png L3 png unD rdird 70T [44\r4 T20¢ 020¢ 610¢
SA b3y uel  ,5A bay uely

SNUDIASY
6¢ sbeq WY T+:0T
2202/11/20 19bpng Yeaq puz £ZAd plRYpesY



Yot~ 00'z- 0005k 60°492 00°Zsk (48274 96'G1¢ Z1'8Er ol3nquIuoD %S Juol4 Alelqr ST0E
Y%Ll bT- 00'061- 00001t 9L T0T'T 00'06Z'T 05°£5T 90" TL0'T £8212'1 SA33004d FTvS AdvdgD 0T0b
%9b"8E 00°00S 007008'1 00°029'9 00°00E’T 00'¥+8'2 00°££8°2 00 TL0'LT SNOLLYNOQ AdvddIl S00+
%00°001 000002 000007 009852 000 00'62+'2 00°0 £0'000°8 Apuang 26y 000€
%00 000 00'0 00's2 000 00Ee 000g 00'STT pung sep Bog z107
%00°05- 00'005- 00°00S 00'09¢ 00000'T 00°09% 005672 00'045 D seigey TI01
334
%00'0¢- 00°005- 00°000°7 00°0pE'T 0070057 0061 00'v60'T 0C'/ET'T JSNISIT 904 10ELINOD TIYIWINY 0101
SIDIAYIS ALINAWWOD sz :deq
W20
%00 000 000 000 000 000 000 000 SONIJTING NMOL
W80 SONIATING NMOL 02 deq
SNOISSIWKOD
%00 oo'c 0o'c oo'c 000 00°0 00'0 00'0 B SQYvOd
SNOISSIWWOD B SQUvog ST ideq
%00°00T- 00'00z- 000 0070 00002 00°0 ST'84T T#'81T sduBUDIUIRK
%00°001- c0'00Z- 000 000 00'00¢ 0o'c S1°8/T T+'8TT Xe| [2nd o10F
saueuuel Z1 :adeq
LINIWNAIADD
%R0 00648 vEY 00°8/£'955°G 66'8T6'F0L'S 00'666'TET'9 19°595'€20'9 8/'7S6'TER'S 96'0£E'T49°S TdINID
%00 000 000009 00'0 00°000'9 000 00’0 oco 35N pund 1sn4l £00S
000'0T$ Jol2Y XBL '£08'6T$
jended s1‘000°05T$ |euded speoy
‘000'05% Bunetssdd speoy ‘000°/$
pung asudiaiul ‘06+'G$ UoRRAISSUOD
%ST'€8 00°€86'601 00°€SZ'Zwe 000 00'0LTTET 000 000 600 paemiod ALled Jo sy T00S
dLNOD LNIWNYIAOD TwdINID 0T :deq
o abueyD $ sbueyd labeuepy aLA 196png [enpy jenpy |enpy
png N png .1ng £20¢ et 7e0e TZ0¢ 0e0¢ 610¢
sabay uey  ,SA bay uel
CHITEY R
Ot 26ed WV T#:0T
z20z/11/z0 jobpng Yyeiq puz £ZA4 pRLpeSYy



ST L- 00°0S2- 00°002°¢ 00"06801 00°0SH'E 00°00£'S 0b'0£2's 72'564'9 NOLLD310Yd
%00° 00'C 000 00e 000 000 000 #3588 Juessy A3R4eS a4 050F
%00 000 ooooc's 000 00'007°¢ 00°002°¢ O TEE'Y 00'009°7 SIS JaMOL 00SE
%00°00T- co'0se- 0a'0 00062 00052 00°00¢€ 00°88€ 00°99T auljuo sjiuiad wing g4 SE0T
%00" 000 000 000 00'0 00'0 0070 007025°Z saAoldwia [euoiBay 15SY WPY SZ0T
%00 000 000 00'009°01 000 00'008 0070 8E°€TT SNOLLYNOQ INAW1HvdId FHId 0T10T
NOLLDALOWd OF :3deq
SILLIALLDY
B'SHUVd
%96°92- 00'016'+ 00°00£'€T ££7T85°8 00°01Z'81 88°ES0°TT 0009k'sT 79'8£€9T ‘NOLLYI4D3Y
%00° 00°0 00°0 00°552 000 00°009 00°0£8°C 00001 S|iedl 0T0L
SUoneuRqg
%00°001- 00°00S- 000 00°SST 00°00S 00'0 00'89¢ 0099 sheq abeusH £/07
%00'00T 007005 007005 0070 000 00'0 00'0 £0°0 SNOLLYNOQ/43aHLO Qdv0d 23d 0£0T
%06'¢ 00709 00°009'T 00°0 00°0PS'T 00'585 00'8£1 05'18€'T lequos - pieog 33y 970T
%00" 000 000 000081 000 00°07T0°% 000 00'0F NOLLYIEOIY YIHLO - Qdv0a 239 5208
%IT'TT 00°05€ 00'00§"¢ 00°05H°€ 00°0S1'E 0070 0090y 00°060°E lleqiased - QdvOd D3d +202
%BLLL- 00°00S€- 00°000°T 00°58S 00°005 % 00°0St 000 000 ONIWWIMS - QYv0d D3 £202
Y%L b 00007 00'002'2 00'06£°T 00°00T'T 000 00’5567 00'SET'T W3DD0S - dvod O3 720z
YabL'T 00°08 00'000'E 0581 060262 85°05+° 00°0zh 05°815°C TIvg3sve - Quv0d D3d 1202
CTA AN 00'000'T- 00°005'T LE'BEE'T 00'00SE 0£'856'9 00'++9'6 7900, JWOINI HOV34 0T0T
SAUTALLDV 2'Sydvd ‘NOLLYIdDId 0¢ :3dag
SADIAYES
%{S'E 00°80£'T 00'6£6'£8 STT0T'8y 00°£99'9¢ 85'97£'7T 90°869'1T P 1050, ALINNWIWGD
%00 00'0 00°000°0¢ b L0L'08 00°000°0€ 96'¢50'ST $(556FT G6°LTR0E 53934 ISTHONYYL AL 319VD 0109
%00’ Q00 00°SZ1 00'Sz1 00'521 007001 00'cot 00'S¢T suoned sy uoN Azeiqi 0Z0
Q.LNOD S3JTAYIS ALINNWIWOD SZ 1dsg
9, abueys $ abuey) Jabeuely alLh 126png enioy leniy [enpy
png no png An) £20¢ 2e0e e0e TZ0Z 0z0¢ 610¢
sanbay uel  ,5A bay uep
aNUIADY
Tt abed WY T#:0T
720Z/11/20 }obpng Yeiq puz £TA4 plaUpesy



%00°00T 00'005'2 00°005'C S6'650°C 00'0 000 0070 00°0 BuljpAday oS 3|BuIS S 9Z0L
%00 00'0 00°0085 61909 00'00S 00°758 0z LS 00'TE9 YIHLO - ST1EVIDADTYE 5L S20L
%000 00'000'v 00'000°%1 ob'ShL'ET 00'000°01 00'STT'ET §5°956'6 ST°£19°01 TYLIW - STTEVIIAITY SL €207
%00 001- 00°005- 0070 00'091 00008 008 00°'+Z 0055 suig dwod/aA0ey 1204
%00 000 00°000°0% 00°690°9¢ 00°000°09 §/'9£8'59 §7°906'65 00°285T¢E 5334 NOLLVLS Y3I4SNVYL 010/
AISYM QI10s 04 deq@
SLNIWIACTIWI
%8B 8EE 00°9bE'099"T 00°6£8°05T'T AT b'sTy 00°€£S'06% £9°€8¢°0T 55°881°465 28048891 TY11dYD
%00 00°0 000 000 000 000 00'0 00'000°09T weq joo3euBlel 0006
%96°C 00'94S 00'601°51 9THRT's 00°€£S'bT £9°€8K°0T $5'881°91 78'0¥8°8 uonels Jaysuel] Q/S59
welb (OanW
%00°00T- 00'000"9¢- 000 00'0 00'000'9€ 0070 000 00°0 $y|emIPIS 0859
SUORBUCH UOISURAXS plauyj|eg
%00°001- 00°000'5- ¢00 000 £0'000°Sk 00°0 000 000 spleyiled szs9
%00 00'0 0070 00'261'%2 000 000 007000845 000 UoIIPPY UoneIs a4 159
%00°007 00'0££'SET 00°0£4'SET 00'0 00°0 00'0 000 000 SjuRID pueqgpeosg Z05s9
$paos0.ld puog |edidiuniy
%LE'90F 00°000'509'T 00°000°000°T 00°000'S6E 00°000°S6E 800 0o'e 0o Spa3d0l4 puog [eddiun|y 0059
SINIWIACHIWE TWLIdVD S9 :3deq
%0571 007006y 00°000'9E 00°2£99€ 00°000'2€E 00'HTE'PE 00'095'9¢ S6'S0P'LE obeulelq g speocy
%00 000 000 000 000 00'0581 Q0’0 S6'E6L'T JWOINI AVMHDIH 0202
%0521 007000t 0070009 00°2£9'9€ 00°000°2E 00'F9T'pE 00'095°9€ 00'219'SE JONVLSISSY avOd TvD01 0102
sbeuizig g speey 09 :1dsg
%00° 00'c 00’0 00'c 000 00°0 007001 00°00€ SAAILIWID
%00 000 00'0 00'0 00'0 0070 00001 00°00€ suoljeuoqg gzos
SANALIWID 05 :3d=q
o abueyd % 3bueyd Jabeuey alAi 12bpng [enpy |[enpy [enpy
png 4ng png unj £eoe ceoe zoe T20¢ AT 610¢
sn bay uely  ,sA bay uepy
SNUBAIY
7+ abed WY T+#:0T
7202/11/20 32bpng Yeaq puz £TAd pUpesy



%ET 0L 00'E06'P0T'T  00'69E'890°6  vLYOF'L0V'9  00'99b°£96'0 ZEL'9TT'VZE'9D S8T'96E'S€TL'0  P6'PSS'IST'O s|ej0] SnuUdADY
JONVLSISSY
%00°05- 00'005'Z- 00"005°2 05°£9¢ 00"000°S 00'0 09'TET ¥ LLY TYdaINID
JSANgWIzd
%00°08- 00°0062- 00°005°Z 05°29% 00°000°'S 00'0 09'1€1 ¥ Lib J1VIS-1SISSY TWdaINID 0T0T
IONVISISSY TvdaNaD 6 dag
Y%EQ'EE 00'6L1'T 00'8bL't £9°£99°¢ 00°655'E $6'8ELT T'9UE'T 9R'EHE’T Q3HISSYIONN
%00°05 00°600°T 00'000'E S6'616'T 000007 00'0LT 000 00'0 pund aspdisjud piRYpead 10k
GoTH 1T 00’641 00'8kL'T 89 /%L1 00'695°T ¥6'895°T 9Z°9F'T 98 EHE’T $394 3|IqoMmous OTOE
JIMHISSYTONN 06 dag
SNOLLVYZINYDHO
%00 00'0 00°000'sZ 00'0 00'000'sZ 000 0co 00°0990¢ TYNOIOIY
%00 00'0 00°000'sZ 00'0 00'000's2 00’0 000 00°099'0¢ Jled 18414 0521
SNOLLYZINVOYO WNOIDIY 08 :1deq
%EE'S 00715811 00°68£'822 ¥LLSLYIT 00'8£8°9T¢ BY'EE6'GTT §£°081'90¢ 0L 1LY A1Svym arios
%I8'S 00219 00°TT0'P8 8b'952'6h Q0 v6E'6L 08°29¢°0/ 08'c61'14 95'€L1'5/ FAYHS SINAYM SL 0607
%TL'T 00HET'T 00'8£0°49 zL0TT'Z 00659 ET'¥56'59 85 TETHS 1£°7£2'65 21eys anpded 51 6807
%00° 00'c 000 00'00£'0e 000 00'0 000 0070 SINYYD S1 0504
%00°0%- 00 00T 00°00¢ 00'COF 00005 000 00005 00°0S# SiwiRd sisiney [eniwwoed Or0/
AANOD 3LSYM AIT0s 07 deq
%%, 2Bueyn $ abueyd labeuel QLA 1ebpng |enioy |eraoy |enioy
png un) png Ln3 £e0¢ [AAN]4 [A41r Teoce gcoe 610¢C
sa boy uely  ,SA bay uep
anNuU3AY
¢ abed WY TH:0T
2Z0Z/11/20 3o6png Jeiq puz €A plRYpeaY



NEW BUSINESS




RESERVED

Readfield Select Board
February 15, 2022
Iltemn # 22-101

i
i




Readfield Select Board
Town of Readfield February 15, 2022

ltem # 22-102
Financial Procedures

Definitions

General Accounting System

The General Accounting System is a computerized program devised by Harris-TRIO Software
and is called their "Budgetary" program. It provides for a fund-based general ledger with a
chart of accounts, automatic posting of journal entries, reporting capability, accounts payable
sub-program, and other features (not including payroll}.

3

» Changes in the computerized data for the general accounting system and the Accounts
Payable subprogram are made by the Financial Officer and/or the Town Manager.
Such changes include additions to the chart of accounts, and changes in account names.

Cash Receipts System

The Cash Receipts system produces a receipt for each transaction, interfaces with and posts to
the Tax Collections system, creates a journal entry crediting appropriate revenue and balance
sheet accounts, and prepares detailed reports of each day’s transactions.

» As changes are needed in the Cash Receipts Program, they are made by the Financial
Officer and/or Town Manager. Such changes include adding and deleting accounts,
which may be credited.

Accounts Payable System

The Accounts Payable system prepares the Vendor portion of the municipal disbursements
warrant, prints checks, produces a check register, and calculates and makes a journal entry. It
stores data pertaining to each vendor, including payments made, IRS information, insurance
information, etc.

» Changes in the Accounts Payable data are made by the Financial Officer and/or the

Town Manager. The most common change is adding a vendor. Other changes include
meodifying a mailing address or correcting a name.

Pavroll System

The Payroll system contains data for each municipal employee. The system produces the
Payroll portion of the municipal disbursements warrant, prints checks and a check register,
prepares a journal entry, makes various payroll reports, efc.

1
M:ATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readlfield
Financial Procedures

» Changes which are needed in the basic data contained in the computerized Payroll
System are made by the Financial Officer and/or the Town Manager. Such changes
may include adding an employee to the payroll, changing a pay rate, altering a
voluntary deduction, changing the account to be charged, or changing the vacation
calculation rate.

Procedures:

Journal Entries

Except for the automatic journal entry made in conjunction with processing the vendor
payments for the bi-weekly warrant, all manual journal entries are made by the Financial
Officer and/or the Town Manager,

Cash Receipts Entries. These entries are made in the computerized cash receipts system. The
Financial Officer examines each proposed entry, corrects any obvious errors, and then
processes the entry in the computerized accounting system. The proposed entry generated by
the cash receipts system (called the Cash Receipts Summary) is filed with the actual entry in
the journal entry file folder.

Payroll Entries. These entries are originated in the computerized payroll system. The
Financial Officer examines each entry, corrects any obvious errors, and then processes the
entry in the computerized accounting system. The proposed entry generated by the payroll
system is filed with other payroll reports. The actual entry is filed in the journal entry file
folder.

Other types of entries made by the Financial Officer include opening entries, correcting entries,
budget and budget adjustment entries. The printed copy of each entry is filed (with supporting
documents, if available) in the journal entry file folder.

Cash Receipts

1. Payments to the Town are processed on the day they are received.

2. Money receipts, except for small amounts received for making copies, etc., are
processed through the computerized cash receipts system.

3. Cashreceived at the Town Office is handled by the Collection Clerk, the Town Clerk,
and/or the Financial Officer.

2
M:ATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

4. At the start of each business day one of the employees listed above unlocks the vault,
retrieves the two cash trays (each containing exactly $200 cash at start-up), inserts them
in the cash drawers, and turns on the Cash Receipts program on the computer.

5. One of the same employees listed above then uses the Cash Receipts System to enter
pertinent information for each transaction, in accordance with the computerized
program.

6. A separate entry is made and a separate receipt is prepared for each transaction. For
"over the counter” transactions the original receipt is given to the customer. For mail
and telephone transactions the original receipt will be mailed upon request, for a fee.
The Town retains the duplicate receipts.

7. The employee who makes each entry records his/her initials as part of the transaction.

8. Other essential aspects of the transaction, such as payer, purpose, amount, account o be
credited, etc. are then entered.

9. From time to time one of the employees may enter a "non-cash" transaction in the Cash
Receipts System. This type of entry is usually to correct an error, or to credit
abatements, or to credit any Town employee payroll deductions for property taxes to
that employee’s appropriate taxpayer accounts.

10. In addition to recording the transaction and issuing the receipt, the employee completes
and issues licenses, documents, etc. for which the customer has paid.

11. At the end of each business day, and at other times on busy days, the Town Clerk, or
the Financial Officer (in the Clerk’s absence) prints day-end reports, and makes up a
bank deposit. The cash trays are then counted by someone other than the user of that
tray, confirming that $200 remains in each tray. Said employee also adds the checks
and compares the total to that shown on the Cash Receipts Report, and takes any
corrective action which may be needed. The employee then places the cash trays in the
vault, locks the door, and closes the cash receipts program on the computers. The
proposed journal entry (the Cash Receipts Summary) is delivered to the Financial
Officer. The other day-end reports are assembled, stapled, numbered with the journal
entry number, dated, and filed.

12. The Town Manager, at his/her discretion, will count the cash trays to verify the cash
amounts, on a random basis at least monthly.

13. There is no accounting for the "small amounts received" mentioned in item 2 above.
This money amounts to less than $100.00 a year and is used to make up cash shortages
and to purchase small items for office use.

3
MATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Cwrrent adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

Bank Deposits

Deposits into the checking account are prepared daily, using the cash receipts of the same
business day. Deposits are prepared by the Town Clerk or the Finance Officer, and in their
absence by the Collection Clerk.

1. Each deposit slip, the listed checks, and the appropriate amount of cash are placed in a
bank bag and given to the Town Manager or another Town employee designated by the
Town Manager.

2. The Town Manager or his/her designee transports the bank bag deposits to the bank
daily.

3. The employee who transports the deposit obtains a teller's receipt for each deposit and
delivers those receipts to the Financial Officer. If the night deposit is used, a teller’s
receipt is returned to the Town Office inside the returned bank bag,

4. The Financial Officer enters the amount of each tellet's receipt into the Town's
checking account record after comparing it to the amount credited to the Cash Account
on the applicable Cash Receipts Journal Entry, The Financial Officer files the teller's
receipts with the copy of the deposit slip.

Disbursement Warrants

Municipal Warrant
The Financial Officer prepares the municipal warrant bi-weekly.

1. The warrant is prepared on alternate Mondays, except for occasional Monday holidays
when the warrant is then prepared either on the preceding or following regular business
day.

2. The municipal warrant consists of two parts: the employee payroll and the payments to
vendors or “accounts payable™. Both parts are processed in the Town’s computerized
accounting system.

3. For specific procedures for these two parts of the warrant, see the separate sections
herein on Payroll and Vendors.

4. After completing the two parts of the warrant, the Financial Officer completes a cover
sheet with the warrant number, date, and amounts; and assembles the supporting
documents.

4
M:\TClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

After preparing the warrant, the Financial Officer delivers it to the Town Manager for
his/her review and for presentation to the Select Board for their consideration.

The Select Board reviews the warrant at a regular public meeting and decides whether
to approve it with any necessary changes. Once approved, three members of the Select
Board must then sign the warrant. (In special circumstances, a minimum of two Select
Board members may sign the payroll section of the warrant.)

The Town Manager delivers the signed warrant to the Financial Officer with
instructions regarding any needed changes.

The Financial Officer then separates the checks from each other, stamps the Town
Manager's signature on each approved check, and distributes the checks.

Checks are hand-delivered, held for pickup, electronically transferred or mailed, in
accordance with instructions from the recipients.

10. The Financial Officer arranges the warrant in a logical order, and files the warrant.

Municipal Warrant - Payroll

The payroll is prepared by the Financial Officer.

1.

Each employee submits a bi-weekly written time sheet to their Supervisor indicating
hours worked and hours to be charged to holiday pay, sick leave, vacation,
compensatory time and Paid Time Off (PTO). The Supervisor initials each sheet then
submits them to the Town Manager who also reviews and initials each time sheet.

The Financial Officer then uses the computerized Payroll System to enter and process
the appropriate information for each employee, to print payroll checks, and to print
payroll reports including a payroll check register.

The Financial Officer makes a copy of the check register and files it.

The Financial Officer prepares the Federal tax deposit form and the State income tax
transmittal form in accordance with the amounts calculated by the computer, and makes
a copy of each form.

The Financial Officer places the check register, the Federal tax deposit form, the State

income tax transmittal form, and the employee time sheets into the warrant. The
checks are filed.

5

MATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

Municipal Warrant - Vendors

The Financial Officer prepares the vendor payments.

1.

The Financial Officer receives mailed, faxed, emailed or delivered invoices and other
requests for payment, or prepares payments for existing contracts, The Financial
Officer refers each payment request to the approving authority (Town Manager, Fire
Chief, Public Works Director and others with fiduciary responsibilities or oversight.)
for proper coding. The Financial Officer reviews the coding and the Town Manager
reviews and/or approves all requests for presentation to the Select Board.

The Financial Officer receives and collects the approved payment requests and routine
requests not requiring prior approval.

According to his/her schedule, the Financial Officer enters each payment request into
the computerized Accounts Payable system during the week prior to and/or on the
warrant preparation day.

After entering all the vendor payment requests for a particular warrant into the
computer, the Financial Officer processes them and prints a warrant preview. The
Financial Officer then prints vendor checks and a check register, makes the General
Journal entry, prints the Vendor Warrant and a Vendor Warrant "Recap”, and then files
the checks.

The Financial Officer makes a copy of the Vendor Check Register and files it.

The Financial Officer makes seven copies of the Vendor Warrant Recap for distribution
to the Select Board, Town Manager and Town Clerk.

The Financial Officer then assembles and places the invoices, other payment requests,
the check register, and the printed vendor warrant along with the payroll documents
into a complete watrant file folder.

Trust Funds

1.

Receipts for and expenditures from the Trust Funds are initially made to and from the
General Fund. Receipts are credited to “Due to Trust Fund”. Expenditures are debited
to “Due from Trust Fund”,

6

M:TClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readficld
Financial Procedures

2. From time to time, depending on the inter-fund balance, the Financial Officer will
move money into or out of a Trust Fund. If money is moved from the General Fund,
the Financial Officer will process a check through the warrant system and send it to the
Town’s financial advisor for investment. If money is moved from a Trust Fund, the
Financial Officer will direct the financial advisor to make a payment to the Town from
the invested funds.

3. Whenever a cemetery plot is purchased, the Financial Officer credits 75% of the sales
receipt to the “Perpetual Care Principal” account and the remaining 25% to the
“Cemetery Expansion” account. The Financial Officer then makes a journal entry in
the Trust Funds, debiting the “Due from General Fund” account and crediting the other
aforementioned accounts.

4. Whenever a transaction occurs for a specific Trust Fund, the Financial Officer takes
note of any other receipts and expenditures attributable to that Trust Fund, and makes a
journal entry in the Trust Fund debiting the “Due from General Fund” account and
crediting the “Due to General Fund” account, as may be appropriate,

5. After completing steps 3 and 4 above, the Financial Officer checks that the amount in
the “Due to Trust Fund” equals the amount in the “Due from General Fund”; and that
the amount in the “Due from Trust Fund” equals the amount in the “Due to General
Fund”,

6. The Financial Officer monitors the Trust Funds investments monthly by examining the
monthly reports from the Town’s financial advisor.

7. According to the Select Board’s Investment Policy, the Town Manager, with advice
from the financial advisor and the Financial Officer, decides when to sell investments
or to make new investments.

8. Monthly, the Financial Officer distributes the net earnings of the investments (adjusted
by gains or losses on the sale of investments) to the various trust fund accounts. The
basis for this distribution is the amounts at the beginning of the period apportioned to
each Trust Fund purpose or activity (i.e., the principal plus the available interest for
expenditure). The result of the distribution is a General Journal entry, made by the
Financial Officer.

9. Annually, the Financial Officer reconciles the amount in the Trust Fund Investment
Account with the list of securities provided by the financial advisor (each valued at
cost).

7
MATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

Transfer Station

Overview

The Financial Officer performs certain financial tasks related to the Transfer Station, These
tasks result in a monthly invoice to the Town of Wayne for its share of costs (including 4 hours
per month for the Financial Officer), and a monthly financial report for the Transfer Station
Manager and the Town of Wayne.

1. The Transfer Station issues consecutive numbered receipts for any monies received
from residents. A Transfer Station employee delivers a duplicate copy of each receipt
and the money received on a daily basis to the Town Office. The Collections Clerk
enters all numbered receipts into the cash receipt system the following day verifying
that consecutive numbered receipts are being used and the correct amount of money is
being received.

2. At the end of each month, the Financial Officer prints out the Transfer Station income
and expenditures as recorded in the ledger.

3. Using the expenditure entries, the Financial Officer prepares the monthly invoice for
the Town of Wayne, the format for which is stored in the computer.

4. Using the income and expenditure accounts, the Financial Officer prepares the financial
report, which is also stored in the computer.

5. Monthly, the Financial Officer makes one or more general journal entries charging the
Transter Station accounts for certain administrative costs, property and liability
insurance, unemployment insurance, retirement plan costs, and Workers' Compensation
Insurance.

6. The Financial Officer mails or faxes the Wayne Town Office copies of each monthly

invoice and the monthly financial report showing the crediting of revenues received
from all fees, all sales, and payments from Wayne.

Investments

General

Town funds are invested in accordance with an Investment Policy initially adopted by the
Select Board on April 28, 2003 and updated on March 1, 2010.

8
M:ATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

General Operating Funds

The Town Treasurer (Town Manager) may invest excess General Fund money in one or more
Certificates of Deposit in financial institutions of his/her choosing with places of business in
Central Maine. No more than $250,000 (or the current FDIC limit) may be invested in any
such financial institution, and no such Certificate shall exceed one year in duration.

The financial institutions may be commercial barks, savings banks, credit unions, savings and
loan associations, etc., as long as the investments, individually or collectively are fully covered
by the FDIC.

Except for said Certificates of Deposit, all of the Town's General Fund money shall be placed
in a Cash Management Sweep Account in a financial institution with a place of business in
Central Maine. The daily amounts not needed to cover checks presented to the institution for
payment shall be invested by said institution for the Town's credit in collateralized Repurchase
Agreements, per the Town's contract with the financial institution.

Trust Fund Portfolio

The Town's Trust Funds shall be invested by the Town Treasurer (Town Manager) in securities
(stocks, bonds, money market accounts, etc.) according to the Select Board’s Investment
Policy for Trust Portfolio, as initially approved on May 27, 2003 with updates on July 21, 2003
and March 1, 2010.

Reports

The Financial Officer prepares the following financial reports at the indicated frequencies:
a. Revenue and Expenditure Budgetary Reports -- monthly.

Unemployment Compensation Reports -- quarterly.

Federal and State tax reports for the Internal Revenue Service & Maine Revenue

Service -- quarterly. (No detail provided for State reports.)

Employee's tax reports -- annually.

Vendor's 1099s -- annually.

Year-end reports for the auditor -- annually. (No detail provided.)

Special reports -- as needed. (No detail provided.)

oo

© e A

Daily cash receiving reports generated by the Town Clerk are outlined previously in the Cash
Receipts section.

Revenue and Expenditure Budgetary Reports

9
M:TClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

The Financial Officer prints out and copies Budgetary Reports for Revenues and for
Expenditures at the end of each month for distribution to the Town Manager and Select Board.

The Revenue Report is a listing of each separate revenue account, with estimated annual
income, actual receipts to date, and the uncollected balance expected by fiscal year end.

‘The Expenditure Report is a listing of every separate expenditure account with the amount
budgeted, expenditures to date, and the unexpended (or over-expended) balance.

Unemployment Compensation Report

The Financial Officer prepares the quarterly Unemployment Compensation Report on forms
provided by the Maine Municipal Association (MMA), and consistent with instructions
provided by MMA, using the payroll system's Unemployment Compensation Report and the
Retirement Benefit Report for the quarter for eligible employees.

‘The Financial Officer enters the appropriate amounts on each employee's line on the MMA
form, enters the names and related information for each employee not pre-printed on the form,
deletes employees not paid during the quarter, enters page totals and report totals. The
Financial Officer cross-checks the completed Unemployment Compensation Report against the
quarterly Pay Summary Report to assure that only cligible employees are listed on the
Unemployment Compensation Report. The Financial Officer mails the completed
Unemployment Compensation Report form to MMA prior to the applicable deadline.

Federal Tax Report

To prepare the quarterly Federal Tax Report (Form 941), the Financial Officer uses the
quarterly Payroll Tax Summary,

1. The first step is to prepare manually a summary of the items to be entered on the 941.
The line items are Total Wages, Federal Income Tax Withheld, Social Security Wages,
Social Security Taxes Paid, Medicare Wages, and Medicare Taxes Paid.

2. The Financial Officer then manually prepares a list of tax deposits made with dates,
amounts and confirmation numbers.

3. Next, a draft Form 941 is prepared including the Tax Liability schedule.

4. If the total tax liability does not equal the amounts owed and/or deposited (subject to
rounding differences), the Financial Officer determines the reasons for the
discrepancies and initiates corrective action, Such action could be an additional
payment with the Form 941, or a request for credit in the next quarter, or a correcting
journal entry,

10
M:ATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




5.

Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

The Financial Officer signs and mails the Form 941 (with any required additional
payment) to the Federal Government prior to the applicable deadline.

Employee's Tax Reports

The Financial Officer prints out employee reports at the conclusion of the calendar year, as
follows:

1.

The Financial Officer prints out calendar year-end payroll reports using the Payroll
System, including the W-2 Audit Report.

If the W-2 Audit Report appears, upon careful inspection, to be free of errors, the
Financial Officer prints the W-2's and checks the totals for accuracy.

The Financial Officer then prepares the W-3 transmittal for the W-2's.

The Financial Officer prepares a Maine State Form W-3ME.

The Financial Officer mails the applicable copies of the W-2 and the W-3 to the Social
Security Administration, transmits the W-3ME electronically to the State of Maine, and

either delivers or mails the employee's copies to each employee.
p P ploy

The town's copies of W-2's and W-3 are filed with the quarterly 941's and other income
tax documents for said calendar vear.

Vendor's 1099s

1.

The Financial Officer determines which vendors need to receive Form 1099s at
calendar year-end, based upon the prior year's action and on knowledge of the current
yeat's vendors,

The amounts paid to each such vendor are then obtained by the Financial Officer from
the computer records (the first half of the calendar year from the prior fiscal year
entries; and the last half of the calendar year from the current fiscal year entries). Said
amounts are categorized as required on the 1099-Misc form.

The Financial Officer then enters in the computer the name, address and identification
number of each such vendor. Information is obtained from W-9’s.

The Financial Officer prints the 1099-Misc forms, using the information in the
computer,

The Financial Officer obtains the totals needed for the 1096 transmittal form by adding
the amounts on the 1099s and then types the 1096.

11

M:\TClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

6. The Financial Officer then mails the 1099s {o the vendors and the 1096 to the Federal
Government, making sure that the figures on the 1099s total the applicable figures on
the 1096.

7. The State of Maine does not want a copy of each 1099 nor of the 1096.

Reconciliations:
General
1. The Financial Officer makes the reconciliations of financial balances.

2. Reconciliations are routinely done for these ledger accounts:

a. ‘Cash’ compared to bank statement balances.

b. All Property Tax Receivable accounts compared to the printouts of unpaid tax
accounts.

¢. Motor Vehicle Registration Fees payable (to the State) compared to the un-
submitted registration forms.

d. Inland Fisheries and Wildlife payable (to the State) compared to the monthly
report.

e. Dog License Fees payable (to the State) compared to the unreported dog license
fees.

3. Records of reconciliations are maintained and retained with other detailed financial
records.

Checking Account

1. Each month the Financial Officer reconciles the bank statements against the
correspending ledger account and against the manual checking record.

2. The Financial Officer adds the balance on the Cash Management Sweep statement to
the balance on the Business Checking statement to obtain the balance.

3. The Financial Officer prints out the ledger account ‘Cash in Checking’ as of the end of
the month.

4. The Financial Officer adjusts the bank balance by deducting the total amount of
outstanding checks.

12
MATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

The Financial Officer then determines the differences between the adjusted bank
balance and the ledger account balance, and between the adjusted bank balance and the
manual checking record.

The Financial Officer then identifies the individual items that comprise these
differences, which are commonly:
a. Deposits in transit.
Outstanding checks.
Bad checks.
Deposit errors.
Unrecorded service charges.
Unrecorded interest earned.

mo oo o

The Financial Officer enters said items on the reconciliation document, achieving a total
for the ledger account, and for the manual checking record which equals the adjusted
bank balance.

The Town Manager reviews and signs the reconciliation document.

The Financial Officer files said document with the bank account reconciliations from
prior months,

Property Taxes

1.

The Financial Officer reconciles the Property Tax Receivable ledger accounts with the
printouts of unpaid taxes generated by the computerized Tax Collections System.

This reconciliation is performed at the end of each month for prior year's taxes, and
current year's taxes.

. Reconciliations are made separately for each year for which there are unpaid taxes, and

separately for Personal Property and Real Estate taxes.

The Financial Officer prints out lists of unpaid Personal Property and Real Estate taxes
from the Tax Collections system.

If the ledger amount differs from the total of the applicable list of unpaid taxes, the
Financial Officer examines each transaction to identify the discrepancies.

The Financial Officer makes adjustments in the ledger account and/or in the accounts
of the individual taxpayers, to eliminate any discrepancies and achieve balance.

‘The Town Manager reviews and approves the reconciliation documents.

13

M:ATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




8.

Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

The Financial Officer files each month's reconciliation documents in a separate file
folder in the Unpaid Taxes section of the general files.

Collections for the State

1. The Town issues motor vehicle renewal registrations, hunting and fishing licenses,
recreation vehicle (boat, ATV and snowmobile) registrations, plumbing permits and
dog licenses, and collects sales taxes for certain transactions, all of which involve
receipts that are paid periodically to the State of Maine.

2. As money for the State is received, it is recorded in the Cash Receipts system in the
appropriate liability account.

3. When payments are made to the State, the liability accounts are debited.

4. At any time, the credit balance in each such liability account should be represented by
the State's copies of applicable registration forms and licenses, which have not been
transmitted to the State; or the amounts collected but not reported to the State (for dog
licenses and sales tax).

5. The Financial Officer reconciles the credit balances in these liability accounts monthly.

6. The process involves adding the amounts due to the State from the unsubmitted
documents (or unreported fees) in one category (i.e., boat registrations) and comparing
that total to the credit balance in the applicable ledger account.

7. If'the figures do not agree, the Financial Officer examines the individual transactions to
identify the error(s) and then makes the necessary journal entry or takes other corrective
action to achieve balance.

8. The Town Manager reviews and signs each reconciliation document.

9. Records of these reconciliations are retained in the files until the financial records for
the fiscal year have been audited, and are then destroyed.

Tax Billing

1. Property tax information is entered into the Tax Billing Systemn by the Assessors’
Agent. This information includes names, addresses, valuations, map and lot numbers,
exemptions, and related data.

2. When all entries have been made for a fiscal year (as of the prior April 1), the tax

commitment book is printed from the computer system. The computer automatically

14

M:ATClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield -
Financial Procedures

posts each taxpayet's new tax amount to the proper account for the applicable year in
the Tax Collection System. A file is created containing each property owner’s tax bill

information by the Financial Officer. The tax bills are outsourced to a vendor for
printing and mailing.

3. The Financial Officer sends the Tax Club booklets by first class mail to the taxpayers in
the Tax Club.

4. When supplemental taxes are assessed and approved by the Board of Assessors, they
are entered into the Tax Billing System by the Assessors’ Agent or Financial Officer.

5. When abatements are approved by the Board of Assessors and/or by the Select Board,
they are entered into the computer system by the Assessors® Agent or Financial Officer.

Summary

The above information is meant to provide guidance for the various processes that involve
financial transactions for the Town. Detailed instructions for computer entry and processing
are available through the specific program instructions and help mannals.

After due review and consideration, these Financial Procedures are adopted by majority vote of
the Select Board on June7, 2010.

Amanda Mank

15
M:\TClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Town of Readfield
Financial Procedures

And:

g%f;&d& ﬂﬂw’

Teresa Shaw, Financial Officer

SR (L

Stefan P?((ulski, Town Manager

16
M:TClerk\Policies & Procedures\Current adopted policies\Financial Procedures 06-07-10




Readfield Select Board

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT & CONTRACT PEULEr 15 2022
TOWN OF READFIELD AND ERIC W. DYER em # 22-103

This Employment Agreement & Contract outlines the terms and conditions of employment for the
position of Town Manager by and through the Select Board of the Town of Readfield, Maine and Mr. Eric
W. Dyer. The effective date of this agreement is Aprik202+. 1, 2022.

Duties and Appointments

Mr. Eric W. Dyer agrees to perform faithfully and diligently the duties of Town Manager, fulfilling
all statutory obligations for Town Manager as described in Maine law, together with obligations as described
in Town Manager’s Roles and Responsibilities as approved on 02/10//2014, attached hereto as Exhibit A.

It is expected that the Town Manager will also serve the following annual administrative

appointments: Tax Collector, Treasurer, Road Commissioner, Fransfer-Station-Manager, and Welfare
Administrator as prescribed by the Town of Readfield’s ordinances and procedures, including any other
municipal positions to which appointed by the Select Board.

Salary

The Town Manager shall receive a $3;060 (Insert amount here) bonus in Flscal Year 2021 2022 paid
e m dys end-h . in the first

payroll of March 2022

Annual salary shall be payable in accordance with the payroll procedures in place for all Town
employees. Base salary as of July 1, 2020 2022 shall be $ 78;000 82,000. Annually at the anniversary of
this contract, beginning on July 1, 2022 2023, a minimum salary change of the Northeast Regional Consumer
Price Index for all goods and services for the 12-month period ending in April of the current year will be
implemented. The Select Board reserves the right to supplement the CPI adjustment with additional merit
pay, as deemed appropriate at the sole discretion of the Select Board.

Performance Evaluations

A $all 360-degree Performance Evaluation will be conducted annually by the anniversary of
employment, which may include a full 360 degree review component, including comments developed in
advance by the Town Manager. Results, including any plans for improvement, will be jointly developed and
signed by the Select Board and by the Town Manager and included in the Town Manager’s personnel file.
Less formal semi-annual reviews will may be held to determine progress and any resources or support
necessary to help achieve or adjust to evolving priorities. The evaluation tools and documents to be used in
the annual and semi-annual evaluations are attached to and incorporated as part of this contract. These
documents may be amended by mutual agreement.

Personal Time Off

PTO will be granted at 23 days per year. PTO will be cumulative and any unused balance may be
carried forward to subsequent years. Total PTO accrual, at the end of the Fiscal Year, will not exceed 120
hours. Upon separation, the Town will compensate the Town Manager for 100% of all accrued PTO-based
upon the Town Manager’s salary as of the date of separation.

Health and Dental and Vision Insurance




The Town shall pay 100% of the cost of the health insurance through the MMEHT POS 200 plan for
the Town Manager, and 100% of the dental and vision insurance premium for the Town Manager. If the
Town Manager elects any additional dependent insurance premiums, the Town Manager shall pay for such
cost. Any consideration of a plan change during the contract period will be negotiated jointly by the Select
Board and Town Manager. Town will establish an employee account in the amount equal to the maximum
out of pocket requirements for the POS 200 plan to be paid towards the out of pocket maximum associated
with the POS 200 plan.

Retirement A Dependent-Care

The Town participates in the Social Security System. Both the Town and the Town Manager shall
make the required respective contribution to the System, the amounts of the contributions to be determined in

accordance with federal law. The Town shall also contribute to the International City Manager’s Retirement

Cerporation-orsimilar Town Manager’s retirement plan retirement-plan-five{5:00%) percent-of the Town
Manager’sannualsalary. Contributions and payment shall be made in accordance with the plan in place for
the Town of Readfield.

Travel Allowance

At his discretion, the Town Manager shall use private transportation on Town business. He will be
paid for all actual and necessary use of private transportation on Town business at the current IRS mileage
reimbursement rate for private vehicles or the actual cost of the transportation for mass transit. Incidental
vehicle expenses (tolls and parking) will be reimbursed when documented with any other travel expenses on
an expense report along with receipts.

Professional Development

The Town agrees to budget for and pay for the professional dues, subscriptions, travel and seminar
registrations and related expenses of the Town Manager for professional participation, meetings, workshops
and training adequate to continue his professional development. Said participation on Town time may
include the international City Manager’s Association, Maine Town and City Manager’s Association, and
other national, regional, state and local groups that the Town Manager and Select Board agree are desirable.
The Town Manager may attend the Maine Municipal Association convention and the Maine Town and City
Management annual meeting. Subject to annual budget constraints, the Town Manager may attend either the
International City Manager’s Association or National League of Cities annual meeting on a biennial basis.

Term and Termination

The initial Term of this contract shall be three years extending from July 1, 262+ 2022 through June
30, 2024 2025. The Select Board shall notify the Town Manager on or prior to June 30, 2022-2023 as to
whether it wishes to negotiate a one-year extension of this contract through 2025 2026, and again prior to
June 30, 2023 2024 as to whether it wishes to negotiate a one-year extension of this contract through 2026
2027. A one-year extension will occur automatically if no notice received prior to June 30.

The Select Board may terminate the Town Manager’s contract for cause or malfeasance at any time.
No severance payment or continuation of health or dental insurance will be required of the Town in the event
of termination for cause or malfeasance.

The Select Board may choose, for any reason, without the requirement to prove cause or
malfeasance, to terminate or decline to renew the Town Manager’s contract at any time. In this case, the
Town will pay the Town Manager a severance amount equal to three months (25%) of the current annual



salary and continue the Town Manager’s health and dental insurance for three months from the date of
termination, or end of the contract period in the event of non-renewal.

The Town Manager will give three months prior notice in the event he intends to resign his
employment with the Town, without any severance pay or additional benefits beyond the date of resignation,

unless otherwise negotiated with the Select Board.

Indemnification

The Town will defend and indemnify the Town Manager against any tort, professional liability claim
or demand or other legal action, whether or not it appears to have merit, arising out of an alleged act or
omission ocecurring in the performance of the Town Manager’s duties, except if the claim alleges fraud or
other intentional torts or a criminal act, and as prohibited by law. The Town will either litigate or
compromise and settle any such claim or suit and pay the amount of any judgment or settlement rendered
thereon, whether levied against the Town of Readfield or the Town Manager personally. Indemnification
will extend beyond termination of employment, to provide full and complete protection to the Town
Manager, by the Town of Readfield, as described herein, for any acts lawfully undertaken or committed as
Town Manager, regardless of whether the notice or filing of such a claim or lawsuit occurs during or after
the Town Manager’s employment with the Town.

Other Benefits and Obligations

Some other benefits and obligations shall be provided in accordance with the management and
Personnel Policies of the Town of Readfield. The provisions in the Personnel Policies on Work
Performance Evaluation, Grievances, Discipline and Appeals do not apply to the employment of the Town
Manager. In lieu of these procedures, this contract will refer to MMA’s guidelines on these items.

Signatures

Town Manager:

Read and agreed to: Date:
Mr. Eric W. Dyer, Town Manager

Select Board for the Town of Readfield:

Read and agreed to:

Bruee Bourgeine Dennis Price, Chair Dennis-Priee Kathryn Mills Woodsum, Vice Chair

Chris-Sammens Carol Doorenbos kathryn-Mills Weedsum Ralph Eno

Ralph-Ene Sean Keegan Date



OTHER BUSINESS




